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We  move towards out goal of being 
the best corporate entity in the country, 
performing steadily and surpassing the 

expectation of customers.

coMpany oveRview Mission
We foresee being the best corporate entity in the country, performing steadily, 
conducting business with responsibility, consistently outperforming our peers 

and surpassing the desires of customers through excellence in delivering 
innovative products. We continuously promote a learning culture and provide 

a dynamic and challenging environment for our employees whilst creating 
lasting value for our shareholders.

aBout us
Kanrich Finance Limited (KFL), is a fully fledged and licensed finance company in Sri Lanka. We have been offering 

a wide range of finance products over a glorious period of more than 48 years. KFL was originally incorporated 

as Mutual Investments and Finance Ltd in 1971 under the Companies Ordinance No. 51 of 1938 and later on, 

reregistered as Kanrich Finance Ltd under the new Companies Act No 07 of 2007 . in 2010 the company was 

completely transformed after being acquired by Mutual Holdings Ltd. (MHL) and presently ranks among the 

top finance companies in Sri Lanka. Reaching more than 10 billion LKR worth assets, a customer base of more 

than 200,000 people and 36 branch locations around the country, we house more than 1,200 employees at 

present. Compliant with best practices and excellent corporate governance, our Board of Directors in supported 

by several independent Board Subcommittees such as Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and three 

Management Committees, namely, Asset and Liability Committee, Credit Committee and the Integrated Risk 

Management Committee. These committees provide unbiased perspectives that enhance the function of the  

board of areas pertaining to good governance operational principles
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chAiRmAn 
mESSAGE

This has been a challenging, a year of turbulent economic conditions, slow growth, increased 

competition, regulatory changes and global uncertainty.
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volatile econoMic conditions – 
tiMe FoR econoMies to pRevail oveR 
Business stRategies

It gives me great pleasure in writing this message 

for the Annual Report of Kanrich Finance Ltd for 

2018-2019. Volatile and unpredictable economic 

conditions, underperformance of major economic 

sectors combined with unstable political environment 

and adverse weather conditions led us to believe in 

basic economic principals to prevail over enterprising 

business strategies.

In Sri Lanka the government expected economic 

growth to move up to 5 per cent in 2018. But, the year 

2018 and first quarter 2019 results showed that the 

country’s real GDP grew by 3.2 per cent and 3.7 per 

cent, respectively. Hence, the achieving higher growth 

is a challenging task for the Sri Lankan economy.

Maintenance of domestic prices was also challenging.  

Developments in the price behavior led the Central 

Bank to nutralise the monetary policy since April 

2018. However, prices of goods and services, interest 

rates and exchange rates were volatile. Out of prices, 

exchange rate was under pressure for a massive 

depreciation since the early part of 2017.   When the 

external reserve level coming down to a critically low 

level, the country could no longer continue to feed 

the market’s insatiable demand for dollars. Exports, 

a means of earning foreign reserves, though had 

maintained its status quo, failed to achieve a significant 

growth amidst increasing demand for imports. 

Imports had a boomeranging effect, creating a high 

trade deficit in the range of $ 9-10 billion a year, 

recently. This was partially taken care of by the 

remittances of Sri Lankans working abroad; but that 

also became saturated at around $ 7 billion in the 

recent past compelling the government to borrow at a 

higher cost accounting for external debt to GDP ratio 

to be alarmingly high. The country’s foreign reserves, 

the money immediately available for meeting future 

foreign debt repayments and making payments for 

imports and other services, amounted to around $ 7 

billion by the end of 2018. The Government budget was 

in a high deficit making it necessary to borrow more to 

repay maturing debt.

In terms of sector-wise performance, the agricultural 

sector recorded a growth of 4.8% in 2018, while the 

industrial sector recorded a slowdown in growth. This 

slowdown was attributed to the contraction in the 

construction activities and slow down in mining and 

quarrying activities. The services sector expanded 

mainly due to expansion in financial services activities, 
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wholesale and retail trade, and transport services 

activities. Meanwhile, investment expenditure grew 

at a slower pace compared to the previous year 

whereas consumption expenditure, which witnessed 

some slowdown in the previous year, accelerated 

in 2018. The domestic savings grew at a slower rate 

in 2018.  Further, current transfers from rest of the 

world, which affected national savings, moderated 

reflecting a slowdown in workers’ remittances partly 

due to geopolitical tensions and uncertainties in some 

regions including the Middle East. Reflecting these 

developments, growth in national savings slowed down 

during the year 2018 and the savings - investment gap 

broadened. This led to increase government external 

borrowing (Source: CBSL Annual Report 2018). Financial 

institutions in the country had to work in an economy 

which had such a background as explained above. 

Consideration of Global eConomiC 

PerformanCe 

During last year global economy showed mixed results. 

USA economy grew while other economies such as 

Europe and Japan did not grow. Funds from emerging 

economies flew back to developed countries. Stock 

markets in most of the countries faced setbacks. 

Liquidity in emerging markets dried up. Financial 

institutions including banks switched to reduce lending 

towards the end of the financial year. As a solution, 

staff strength was cut down by financial institutions. 

Unemployment increased and labor force participation 

declined.  Financial sector faced liquidity shortages 

and industries did not grow resulting in credit defaults 

creating troubles to lending institutions. Many finance 

companies failed, while creating hard times for 

regulators.

After reaching its lowest point for seven years by 2016, 

global economic growth is expected to accelerate 

again in 2020, to 3.7 per cent. This increase will occur 

despite the slowdown in developed markets, where 

growth will slow down to 2 per cent. Finance industry 

should prepare to harvest the benefit from favorable 

global economic conditions. Company strategies have 

to be shaped in line with these, which is a challenge 

for emerging companies. We hope that the companies 

will come up with positive strategies to overcome the 

challenges, expecting to reap good harvest in times to 

come.

PerformanCe of the finanCial seCtor 

Financial sector in Sri Lanka recorded a moderate 

expansion in 2018 amidst challenging market 

conditions globally and domestically. The performance 

of the financial sector was mainly orchestrated 

by the innovative contributions from the banking 

sector, other deposit taking financial institutions and 

contractual savings institutions. The banking sector 

showed a moderate expansion with improved business 

operations and implemented prudent risk management 

practices with the implementation of appropriate 

regulatory measures during the year. Asset growth of 

the banking sector was moderate during the first half 

of the year but accelerated in the second half of the 

year due to growth in credit.
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PerformanCe of the non-bankinG  

finanCial seCtor 

The Sri Lanka’s non-banking financial sector 

performance moderately increased during 2018 with 

low credit growth, declining profitability and increase 

in non-performing loan portfolios. The slowdown in the 

sector was mainly due to fiscal and macro prudential 

policy measures implemented by the regulators to 

curtail importation and credit granted for purchasing 

motor vehicles.  Nevertheless, the key performance 

indicators of the sector, including capital, liquidity 

and profitability, continued to be marginally positive. 

Healthy growth was recorded by the contractual 

savings institutions, dominated by the Employees’ 

Provident Fund (EPF) and the Employees’ Trust Fund 

(ETF), providing reasonable returns for their members. 

Other key players of the financial sector, which 

included the insurance sector, the primary dealers 

in government securities and the unit trust sector, 

recorded positive business performance during 2018, 

without major stability concerns.

The sluggish and underperformance of certain 

important economic sectors, manly the construction 

and tourism sectors and adverse weather conditions 

affecting agricultural sector had a significant impact 

on the business environment in Sri Lanka. The most 

badly effected were the Small and Medium Scale 

Enterprises (SME) and micro business units which 

accounts for approximately 70 per cent of the total 

business environment of the country and represented 

more than 75 per cent of the country’s employment. 

Financial institutions such as Kanrich that is deeply 

rooted in the SME and Micro businesses had to take 

immediate evasive action to maintain financial stability 

and safeguard company’s stakeholder interest. 

adaPtinG to adversity and tryinG 

CirCumstanCes

Kanrich’s core competitive value propositions have 

been shifting from the factor of interest rate and 

management fees to certain other considerations such 

as service sufficiency, accessibility, convenience and 

brand perseverance amongst the competitors. Further, 

emerging changes in socio- economic conditions tend 

to enhance the level of market dynamics. Recent times, 

the Company’s largest business portfolio faced greater 

challenges. Decline in consumer earnings, large debt 

traps among the rural population, unconfirmed rumors 

that the government is planning to write off most of the 

microfinance loan for rural masses led to a significant 

impact on company’s recoveries. This situation led to 

building a large Non-Performance Loan (NPL) portfolio 

and also affected the company’s liquidity position. 

Kanrich management was quick to change its direction 

and adapt fresh strategies to immediate reduction 

of high yield high risk advances to low yield low risk, 

asset backed advances. The company was extremely 

successful archiving this balance and by the first quarter 

of 2019, the company’s financial situation looked solid in 

spite of a negative bottom line of the income statement 

for the year 2018-2019 largely due to provisioning for 

NPL portfolios. The company has also strengthened its 

legal department and has started aggressively resorting 

to legal action for defaulting customers.
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Times of change and challenging circumstances 

bring out the best for us.  Kanrich has planned in 

the subsequent year to face up to the challenges 

thrown out by a dynamic and ever fluctuating macro-

economic conditions.

is ComPlianCe and risk an obstaCle to  

ChanGe - shiftinG mindsets and skillsets  

have Proved Positive results

Finance industry as a whole faced difficulties due to 

unsettled political and economic environment in the 

country.   Kanrich had to seek breakeven conditions 

with 36 branches and more than 1,100 employees. It 

had to face challenges while carrying out a significant 

micro finance sector which had performed well in the 

past but not in the current year. The company had to 

face finance difficulties as a result of defaults from the 

customers due to their economic hardships. In addition, 

the Company’s financials were affected due to non-

payment of dues by other defaulting customers. The 

Company’s NPA became high and it happened to make 

substantial amount of provisioning.

In order to overcome challenges created by the 

macro environment, the Company has undertaken the 

following measures for the coming financial year.  

 Work on a revised plan while maintaining 

flexibility

 Infusing new capital to strengthen the company’s 

financial stability

 Take action to protect and strengthen the market 

place and image

 Follow new strategies to rationalize expenses

 Adhere to re-adjust the lending portfolio such 

as reducing micro portfolio and increasing asset 

backed advances to minimize risks

 Rationalize staff allocation

 Re-organise the structure of the Company
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The risk factors and volatility have largely been 

brought under control during the year 2018, thanks to 

a robust management decisions taken on time, with 

strong internal policies and extremely dedicated staff. 

We are now very well on a course to move towards 

our mission of “being the best corporate entity in the 

country”. The Company expects to maintain its financial 

stability in the coming years.  Kanrich is still the most 

sought financial solution provider for most of its valued 

customers.  

In concluding my message, the Board of Directors 

joins me in saluting the performance of an inspired and 

motivated team, ably led by the Chief Executive Officer 

/ Executive Director Mr Shiran Weerasinghe as they 

delivered a robust performance in a challenging year. 

We also wish to share our gratitude and appreciation 

for the co-operation and initiatives taken by the 

Central Bank of Sri Lanka in their capacity as the 

regulator to strengthen the financial sector. I thank the 

Board of Directors for exercising their judgement and 

contributions in deliberating matters reserved for the 

Board. We trust our stakeholders’ continued confidence 

and high levels of engagement as we look forward to 

delivering superior values to them in the coming years.

Yours sincerely

dr w M Hemachandra
Chairman

05th July 2019
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ceo 
mESSAGE

No two places are exactly the same, but every customer needs the right connections, whether creating a start-up, 

improving their business process, starting a family, investing for retirement, or seeking to leverage 

opportunities in markets across the globe. Life’s better when we’re connected
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dear shareholders

It is with great pleasure I write this message for our 

annual report for the financial year ended 2018 -2019. 

In 2018, we experienced a holistic shift in the economy, 

technology, politics, demographics, and consumer 

behavior. We work and live in a time of continuous 

change and disruption. Customer expectations are 

rapidly shifting with the rise of technology and in 

the face of unpredictable economic conditions. New 

markets are opening up, and bold new ways of working 

are being explored. We are going through the most 

significant period of change in the history of our 

journey.

Significant factor that this report has been compiled 

in the backdrop of a year which saw the emergence 

of a real global economic and financial market crisis 

causing all of us in the sector to face immense 

challenges and take evasive actions.

We conduct our business, in three ways. First, as a 

responsible company, owned by our stakeholders, 

everything we do is aligned with the interests of our 

customers and stakeholders. Second, we filter every 

decision through the lens of our time-tested values. 

Third, we approach challenges with analytical insight, 

diligence, and resilience. At KF we choose to look at 

every challenge as an opportunity.

outlook of sri lanka’s eConomiC  

PerformanCe in the year 2018

A complex political environment and the impact of 

natural disasters, such as floods and prolonged drought 

across the country, made 2018 a challenging year 

for Sri Lanka. As a result, Sri Lanka’s macroeconomic 

performance slowed down. In fact, the growth rate 

declined to a 16-year low of 3.4 percent in 2018. Core 

inflation as measured by the National Consumer Price 

Index was pushed upwards to 4.9% in 2018. However, 

headline inflation was recorded at 7.7%, significantly 

higher than in the recent past, on the back of consumer 

tax revisions and effect on food prices from supply 

disruptions. In 2018 the Government witnessed a 

significant improvement in finances by recording a 

primary surplus as per preliminary data supported by the 

advancement of the Government’s fiscal consolidation 

program. This reflects strongly, despite a challenging 

environment in terms of disaster related costs such as 

relief packages and also delays in implementing certain 

revenue based measures. The Government wishes 

to further strengthen its fiscal consolidation efforts, 

which was re-affirmed by the passing of the new Inland 

Revenue Act that came in to force from 1 April 2018.

Tourism is considered one of the most sorted and 

desired, economic sectors in Sri Lanka. The industry 

contributes approx. 11% of our GDP and employees 

approx. 300,000 personal directly and indirectly. The 

average earning to the country per tourist is approx. 

We are here to help our customers achieve their dreams. We know that when 
we serve you well, we’re helping you create a brighter future - a future 
story that is yours to write and is unique to us.
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US$105 which is way below our regional peers. The 

overall industry seems to be deteriorating in quality 

and barely managed to break even.  Agriculture sector 

stimulates growth in the rest of the economy through 

its forward and backward linkages with the other 

economic sectors. 

Adverse weather conditions that prevailed throughout 

the year 2018 was a major setback for the total 

agriculture sector in Sri Lanka. Most agricultural 

land in the Northern, Northwestern, Moneragala 

and Uva and Eastern, provinces suffered setbacks 

resulting in farmers unable to pay back their debt to 

financial institutions. The construction investment in 

Sri- Lanka has followed the economic changes that 

took place during the last decade. This resulted in a 

significant change particularly in the supply side of the 

construction industry. 

Projections towards the new millennium revealed 

that government policies will be the key deterministic 

factor with its traditional role changing from that of 

an investor and a regulator to that of a facilitator in 

construction.

institutional ChallenGes

The Non-Bank Financial Institutions (NBFI) sector 

witnessed a multitude of challenges posed by depleting 

margins, decline in agricultural and service output, 

higher inflation and unemployment, leading to slower 

credit growth within the year.  Amidst negative or 

marginal growth across all industries, one of the greatest 

challenges the NBFI sector faced was eroding asset 

quality where the industry average of non performing 

advances (NPAs) increased and exerting pressure on 

profitability leading to higher impairment provisions 

mainly due to challenging environmental conditions 

worsen by adverse weather patterns and unstable 

political conditions in the country. The supervisory 

and regulatory framework enacted by the Central 

Bank of Sri Lanka (CBSL) was further strengthened in 

2017 and continued in the year 2018 by improving the 

quality standards of the industry. Tightening the capital 

requirements of non-bank financial institutions would 

coerce the industry towards consolidation.

In the face of such economic under performances 

and political unpredictability in the country financial 

institutions had to re-think its strategy. Financial 

stability and strong assets management together with 

tight controls over cost was necessary to maintain 

status quo.

redefining our journey - focused on 
growing risk calibrated operating 
profits by leveraging our strong 
foundation, and building a more 

granular and asset backed portfolio.

KFL focused on being a future-ready organization 

and has consistently evolved its capabilities to ensure 

agility and value creation in its businesses. This focus is 

integral to the organizations strategy and underscores 

the several pioneering initiatives taken. In fiscal 2019, 

KFL continued to make progress on its strategic 
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objectives even as the year saw significant challenges. 

The organizations businesses focused on growing the 

core operating profits in a risk calibrated and granular 

manner. KFL Board of Directors implemented a number 

of initiatives to strengthen company’s financial position   

and deepen the penetration of products and services, 

thus further strengthening the service outlook. The in-

house developed IT platform and robust organizational 

strategies were key to driving the company’s reach and 

unlocking potential in its businesses.

Historically KFL worked extensively with the rural 

underprivileged masses. We were a leading Micro 

Finance institution in the country with a micro loan 

portfolio of approx. 10Bn in the year 2016. Whilst 

assisting thousands of people who did not have 

access to finance and thereby depriving their access 

to opportunity and contribute to the national economy, 

this served well for the company as well since they 

matured high yield though considered high risk. The 

strong foundation of KFL was bought about from the 

success we had from the Miro Segment.

However, during the year 2018, KFL was faced with 

the greatest challenge in the history of our journey. 

Sluggish economic conditions, uncertain political 

environment, unconfirmed rumors that the government 

is planning to write off micro loans of rural masses 

resulted in KFL accumulating a large NPL portfolio in 

the Micro segment. The board of directors were swift 

to re think the company’s business strategy and way 

forward. It was a destined to shift our focus from the 

Micro segment that provided us high yields but at a 

high risk to more secured, asset backed advances at 

a low yield. Financial stability of the organization, the 

interest of our shareholders, our stakeholders, our staff 

and most importantly our customers was taken very 

seriously in to account.

The large NPL portfolio in the micro segment led to 

a negative bottom line in the income statments for 

the year 2018-2019 through provisioning, keeping 

in line with the accounting standard requirements 

and also with industry best practices. However, on a 

more positive note the company was successful to 

eliminate the risk that existed by reducing the Micro 

loan portfolio from approx. Rs 5.1Bn at the year ended 

March 2018 to Rs 3.2Bn by the year ended March 2019. 

This transformation was done through new strategies 

the company adapted, the changes, inculcating new 

skill, and change in the mind set with key staff and 

strengthening our recoveries effort. New products in 

the form of gold loans, finance leasing, micro leasing  

and consumer loans mainly for public servants were 

developed during the year which changed the outlook 

of our total advance portfolio to a more secured asset 

backed advances though they were considered low 

yield in nature. 

The company has also strengthened its legal department 

and currently, we are constituting legal action against 

defaulting customers. The financial standing of KFL at 

the end of financial year 2018 – 2019 is extremely solid 

and is ready to grow again in its re-defined journey. The 

company also propose to infuse new capital through 

existing and new shareholders to further strengthen 
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its growth and expansion. The Micro loan portfolio 

though reduced and shifted to more secured advances, 

is extremely well rooted in rural Sri Lanka and was 

a key player in providing financial assistance to the 

underprivileged people of this country. 

We do not intend taking our focus and responsibility 

away from this segment, instead we will continue to 

assist such people in a more secured manner. Micro 

finance industry has evolved especially in the South 

American continent where financial companies have a 

direct control over the livelihood and thus recoveries 

are more secured. KFL will bring in new methodologies 

and technology to continue to be a dominant player in 

this segment reducing the risk of default considerably. 

 

a clear vision, backed by definite 
plans, gives us a tremendous feeling 

of confidence and personal power

foCus for the future

The strong concentration we have infused into 

ensuring that we meet our vision of partnering 

the Micro SMEs, business community at large 

and consumption necessities, of this country into 

contributing optimally to this burgeoning economy, 

remains strongly in focus.  The comprehensive range 

of financial solutions we have developed to suit 

the customer diversity has certainly seen tangible 

advantages emerge within our target segments.

Truly committed to our vision, infrastructure and 

technology was very much the catalyst in leveraging 

our strengths and competencies in 2018 and is now 

the firm and stable trusses to take us forward.  In 

entrenching this focus, the core values of the company 

however remain the overarching tenet in the overall 

growth strategy, the evolution and transformations the 

company has experienced and will, given the external 

and macro landscape, continue to experience.

The company will continue to aggressively focus 

on developing a robust structure that will enable to 

absorb new growth opportunities whilst enhancing 

the KFL service offering to the sector. Strategic 

intent for 2019 includes quantum change in approach 

with regard to focus on product innovation, channel 

strategy, value added services, and superior delivery 

which will enable KF to create greater agility in 

catalyzing growth of our customer community.

the role of the Ceo is to enable 
people to excel, help them explore 

their own wisdom, promote  
employee engagement at  

work place, and accept  
responsibility for making change

At KFL we do not imagine that we will find the best 

at recruitment, but we do strongly believe that we 

can make our people the best. Promoting employee 

engagement is a vital part of our organization culture. 

As the CEO of the company I can very proudly state 

that KFL has a very dedicated, motivated and engaged 
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Providing clean drinking water to rural schools in 

Batticaloa, Urumaya Surakimu project where KFL staff 

was involved in cleaning the environment, Kanrich 

Liya Sawiya project was designed to empower rural 

woman to create elegant Banana Leaf Crafts was 

carried out across the country through our thirty-six 

branches. A five-day capacity building workshop was 

held simultaneously in Anuradhapura, Nikaweratiya 

and Thambuththegama. KF staff was also engaged in 

food donation campaigns in many parts of the country 

during natural disasters.

In conclusion I am joined by my Chairman, fellow Board 

of Directors and our staff to show our appreciation and 

gratitude to all our shareholders, external stakeholders 

and most importantly our customers for demonstrating 

their trust and confidence in us during the perusing 

year and trust the same level of trust and confidence 

will remain for the future

Yours sincerely

shiran weerasinghe
CEO / Executive Director

05th July 2019

staff that delivers their services at the highest level 

of professionalism, honesty and integrity. As an 

organization we value and believe in a high degree of 

integrity, honesty and ethical behavior in all our staff 

dealings. Whilst we respect the dignity of people, we 

also encourage and respect diversity among our team 

while creating a feeling of belongingness across the 

organization.

it Platform

The IT knowhow in the company continues to evolve 

with homegrown in-house developments. Currently 

we are attempting to inplace a robust process and 

a modernized operating system that has given a 

considerable leverage over most of our competitors. 

We are about to become a totally paperless 

organization with all information flowing through the 

intranet and day to day transaction conducted through 

the capabilities of the system. These developments 

will  enable us to provide our branch managers, zonal 

heads and other decision making personal more 

real time information about customer perspectives, 

competitor activities and micro economic indicators 

that will assist them to make more rational decisions as 

well as serve our customer’s promptly and better.  

Csr aCtivities

In-spite of major challenges company faced during 

the year 2018, our commitment towards our social 

responsibility was never compromised. During the 

year 2018, we initiated many new CSR initiatives. 
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BoaRd oF diRectoRs

Dr. W. M. HeMacHanDra
Chairman / Director

Mr. SHiran WeeraSingHe
CEO / Executive Director

Mr. K.K.D. ranaWaKa
Director

Mr. T.L.B. HuruLLe
Director

eng. (Dr.) K. M. S. B. reKogaMa
Executive Director
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Dr. W. M. HeMacHanDra
Chairman / Director

B.Sc (Bus Ad) (Hons), Dip. (Acc), 
MA (Econ), Ph.D (Econ)

Dr. Hemachandra was an Assistant Governor of the Central 
Bank of Sri Lanka with 35 years of experience. Prior to this 
post he held many senior positions in several departments 
and being a member in many internal committees in the 
Central Bank. Dr. Hemachandra holds a First Class (Hons) 
degree in B.Sc Business Administration from the University of 
Sri Jayawardenapura , Masters Degree in Economics from the 
Simon Fraser University - Canada and a Ph.D. in Economics 
from the University of Colombo. He also holds a Diploma in 
Accountancy from Sri Lanka Technical College. In addition, he 
has undergone many local and foreign training programmes. 
He also served as a lecturer at the Centre for Banking Studies, 
a Visiting Lecturer at Universities of Colombo and Kelaniya 
and the Institute of Bankers of Sri Lanka. He has published 
many research articles in recognized journals and authored 
for several books in the field of economics and matters 
related to Banking Industry.

Mr. SHiran WeeraSingHe
CEO / Executive Director

B. Sc (Acct) (Sp.) Hons, MBA (Aus),  
FCA, ACMA, MCPM, MIPA (Aus)

Mr. Weerasinghe is a fellow member of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. He has obtained the 
Accountancy & Financial Management Degree from the 
University of Sri Jayawardenapura and completed his MBA 
from the University of Southern Queensland, Australia. 
He started his career at Messrs Ernst & Young. He counts 
over 20 years of experience and held senior Management 
positions in several institutions in the field of Finance. He 
is also a Certified Management Accountant (ACMA), a 
Member of the Institute of Public Accountants of Australia 
(MIPA Aus) and a Member of the Professional Managers’ 
Association (MCPM).
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eng. (Dr.) K. M. S. B. reKogaMa
Executive Director

FIIESL, MIAESL, I. Eng., GCGI (London), 
Ph. D. (Honorary)

Having over 40 years of experience in Engineering, 
Transportation, Oil Exploration, Pharmaceuticals and 
Plantation Industries, Eng. (Dr.) Rekogama has held 
high positions  in the State sector  as the Chairman/ 
Managing Director of State Pharmaceutical Manufacturing 
Corporation(2001-2004), Chairman Janatha Estate 
Development Board ( 2015 Jan to Dec.). He is also a Past 
President of Institution of Incorporated Engineers of Sri 
Lanka, Past Vice-President of Institute of Automotive 
Engineers of Sri Lanka. He was the District Governor of 
International Association of Lions Clubs District 306A1 Sri 
Lanka 2008/2009.

Mr. K.K.D. ranaWaKa
Director

LLB (University of Colombo)
Attorney –at – Law

Mr. Kingsley Ranawaka counts over 20 years experience 
in the field of Law / Administration. In 2005, he was 
appointed as the Chairman of Sri Lanka Foreign 
Employment Agency and thereafter was promoted as the 
Chairman of Sri Lanka Bureau of Foreign Employment 
(SLBFE). He was the former Chairman at Maga Neguma 
Road Construction Equipment company (MNRCE), a fully 
Government owned company, which was established 
under the purview of the Ministry of Ports and Highway up 
to April 2015. Currently he is practicing as an  
Attorney –at – Law. 
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Mr. T.L.B. HuruLLe
Director

Dip. R&AC (UK), C&G Cert. 
S&T. Ref (UK)

Mr. T. L. B. Hurulle, who is an engineer by profession 
with local and foreign professional qualifications and 
counts for over 20 years of experience and exposure 
in the areas of Technical , Managerial , Administration 
and high level Policy Implementation. He was the 
Director General at the Telecommunications Regulatory 
Commission of Sri Lanka (TRC) and a member of the 
Public Representations Committee (PRC), Sri Lanka 
Constitutional Reform. Mr. Hurulle is presently, 
a Non-Executive Independent Director of 
the Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
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Mr. SaDeepa raTnayaKe
General Manager – Investments

Mr. eranDa aMaL goDage 
General Manager – Marketing

Mr. Varuna 
WaLgaMa
Head of HR

Mr.  THuSHara 
WijeWarDena

Assistant General Manager-Credit

MrS. W. SHyaMinie 
FernanDo

Senior Assistant General Manager

Mr. r. SujeeWa 
WarnaKuLaSuriya

Assistant General Manager

coRpoRate ManageMent
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Mr. praDeep BaSnayaKe
Deputy General Manager

Mr. raVi inDra KuMara joSepH
Deputy General Manager - IT

Mr. ajiTH 
perera

Head of Compliance

Mr. SaraTH 
THiLaKarTaTHna

Assistant General Manager – Gold Loans

Mr. HarSHaDeVa 
aBayajeeWa

Head of Finance
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Mr. eranDa aMaL goDage 
General Manager – Marketing
Chartered Marketer, Practicing Marketer, MBA (UK), ACMA, 
DipM (UK), FCPM, FIPFM (UK), MCIM (UK), MCMI (UK), 
MSLIM, MGARP, MIM (SL), 

Mr. Godage is a Banker, a Chartered Marketer and a 
Practicing Marketer with 19 years of experience having 
started his career at Sampath Bank PLC. He holds a MBA 
from the Cardiff Metropolitan University UK,  Certified 
Management Accountant (Australia) and Diploma in 
Marketing from the Chartered Institute of Marketing 
(UK). He is a Fellow Member of Institute of Chartered 
Professional Managers of Sri Lanka, the Institute of 
Professional Financial Managers UK. He is also a Member 
of the Chartered Institute of Marketing UK, The Chartered 
Management Institute of UK, Sri Lanka Institute of 
Marketing, Global Association of Risk Professionals and 
Institute of Management of Sri Lanka. He joined  
Kanrich Finance Ltd., in 2009.

Mr. SaDeepa raTnayaKe
General Manager – Investments
MSLIM (SL)

Mr. Ratnayake started his career at Seylan Merchant 
Bank Ltd and counts over 20 years of experience in the 
industry. He has held several senior positions in marketing 
in the Financial Service Sector. He joined Kanrich Finance 
Ltd in 2010 and currently heads the company’s Leasing,  
Business Loans, Mortgage Loans, Personal Loans, 
Consumer Loans and Real Estate business divisions. He is 
a Member of the Sri Lanka Institute of Marketing. 

Mr. raVi inDra KuMara joSepH
Deputy General Manager - IT
MBCS (UK) , Higher Dip. (Computer Science)

Mr. Joseph is a Software Engineer by profession with 
almost 17 years experience in designing, implementing 
and maintaining software in Commercial Banks, Merchant 

coRpoRate ManageMent

Banks and Finance Companies. He is a member of British 
Computer Society and has been involved in many system 
development projects in the finance industry. He has 
working experience at OpenArc system Management 
and several other finance companies. He joined Kanrich 
Finance Ltd in 2010 and was instrumental in developing 
the Core Banking Software for KFL, Branchless Bank 
Solutions (POS) , SMS Gateway and KFL Mobile 
Application.

Mr. praDeep BaSnayaKe
Deputy General Manager
MBA (UK)

Mr. Basnayake is a banker by profession with 22 years of 
experience. He started his career at The Hongkong and 
Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd before joining Sampath 
Bank PLC and DFCC Vardhana Bank PLC. He joined 
Kanrich Finance Ltd in 2011 and currently functions as the 
Deputy General Manager and holds a MBA from the Cardiff 
Metropolitan University, UK. He is also a former National 
Rugby Captain and National Rugby selector. 

MrS. W. SHyaMinie FernanDo
Senior Assistant General Manager
MBA (UK), BA (sp) Hons Business Statistics,  
Pg Dip in Marketing J’pura

Mrs. Fernando joined Kanrich Finance Ltd in July 2010 
as Business Development Manager. She graduated from 
the University of Sri Jayawardenapura with a Second 
Class Upper and completed her Postgraduate Diploma 
in Marketing from the University of Sri Jayawardenapura. 
She started her career at the Auditor Generals Department 
and then joined The Finance PLC in 2000 before joining LB 
Finance and MBSL Savings Bank and currently functions 
as a Zonal Head. She holds an MBA in Anglia Ruskin 
University, UK. 
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Mr.  THuSHara WijeWarDena
Assistant General Manager – Credit
MBS (Col), Pg Dip in Business Management (Col), AIB

Mr. Thushara started his career at Seylan Bank in 1992.  He 
held several senior positions in Pan Asia Bank, Merchant 
Bank of Sri Lanka, Lisvin Investments and Sarvodaya 
Development Finance before joining Kanrich. He holds 
a Postgraduate Diploma in Business Management and 
Master of Business Studies from University of Colombo. He 
is an Associate Member of Institute of Bankers of Sri Lanka 
and Life member of Association of Professional Bankers of 
Sri Lanka.  Mr. Thushara counts over 27 years of experience 
in the Banking & Financial services industry.

Mr. r. SujeeWa WarnaKuLaSuriya
Assistant General Manager
Dip in Micro Finance (IBSL)

Mr. Sujeewa joined Kanrich Finance Ltd. in 2011 as the 
product manager in Microfinance. He holds a diploma in 
Microfinance from Institute of Bankers of Sri Lanka. He 
counts more than 19 years of experience in microfinance 
sector and held a senior position in HNB Grameen 
(Formerly known as Ceylinco Grameen) before joining 
Kanrich finance Ltd.

Mr. HarSHaDeVa aBayajeeWa
Head of Finance 
B. Mgt (University of Kelaniya), MBA (University of 
Colombo), ACA, ACMA

Mr. Harsha is an associate member of Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and Institute of 
Certified Management of Accountants of Sri Lanka. He 
has obtained his first  Degree from University of Kelaniya 
and completed his MBA from University of Colombo. He 
started his accounting career at Ernst & Young and counts 
over 17 years of experience in Audit & Assurance, Leisure & 
Hospitality, Retail Trading and Financial Sector.

Mr. Varuna WaLgaMa
Head of HR
PQHRM

Mr. Walgama counts over 27 years of experience in the 
Human Resources field in apparel, telecommunications and 
Oil & Fats industries with local and international exposure. He 
holds a PQHRM (IPM), Postgraduate certificates in Human 
Resource Management and Human Resource Development 
from Post graduate Institute of Management, Sri Lanka. He 
joined Kanrich Finance Ltd in 2016.

Mr. SaraTH THiLaKarTaTHna
Assistant General Manager – Gold Loans

Mr. Thilakartathna is the head of Gold Loans (Pawning) at 
Kanrich Finance. He has over 35 years of experience and 
has followed courses and obtained qualifications from 
the Central Bank of Sri Lanka, The Gem and Jewellery 
Corporation and N.I.B.M. Furthermore he has worked as 
an auctioneer for over 25 years and is also a trainer for 
pawning procedures for Government regional banks. 

Mr. ajiTH perera
Head of Compliance
PG. DIP in Bank Management

Mr. Ajith Perera is a well experienced banker with overall 
knowledge in banking and has over 36 years of banking 
experience. He started his career at Commercial Bank of 
Ceylon Ltd, and subsequently joined Seylan Bank Ltd. At 
Seylan Bank he held several senior positions and finally 
retired as an Assistant General Manager. After retirement 
he was employed as the Head of Risk and Compliance 
at Pan Oceanic Bank, Solomon Islands. He started his 
primary education at Nalanda College, Colombo. He is a 
Post Graduate Diploma holder in Bank Management and 
a Diploma holder in Bank Management from the Institute 
of Bankers in Sri Lanka. Also he holds a Certificate in 
Business Management from the Association of Business 
Executives UK. He is a Member of Institute of Certified 
Professional Managers of Sri Lanka.
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senioR ManageMent

Mr. ranaSingHa 
a. KarunaTiLaKe

Zonal Head Mr. g.r.V.a. BanDara
Manager - Internal 

Audit

Mr. DiMuTHu perera
Zonal Head

BSc in Mathamatics,  
PGDM (India), PGDMM(India)

Mr. KuSHan 
gunaSeKara

Head of Leasing

Mr. raTnaSiri 
iLLeperuMa

Head of Real Estate

Mr. DuMinDa 
WanniaracHcHi

Zonal Head
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Mr. SureKa 
SenaViraTHna

Zonal Head
Mr. SujiTH DiSSanayaKe

Senir Manager
Dip.in HR 

(Chamber of Commerce)

Mr. cHiTHraBanDu 
De SiLVa

Zonal Head
Dip. in Marketing (J’pura)

Mr. B.H. iranga 
niroSHan
Zonal Head

Mr. ananDa DiaS
Zonal Head

Mr. jagaTH gaMage
Zonal Head

Dip. in Bus. Mgt, Dip. in Mkt. Mgt
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mr. rajitha assalaarachchi
Dip.in Banking & Finance

Senior Manager

ms. Chandrika Gunasekara
Dip, in Credit Management & Higher 

Dip. in Executive Secretaries, 
Manager - Credit /  Legal 

Administration Department

mr. rasika dissanayake
Senior Manager

mr. nuwan illukwaththa
DIBM

Senior Manager

mr. rukmal fernando
Senior Manager

Recoveries & Investigations

mr. nadeeka Jayasundara
Senior Manager

mr. suranga liyanage
Manager – Corporate Finance

CA – Passed Finalist

mr. duleeka b. navarathna
HNDA

Senior Manager

mr. dadira Peiris
BSc (Agri), MAAT, CBA

Manager - Administration

opeRational ManageMent
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mr, mahima ranasinghe
Dip. in Marketing ASMLIM
Manager - Ran Sihinaya

mr. n.l.t. ishara sanjaya
B.Com (Sp) Hons,  

Dip.in SBM (SL), AMSLIM
Manager – Corporate Communications

mr. rasika theekshana
Senior Manager

ms. nirasha ruwanthi
Dip. in CRM

Manager - Customer Relations

mr. Chathura d.  mahawedage
MBA (UoK),  

BMS (Sp.HRM) (OUSL)
Manager – FD Operation

mr. manoj Wariyagoda
Dip. in Micro Finance

Senior Manager - CSR

mr. anjana samarakoon
Senior Manager

mr. roshan ramesh
Manager - Personal / 

Consumer & Educational Loans

mrs. monika Withanagama
MBA(UK), MSLIM
Senior Manager
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operational Management

mrs. hiranya Warnakulasooriya
Dip.in Mgt. MSc (Mkt)

Senior Manager - Savngs, 
Research & Development

mr. mahela Wijayalath
MBA (UK) BA (Hons) (UK)

Senior Manager

ms. sarasi aluthge
LL.B (Hons) Colombo

Attorney –at-Law & Notary Public
Legal Officer



29ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19



ANNUAL REPORT 2018/1930

buSiNESS mOdEl
Our strategy is focused on improving the financial wellbeing of our customers; having the right people 

who listen, learn and adapt; putting the best tools and insights into their hands; and focusing on 

those few things that really add value to customers and doing them right the first time
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Our vAluE CrEATiONS
Successful businesses have adopted models that allow them to fulfill client needs at a competitive price and a sustainable 

cost. Over time, many businesses revise their business models from time to time to reflect changing business environments, 

turbulent economic conditions and market demands

Continue to listen to the voices of the 

stake holders to verify that products 

and services are creating the intended 

impact outcomes and change to  

their lives

ouR deliveRaBles
Continue to measure outputs and 

outcomes on an ongoing basis, 

update the impact assessments 

and use it as a tool to inform future 

decision making regarding the 

company’s expansion and growth

value deRive
Continuing to enhance the capabilities 

toward sustainable business prospect, 

and thereby delivering and balancing 

a uniformity of value creation to the 

stakeholders.

ouR sustainaBility
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valuve cReation Model

CorPorate
system

i
n

p
u

t

individual 
Lending & 

Gold Loans

Micro
Financing

Business 
Loans 

Financing

Financing bottom line of the 
economy bywhich assisting 
for the rural economy’s 
development, avoding poverty 
and uplift their living lifestyle 

Consist of a comprehensive 
leading portfolio with wide 
range of finacial requirment of 
customers, such as Gold Loans, 
Micro Leasing, Finance Leasing, 
Mortgage Loans

The company deliver grated 
financial support to the medium 
scale enterprices and this is 
essential us to contiue meet their 
financial needs
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Resources and Strengths KFL Financial Business

82,000

48

10

36

1,228

8.2

22

Interlectual

Micro Customers

Years

Years

Peoples

Billion

Peoples

Providing grater level of financial and 
technical advice to support their small 
scale of businesses

History of supporting financial 
solutions to wide range of customers

Got into diversified 
product portfolio

10

6

985

FD Pronote base

Billion

Million

Got into diversified 
product portfolio

Fixed Deposits and 
Prommissory Note

Intitutional Borrowings

Islandwide branches 
network

Number of employees

Total assets per employee

Corporate and Senior 
Management with greater 
level of educational talent and 
experiences

Brand image, trust, 
confident and relationship 
with clients established 
over the years

our mission

our vision

our foundation

To foresee of being the best corporate entity in the country,
Performing steady practices, conducting business with responsibility, consistently 

outperforming our peers, and satisfying the desires of customers through excellence 
in performing its services and delivering innovative products, while continuously 

promoting a learning culture and providing a dynamic and challenging environment 
for employees to create a value addition to its stakeholders

To move towards achieving the goal of being 
“the best corporate entity in the country”, 

performing steady practices and satisfying the desires of customers.

Relationship Without Borders
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CorPorate
system
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KFL Financial Business Business Achievements Value provide to
the society

Interest Income

VAT,MBT and DRL on 
Financial Services

Generating return to the 
debt holders

Allocated for emplyee soalaries, 
allowances

Real Estate and other 
operating income

Fee and 
commission income
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KFL Value Creation

Government

Employee Value Creation

Support of local community through various CSR projects such as 
Thaksalawa English Language programme, Sasunata Diriya henhancing technical knowledge 
of business and kind of Enviornment Protection Programme, Saraboomi Agriculture project, 

Drinking water pronect for developing market for the community

Community Engagement

Generated a total income of 3,110 Millions

2,877 Million

58 Million

1,001 Million

Sustainable brand image with the 48 
years service

Corporate Value

500 Million

Income tax
20 Million

Contribution to defined 
benefit plans

74 Million

196 Million37 Million

Providing 
technical no 
how to rurual 

eras  people with 
variety of CSR 

project

Providing 
infarstructure 

through drinking 
water project

Generating job 
opportunities 
through the 

branch network

Providing risky 
funds to the 

bottom line of 
economy

Providing 
generating level 

of tax to the 
government

Plemanting 
Thakshalawa 

project for 
community 
language 

development
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stakeHoldeR engageMent

Management
information

system

Gathering 
information 

about different 
stakehodler groups

identification and 
categoriaation of 

stakeholders

indentification of 
issue and varies 
objectives of the 

stakeholder groups

At KFL, we believe that constructive 
stakeholder engagement keeps 
us abreast of changes, attuned 
to possibilities and focused 
on remaining relevant to out 
stakeholders. It keeps us effective 
for the long term. This is essential for 
us to continue meeting the financial 
needs of our customers, developing 
meaningful careers for our people 
and making a difference in the 
communities in which we operate, 
in a manner distinctive to KFL. We 
continually seeks out stakeholders’ 
views, concerns and expectations 
through conversations, collaborative 
initiatives and research. By adopting 
an inclusive approach, we hope 
that they in turn will have a deeper 
understanding of our propose, 
practices and performance.

Customer

Employees

Government

Community

Shareholder

Supplier

Material Aspect

Yes

no

no

Stakeholder
engagment

Yes

Evaluation

Setting goals 
and objectives

Strategy
implementation

Materiality
testing

Fulfill stakeholder 
objectives

Reporting
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e Profitability 
Growth 
Increasing 
Quliaty of 
the Assests 
Growth of the 
Assets base

(1) Product Development and diversification

(2) Enhance Service Excellency

(3) Maintaining Customer Privacy

(4) Introduce risk based interest rate policy for 
funding and lending

(5) Carry out welfare focused CSR projects for 
customers and their family mebmers

(6) Complaint resolution

(7) Expansion of branch nework

(8) Extablish relatioinships with external 
institutions to identitfy target customers.

(1) Implement comprehensive performance 
appraisal system

(2) Set a mechanism to identify timely training 
needs and catering for such requirements

(3) Work-life balance, ewual opportunity, 
diversity and  fiarness

(1) Develop a comprehensive complaince 
reporting framework

(2) Fncourage code of best practicew within the 
company.

(1) Implementint proper mechanisms to devlop 
and efficient and effective supplier  
selection policy

(1) Expansion of branch network

(2) product Development and diversificatioin

(3) Identify key areas for centralization to 
improve branch processes and productivty

(4) Introuce drive through ranking systems 
based on cost to income ratios and 
efficiency ratios as a strategy to stop 
leakages

(5) Focus on organizatioin structure, propoerty 
portfolio, information technology, 
automation, outscouring, management and 
other areas for improvement

(1) Implement commnity programmes aiming 
vulnerable customers and provide them 
financial and other support to improve their 
livelihood

(2) Contribute to developing social 
infrastructure that improves quality of lives

(3) Raise awareness about environmental 
contamination and minimize pollution

GOVERNMENT AND 
REGULATORS

Develop an organizational 
culture and business 
model whereby adherence 
to laws and regulations 
and best practices of the 
industry is an integral part 
of the compnay.

Acquisitioni of 
new customer 
in both 
existing and 
new market. 
Retention 
of good 
customes. 
Developing 
Cutomer 
Brand 
Awareness

Effetive 
system for all 
aspects  of 
business and 
compliance 
Increases 
efficiency of 
the business 
above the 
industry 
average

Skilled and 
mtovated 
workfoce 
Comprehensive 
Research & 
Development

Executive of the strategic Plans Further distinguish the overall 
objectives to stakeholder grups

Strategies Initiation toward to  
achieve the objective

Through innovative 
and efficient processes, 
renjder high quality 
finandial solutioins 
and provide adequate 
information to 
customers, in order to 
assist them in making 
informative decisioin

Customer

Creating an pleasant 
working environment 
through empowerment, 
skill development and 
out bound activities.

emPloyees

Extend the support 
for those who are 
disadvantged in the 
community and improve 
quality of their lives 
while contributing 
and putting effort to 
prevent environmental 
containation

COMMUNITY AND 
ENVIRONMENT

Enable shareholder 
wealth creation and 
sustainable growth

SHAREHOLDERS

Set transparent and 
fair mechansim for 
procument which 
facilitates the prevailing 
business model.

SUPPLIERS

GoALS StRAtEGiES
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We understand that identifying the diverse needs of our stakeholders is key to generating sustainable value for them. 
Our robust stakeholder engagement mechanisms ensure that we are constantly in touch with all our stakeholder 
groups and feedback thus obtained are a crucial input in strategy formulation and risk management. The following 
section describes the expectations, engagement method and the engagement frequency of the relevant stakeholder 
groups during the year under review.

stakeholder engagement

stakeholder expectation engagement method frequency

Customers Meeting customer expectations  Customer satisfaction surveys Bi- annually 
 on product & service features   
 and  ensuring high quality &  Continuous Meetings with Regularly 
 efficient products & services  Customers (Centre Leader 
 delivered in an environmentally- Meetings) 
 friendly and socially responsible  
 manner Information dissemination via Ongoing 
  printed reports, telephone,  
  e-mail, corporate websites and 
  business development activities.

shareholders Create sustainable shareholders’ General meetings Annually 
 expectations by providing the   
 best returns.  Annual Reports  Annually 
 
  Discussion forums, Quarterly 
  progress reviews

employees Providing a safe and enabling  Annual get-together Annually 
 environment, equal opportunities,  
 culture of meritocracy, enhancement  Training & Development Regularly 
 of skills and knowledge, seamless  
 engagement, providing feedback and  Welfare activities Ongoing &  
 encouraging work-life balance  annually 
 providing feedback and encouraging  Joint consultative committees, 
 work-life balance open door policy, sports events, Ongoing 
  CSR programmes, inviting 
  employees’ ideas 
 
  Performance reviews Annually
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stakeholder expectation engagement method frequency

Government Contribution to the country’s economy  Compliance reporting Regularly 
 through strategic investments, creating  
 direct and indirect employment,   Tax Payments Monthly/ 
 timely payment of taxes and   quarterly 
 stimulating the local economy. Annual registration fee Annually

Central bank Carrying out operations in compliance Compliance reporting Regularly 
of sri lanka  with all relevant rules and regulations  
 and operating as a responsible  
 corporate citizen, adhering to sound  
 corporate governance practices. 

Community/  Stimulating local economy through  Corporate social responsibility Monthly 
society procurement and providing direct  programs 
 and indirect employment whilst  
 carrying out operations without a  
 negative impact on natural resources,  
 ensuring that the company remains a  
 responsible organization

suppliers Fostering long term sustainable  Supplier review meetings Compliance 
 business relationships that benefit   reporting 
 both sides.

Competitors Carrying out our operations in an 
 ethical manner and creating a  
 sustainable relationship with  
 our business rivals.

media  Website, press releases, media  Ongoing 

  briefings, disclosures, media  

  coverage & sponsorships. 

Promply inform to the people, regarding  

the positive and nagative expects of the 

company’s operation and helps to avoide 

vulnerabilities of its, to community as a whole 

Stratergic planning
implementation 
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MateRiality analysis

The content included in this report has been selected and prioritized based on the feedback obtained from our 
stakeholder engagement (as detailed in the previous section) as well as our strategic direction and contextual 
trends. In addition to the identified material aspects this report also provides disclosures pertaining to the company’s 
economic, social and environmental performance in line with the GRI guidelines. We have also clearly disclosed how 
the material aspects correspond to the aspects prescribed by the GRI guidelines.

the process we follow for determining material content can be demonstrated as follows;

Identify matters that 
can impact our value 
creation process 
with reference to 
inputs required 
for the process 
and the impact of 
stakeholders

Evaluate their 
significance to 
the company and 
the impacted 
stakeholders 

Determine matters to 
be disclosed in the 
integrated report

Prioritize matters 
based on their 
relative importance
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Importance to KFL

3, 4, 7, 8

13, 14 5, 11

1, 2, 6, 9, 10, 12

material aspect Corresponding Gri aspect

1.  Financial Performance Economic Performance

2.  Business Growth -

3.  Diversified products -

4.  Marketing and Promotions -

5.  Information Systems and Technology -

6.  Service Quality and Customer Satisfaction -

7.  Process efficiencies -

8.  Customer data privacy.  Product responsibility: customer privacy

9.  Talent Attraction Employment, Diversity and equal  
  opportunity, child labor, forced or  
  compulsory labor.

10.  Learning and development Training and development.

11.  Retention Health and Safety, Industrial relations

12.  Governance  Compliance- Product responsibility

13.  Preserving the Planet Raw Materials, Energy, Water, Waste and  
  Effluents, Emissions.

14.  Empowering our business partners  Local Communities 
 and communities
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Our value creation model outlines how we create value for our key stakeholders through 

our business activities, and identifies the inputs – or value drivers – that we rely on to 

enable us to deliver that value and meet our strategic objectives.
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mANAGEmENT  
diSCuSSiON ANd ANAlySiS

By transforming our business – embedding a purpose and values led culture and simplifying our products and 

services – we aim to create long-term value for all of our stakeholders.

indeed, we have established our financial service for 49 years in sri lanka. throughout our 
history, we had delivered numerous values to our stakeholder. today, we have temporally 
head backed. Climate change, social and economic inequality and unfair business practices 
are some of the issues creating unprecedented impacts that pose a risk to the long-term 
sustainability of our business and threaten the well-being of future generations. thus, as 
a one organization, we are strongly believing our strength and capabilities will navigate 
us to “sail through storm”

“SAil ThrOuGh STOrm”
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Financial capital

overvieW of the eConomiC Conditions

The Sri Lankan economy has been further slower to 
indicate the GDP growth rate of 3.2% during the year 
in compare to the same of 3.4% of the previous year. 
The growth is mainly supported by the expansion in 
service sector by 4.7% and recovery of agricultural 
sector to indicate a growth rate of 4.8% which was 
adversely affected by the drought that prevailed during 
the previous year. The external sector of the economy 
was volatile during the year in response to tightening 
of global financial conditions, particularly changes 
in monitory policies especially in USA and capital 
outflows from emerging market economies. As a 
consequence the pressure was on exchange rates and 
it was further exacerbated by the political uncertainty 
prevailed in the country during the year under review. 
However, the financial sector continued to expand 
moderately amidst challenging environment both 
externally and internally.  

industry

The performance of the sector of non-bank financial 
institutions have been moderated during the year in 
terms of credit growth, profitability and non-performing 
loans Certain policy measures such as curtailing 
importation and granting credit on motor vehicles 
negatively affected the core product; leasing and 
that as a consequence the firms in the industry were 
compelled to shift on to other products. However 
the sector reported an asset growth of 5.6% during 
the year. As a whole, the sector maintained a healthy 
capital level and liquidity buffers over and above 
statutory requirement. A change in the funding mix 
could also be observed; increased asset base has 
mainly been funded through institutional borrowings 
while public deposits increased slightly. The 
investment portfolio reported a negative growth of 7.1% 
during the year in compare to 5.7% growth during the 
previous year.

As far as the credit risk is concerned, the NPA ratio has 
increased from 7.7% during the year in compare to 5.9% 
during previous year as a consequence of unfavorable 
weather conditions, slowing down economic activities 
and certain adverse effects of the policy decisions by 
the government. The interest rate risk of the sector 
slightly increased following hike in interest rates during 
the year. The liquid assets to total assets ratio has 
declined from 8.9% during 2017 to 7.6% during the year 
under review. Further the sector has reported a slower 
profitability growth rate of 6% during the year.

Profitability

Both profit before tax and Profit after tax has declined 
during the year in compare to previous year as a 
consequence of low interest income and fee income 
and increase in impairment cost following the adoption 
of expected credit loss model under SLFRS 09. The 
interest income and fee income on the main portfolio 
of the company namely micro lending has declined 
drastically due to rising NPA ratio following the  
debt relief program in drought affected areas 
implemented and consequent curtailing of micro 
lending during the year 

net interest margin

shareholders’ fund rs.

20%

1,210 Mn
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non-interest inCome

A decline in non-interest income could be observed 
as a consequence of decrease in fee and commission 
income following the curtailment of micro lending 
under the bad conditions prevailed. Real estate income 
too has drastically declined due to the adoption 
of SLFRS 15 (Revenue Recognition from Customer 
Contracts) and prevailing bad market conditions. Write 
off recoveries has increased due to continuous efforts 
in recovery and other operating income has gone 
up by 700% as a consequence of the recognition of 
government grants as other operating income on the 
write off of micro loans under the debt relief program 
in drought affected areas.

    2018 2019  
  rs.mn rs.mn Change

Profit before Income Tax and 110 -221 -301% 
VAT & NBT on Financial Services

Income Tax and VAT & NBT on -126 61 148% 
Financial Services

Profit after Income Tax and -16 -160 -900% 
VAT & NBT on Financial Services

interest inCome and net interest marGin

Net interest Margin also has declined during the 
year as a consequence of high deposit interest rates 
prevailed and drop in interest income particularly the 
interest income on micro lending.

    2018 2019  
  rs.mn rs.mn Change

Interest Income 3,132             2,877  -8%

Interest Expenses (1,118)           (1,001) -1%

Net Interest Income 2,014             1,875  -7%

    2018 2019  
  rs.mn rs.mn Change

Net Fee and Commission 83 37 -55% 
Income

Net Income From 148 47 -682% 
Real Estate Sales

9 Fair Value Gain from 3 47 0 
Investment Properties

Write off Recoveries 61 -100% 30%

Net Other Operating Income 11 87 -700%

    292 232 -21%

net interest margin
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Composition of non-interest income 17/18

Composition of non-interest income 18/19

imPairment CharGes and Write off
Impairment Charges has increase by 123% during the 
year under review in compare to last year due to the 
adoption of expected credit model under SLFRS 09.

imPairment  2018 2019  
CharGes rs.mn rs.mn Change

Loans and other Receivables 265 607 1290%

Lease Rental and Hire 26 2 -92% 
Purchase Receivables

Other Receivables 3 46 1433%

    294 656 123%

  2018 2019  
  rs.mn rs.mn Change

Personnel Expenses 644                592  -8%

Depreciation and Amortization 66                 74  12%

Other Operating Expenses              953                1012  6%

    1663 1678 1%

Write off 2018 2019  
  rs.mn rs.mn Change

Loans and other Receivables 609 0 -100%

Lease Rental and Hire 12 0 -0% 
Purchase Receivables

    621 0 -0%

impairment Charges and Write off

oPeratinG exPenses
Operating expenses remained almost the same in 
compare to previous year. The personal cost has 
gone down as the number of staff declined. The other 
operating income has increased by 6% following 
increase in advertising and business promotions 
particularly the increase in introducer commissions on 
micro leasing.

Net fee and 
commission 

income

Net fee and 
commission income

Other Operation 
Income

Net Income for 
Real Estate Sales

Net Income for 
Real Estate Sales

Other Operation 
Income

Fair value gain

Fair value gain

20%

0%

64%

16%
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operating expences

Composition of loans and advances 18/19

Cost to income ratio

Cost to inCome
Cost to income ratio has increased by 11% in compare 
to previous year as a consequence of the decline in 
interest income during the year under review.

ProduCt mix
The product mix has got changed drastically to 
indicate an increase in secured portfolio while 
unsecured portfolio declined; the compositions of 

lease Receivables and gold loans has increased 
from 16% and 5% of previous year to 22% and 13% 
respectively during current year while the composition 
of micro loan portfolio has declined from 52% of 
previous year to 37% during current year.

Personal Loans against 
FD& Pro Note

Corporate Term Loans

Micro Loans

Gold Loans

Consumer Loans

Ran Sihina Loans

Lease & Hire Puchase

Mortgage Loans

Business Loans Real Estate Loans

Personal Loans

Staff Loans

Welada Warama and 
Saviya Loans

3%
0%

22%

37%

13%

1%

1%

3%

6% 8%

3%

2%

1%
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Portfolios especially in micro loan portfolio. However, 
the company is confident that, NPA can be reduced 
through increasing the concentration on secured 
products such as gold loans and micro leasing. Further 
Micro lending has already been curtailed and confined 
to quality lending.

shareholders’ fund
Shareholders’ Fund has declined from 1,793 Mn of 
the previous year to Rs. 1,211 Mn of current year as a 
consequence of loss position reported and adoption 
of new accounting standards (SLFRS 09 and SLFRS 
15) during the year under review. Further this has 
resulted in the deterioration of core capital below 
the statutory requirement. However the company has 
taken immediate measures to make a capital infusion 
through new issue of shares and make strategic moves 
to reduce the overhead costs and reduce the NPA level 
to reach profit momentum in future.  

net assets Per share
Net assets per share have also decreased from 
Rs. 22.91 to Rs. 15.58 during the year in compare to 
financial year 2017/2018.

net assets per shareProPerty, Plant and equiPment
Property, plant equipment declined by 12% during the 
year.

  2018 2019  
  rs.mn rs.mn Change

Property,Plant,Equipment 207 182 -12%

Composition of loans and advances 18/19

Personal Loans against 
FD& Pro Note

Corporate Term Loans

Micro Loans

Gold Loans

Consumer Loans

Ran Sihina Loans

Lease & Hire Puchase

Mortgage Loans

Business Loans Real Estate Loans

Personal Loans

Staff Loans

Welada Warama and 
Saviya Loans

3%

16%

52%

5%

1%

1%

4%

6%

8%

2%

2%

0%

0%

assets quality
Non-performing assets ratio (NPA) has increased 
during the year in compare to previous Year following 
the deterioration of credit quality of certain product 
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earninGs Per share
Earnings per share declined to Rs. -2.06 during the year 
under review in compare to Rs. -0.2 of the previous 
year as a consequence of loss position for the year.

Cbsl liquidity requirement during the year

  2018 2019  
liquid assets rs.mn rs.mn Change

Available Liquid Assets 873 627 -28%
Required amount of Liquid 815 697 -14% 
Assets as per CBSL
    58 -70 -221%

  2018 2019  
liquid assets rs.mn rs.mn Change

Total Tier 1 Core Capital 1,803 865 -52%

Total Capital Base 1,803 980 -46%

Total Risk Weighted Assets 10,444 12,641 21%

Core Capital Ratio 17.26% 6.85% -10.41% 
(Statutory Requirement of 5%)

Total Risk Weighted 17.26% 7.75% 9.51% 
Capital Ratio (Statutory 
Requirement 10%)

CaPital adequaCy
Capital adequacy is critical is to make sure that 
company has enough cushion to absorb a reasonable 
amount of losses before they become insolvent 
and consequently loss of depositors’ funds. Capital 
adequacy ratios ensure the efficiency and stability of 
the financial system by lowering the risk of financial 
institutions becoming insolvent. 

The company failed to maintain the statutory capital 
adequacy requirement during the later part of 
the year following the loss position reported and 
re-measurement impact due to adoption of new 
accounting standards (SLFRS 09 and SLFRS 15).

However subsequently the company has taken 
immediate measures to comply with statutory 
requirement by a capital infusion through new issue of 
shares and the board of directors are confident on that.

liquidity Position
The Company has failed to minimum liquid assets 
requirement in line with Central Bank directions during 
the later part of the financial year 2018/2019. However, 
subsequently, the company was able the meet the 
statutory liquidity requirement.
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ManuFactuRe capital 

manufaCture CaPital 

Our Manufacturing Capital consists mainly of the 
physical infrastructure used for the delivery of our 
products to our target markets as well as the hardware 
and software architecture that is the backbone of our 
day-to-day operations. As such, every year we continue 
to strengthen our Manufactured Capital by investing 
and developing in the following. 

16 Nittabuwa

17 Batticaloa

18 Ruwanwella

19 Kaduwela

20 Embilipitiya

21 Gampola

22 Wattala

23 Vavuniya

24 Kegalle

25 Mathugama

26 Thambuttegama

27 Galle

28 Trincomalee

29 Monaragala

30 Matara

1 Nugegoda

2 Colombo

3 Kandy

4 Ratnapura

5 Gampaha

6 Wennappuwa

7 Anuradhapura

8 Kurunegala

9 Chilaw

10 Kiribathgoda

11 Ambalangoda

12 Matale

13 Horana

14 Moratuwa

15 Badulla

31 Balangoda

32 Puttalam

33 Polonnaruwa

34 Nikaweratiya

35 Ambalantota

36 Nuwara Eliya

Our Network

Service Centers

Branches

30

06

branCh netWork

KFL’s 36 strong branch network is the mainstay of our 
operational framework. As the primary customer touch 
point, the branch plays a crucial role in delivering our 
products and services and value proposition to our target 
customers. It is why we continue to invest on making our 
branch network more accessible and comfortable for 
customers to conduct their business with KFL. 

RELOCaTEd
BRaNChES

RENOVaTEd

Batticaloa
Ruwanwella
Kaduwela
Embilipitiya
Ambalanthota
Chilaw
Ambalangoda
Matale

Kurunegala
Thambuttegama
Nuwara Eliya
Horana
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At the same time steps were also taken to revamp the 
entire branch network with a number of branches re-
branded and relocated in order to standardize the branch 
profile and bring greater uniformity across the network. 
Investments were made in state-of the-art facilities, 
furniture and a unique interior design concept aimed at 
boosting the branch profile and creating greater visual 
harmony in line with KFL’s corporate image. 

During the year we have relocated 7 branches and 
renovated 4 branches to improve more customer 
oriented service by offering greater visibility and 
convenience while extending services by commencing 
the Gold Loan business in the aforementioned 
branches.

future exPansions and develoPments 

KFL has more focusing on renovating and upgrading 
the facilities of branch network whilst expanding the 
product and service range in the respective area and 
regions. This will be determined upon the multiple 
factors such as the market potential, extension of the 

region, customer density, prevailing market condition, 
economic and social variables of the region. Thus the 
suitable product and services would be identified and 
implemented with the expansion and development of 
the branch network.

information teChnoloGy (it)

Technological know-how has enabled differentiate 
products and offerings, creating unforeseen 
opportunities within the markets. Given the increasingly 
competitive and complex operating environment in 
which we operate, growing emphasis is placed on the 
importance of continuous monitoring and evaluation 
to ascertain the accuracy operational systems and 
to also ensure information security and business 
continuity. Thus IT has become a key business enabler 
for KFL, facilitating accurate business planning, 
effective marketing, systematic management, real 
time monitoring, instant customer support and long 
term business growth. In the year under review, KFL’s 
IT department rolled out the following initiatives to 
enhance the Company’s IT infrastructure;

Opening ceremony - Chilaw Branch Opening ceremony - Thabuththegama Branch
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  Project Goal Progress 2018/19

Features of Intranet solution 
improved by connecting meeting 
scheduler, company diary, task 
manager and help desk

Android mobile application to 
update existing MIS reports and 
some operational processes.

Establish a data centre for backup 
and live support of IT systems and 
operations following international 
standards.

Kanrich Saviya loan product 
introduce with complete system 
operation and reports.

 Upgrade the security 
framework by adding 
patches and updates to 
firewall and other security 
hardware.

 Configure high encrypted 
data communication 
environment to safeguard 
valuable information.

To improve and ease operational 
tasks to reduce time cost to serve 
fast and easy service to our valuable 
customers.

To expand reporting service with 
agile manner to make fast and 
accurate decision making and 
add more divisional operations for 
facilitate to do mobile tasks in quick 
and easy way.

Setup high system availability and it 
operations to secure uninterruptable 
service. By backing up live data 
to data centre can gain zero 
information loss features.

To facilitate new products as quickly 
as possible with full features to meet 
the company requirements.

To ensure privacy and safety of the 
valuable and personal information 
of our customers. To gain trust of 
customers is utmost important to 
uplift the company value within the 
industry.

Completed and rolled out

On-going

Completed and rolled out

Completed and rolled out

On-going
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future ProJeCts 

To create integrated solutions and expand the services via technology, following projects will be commenced from the 
next financial year. 

  Project  Purpose

Introduce complete android mobile app to facilitate  
all products using new technology and standards. 

Call management solution development. 
 

Automated Budgetary System 
 
 
 

To bring our services to clients doorstep with better 
responsive system to ease client needs by delivering 
agile service.

Deliver better responsiveness for customer requests 
came through voice calls to reduce time cost of both 
ends.

Develop a comprehensive budgetary Procedure 
and control system which directly combined to the 
company’s performance evaluation process Further 
it is ought to bring effectives over the company’s 
overheads through this automated process.
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Given the dynamic nature of the financial markets, 
KFL takes proactive steps to innovate and strengthen 
processes and product offerings to its customers. To 
gain competitive advantages in the industry Intellectual 
capital plays a vital role. KFL’s Intellectual Capital 
consists mainly of; Strategic Branding and Knowledge-
based intangibles such as Research and Development.

researCh and develoPment 

KFL formalized R & D unit to create sustainable values 
through the innovative capabilities and to identify 

intellectual capital

Micro Leasing Dealer Commission 
Rates – Quarter Wise

All Product competitor rates and 
new Trends

To identify how much our 
competitors’ pay as dealer 
commission and other benefits

To identify the current market rates 
of competitor products and new 
trends they use to attract customers

To analyse vehicles registrations 
during the previous quarter vehicle, 
district and provincial wise.

Vehicle Registration Statistics -  
Quarter Wise

Give our marketers a clear 
idea on the commission rates 
and how we should convince 
dealers to give business to 
Kanrich Finance without raising 
higher stakes.

Distribution  of suggestions 
to the upper management 
on how we should change 
our rates and launch new 
campaigns to attract 
customers 

To forecast what are the areas 
the company should cover and 
amend considering the current 
market trend.

development areas of the key aspects of KFL business 
model. KFL’s R & D initiatives focus on building 
knowledge-based resources that can be channeled 
towards positive value creation to benefit of all 
stakeholders of the Company.
In the year under review, the R & D department 
conducted a number of internal and external studies 
focusing on mapping qualitative and quantitative 
aspects across identified areas of the business, with 
the results being used to improve key aspects of our 
business model.

Ran Sihinaya Product Research Identifying similar products to Ran 
Sihinaya in the current market and 
new campaign strategies.

To identify customer preference and 
expectations towards the product

Reporting the product head 
with relevant information to 
extend the current customer 
base acquiring new customer 
with promotional strategies.

  research Purpose of the research out-Come (summary)
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  research Purpose of the research out-Come (summary)

Company Market Position

Fixed Deposit Research

Internal Data Analyse – Monthly 
wise

Competitor Product Promotions - 
Quarter Wise

To identify the current market 
position KFL among the competitors 
in the industry.

To get a clear idea on behalf of the 
competitor rates and promotions on 
Fixed deposits.

Branch Wise company performances 
analyse.

To share the knowledge to all 
product heads on the current 
promotions carried out by our 
competitors.

To identify the inefficiencies and 
misconducts in Branches

To build up a good relationship with 
targeted Micro Groups

To get a clear idea about the Branch 
Manager responsibilities and how 
they manage the branch staff

Branch Visit Research

Identifying the areas what KFL 
should improve going forward 
to gain a prominent place in 
the financial market.

Adapting to the competitor 
deviations building up a strong 
marketing strategy to acquire 
customers.

Identify and helping 
underperforming branches to 
achieve their targets

Preparing strong, efficient 
and entertaining marketing 
campaigns for our products.

With the identified negative 
points introduced a system 
to allocate marketers to 
micro centers in a time saving 
efficient method.

Identification of branches who 
waste company resources 
without any responsibility.

Generating new businesses 
through cross selling.



ANNUAL REPORT 2018/1954

future outlook 

 Conduct a macro environmental research - To 
research and analyze the macro environmental 
changes in the economy in order to build up a 
strategic plan for the company.

 Conduct a micro environmental research – To 
identify the customer needs, in order to fulfill 
them preserving the customer relationship and 
to seek out opportunities and new alliances in 
the market to achieve our goals. This research 
will be conducted covering all 13 products.

 News Article upload to the intranet – To spread 
the knowledge of the new trends and updates 
on the changing market to all the staff access 
will be given to an E-library in the intranet for 
reference.

 Conduct process and product improvement 
surveys of KFL – Surveys will be conducted in 

order to modify and improve existing products 
and processes according to the changes of the 
current economy.

 Develop a comprehensive quality assurance 
process of the KFL product portfolio and 
execution of timely mannered researches to 
enhance the quality standard of the product 
portfolios for future competitive imaginations.

  

strateGiC brandinG 

KFL focuses on building a unique brand identity which 
reflects in our culture, vision and values, product 
features and identity of the company.  With this 
determination KFL continues strengthening branding 
strategies, branch rebranding and reserves a portion of 
the yearly budget for corporate branding.      
Further, we have continued to invest in strengthening 
our brand architecture to reinforce our identity and 
more importantly to ensure that our brand evolves 
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cognizant to emerging market trends and given 
the growing competitiveness in Sri Lanka’s financial 
services sector, our main aims to maintain brand 
relevance across in all key markets that we serve.

emPloyer brandinG

Through these years, we realized it is important to 
recruit and retain the right people who will continue 
to spearhead our future growth ambitions. However, 

   2018/19  2016/17 

Electronic Media 12,487,260  23,850,000

Print Media 6,739,215 7,450,000

Social Media 510,000  30,000

 total 19,736,475.00 31,330,000

investment in Corporate branding

aware that we cannot rely on our track record alone, 
we began working towards strengthening KFL’s brand 
reputation as an employer of choice in Sri Lanka.

To add more value to our employer brand proposition 
in the year under review we improved our HRM (Human 
resource Management) solution. The robust solution 
replaces all manual HR processes -employee profiling, 
recruitment management, performance evaluation, 
attendance and leave, and includes a comprehensive 
MIS dash board that functions as fair and transparent 
management decision making tool. More details on 
our employer branding initiatives can be found in the 
Human Capital Report on page (Page Number Should 
Be Add)
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Social and Relationship capital is a non-financial 
value addition and enhances the economic outputs 
of our organization through our human relationships, 
partnerships and cooperation. This includes the 
intangibles associated with our brand and reputation 
and our social license to operate. We highly rely on 
those relationships and interactions as well as wider 
socio-political structures to create a stable society in 
which we can operate.

An important element of our Social and Relationship 
capital is sharing common values and behaviours with 
valued stakeholders. All our stakeholder relationships 
impact our business and reputation directly and 
indirectly. Due to the importance of stakeholder 
engagement and responsiveness to KFL it is integrated 
into our stakeholder engagement framework. Every 
aspect of our business interacts with stakeholders who 
are relevant to that particular part of our business, on 
issues that apply specifically to it.

We have identified our stakeholders and the material 
issues they raised on pages 34 to 39 of the Material 
issues section of this report.

We have a wide range of communication channels 
including: face-to-face meetings, telephonic and 
electronic communication, websites, electronic and 
paper-based employee and customer newsletters, 
brochures, advertising, employee and customer forums 
and customer and investor road shows. We closely 
monitor our stakeholder engagement and reports to the 
Board on the status of our stakeholder engagement.

relationshiP With our Customers

our Customer Commitments
We are guided by four customer commitments those 
are built on our values 

social and RelationsHip capital

(1). treat you fairly 
We maintain the highest professional and ethical 
standards in all our dealings with our customers. We 
have uncompromising discipline, clarity and courage to 
do what is right for them and to make every decision in 
their best interest.

(2). Provide you with the right solution 
We draw on our experience, insight and entrepreneurial 
spirit to provide our customers with solutions that help 
them achieve their financial goals and aspirations, and 
manage their daily and future requirements, however 
simple or complex.

(3). know you Personally 
We learn our customers’ preferences and know 
what matters to them with every interaction. By 
understanding them better, we anticipate our 
customers’ needs and offer them the most relevant 
financial solutions.

(4). be there When it matters 
We always stand by our customers and this is enabled 
by our long-term business approach, strength and 
stability.

treatinG you fairly

 
ensuring a Culture of fair dealing

We ensure Fair Dealing remains central to our 
corporate culture by:

 offering products and services that are suitable 
for our customers;

 ensuring the competency of our colleagues 
in providing quality advice and appropriate 
recommendations;
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 providing clear, relevant and timely information 
so that our customers can make informed 
financial decisions; and

 dealing with feedback in an independent, 
effective and prompt manner.

Our senior management team is often seeing Fair 
Dealing across the company and assists the Board in 
the delivery of Fair Dealing outcomes to our customers. 
As part of this, senior management approves the action 
plans, guidelines, processes and practices to achieve 
Fair Dealing outcomes. It is responsible for establishing 
a management information framework for business 
functions to measure the achievements of Fair Dealing 
outcomes and conducts regular meetings with them to 
monitor their progress.

measuring Customer satisfaction and retention 

We are committed to improving the quality of our 
interaction and engagement with customers. To 
measure customer satisfaction and retention across 
our business and product groups, we use the conduct 
king of researches and customer’s feedback interviews 
covering company’s Island wide branch network.   

resolving Customer Concerns effectively

We take customer feedback seriously and have 
robust procedures in place to address their concerns 
promptly. We have guidelines to govern the 
complaint investigation and resolution process and an 
independent review panel to review complaints.

Protecting Customer data and Privacy

Protecting our customers’ personal data and privacy 
is key to maintaining their trust in us. We have 
extensive policies and processes in place to ensure 
the confidentiality and security of our customers’ 
information. We are also committed to complying with 

the Personal Data Protection Act of Singapore and 
upholding industry best practices.

The main principles of our Personal Data Protection 
Policy are:

  personal data must only be collected and used 
for purposes for which the customer has been 
notified and has consented to, or are permitted 
by law; 

 
access and disclosure is strictly on a need-to-
know basis; 

 the integrity and security of personal data is 
paramount; and 

 
personal data that is no longer required for legal or 
business purposes must be destroyed securely in 
accordance with document retention policies. 

Mindful of evolving threats and rising international 
data privacy standards, we conduct regular reviews 
to ensure the robustness of our systems. Data privacy 
impact assessments also form an integral part of our 
business and product development.

We have in place a data breach, complaint handling 
and escalation process and the Group Operational Risk 
Management reviews the monthly incident reports. 
Line data protection

Providing you with the right solution

We continue to invest in technology to enhance 
our product and service capabilities to meet our 
customers’ changing lifestyles and business needs. 
Our technology investments focus on mobility, 
payments, connectivity and data, while strengthening 
our technology infrastructure to address regulatory 
changes and cybersecurity threats. 
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We developed convenience website where, the 
customer could be able to obtain necessary and 
adequate information, those enable to customer fulfill 
variety of financial solutions. Further, the effective 
digital marketing campaigns of the company were also 
declared to customers through this website, in order 
to acknowledge our customer regarding our product 
information. 

We trained our Colleagues with adequate technical 
knowhow, to deliver superior and right financial 
solution to our customer. we are taking this as our co-
strategy when we develop long term business strategy 
for the company as whole.

We already have diverse product portfolios that 
matched variety of financial solutions and also we 
deliver financial to low level of country without any 
collateral to finance their small scaler of their business 
with aiming of   uplifted them living styles.

know you Personally

Supporting Businesses Across All Stages of Growth 
We understand the ambitions and difficulties faced 
by start-ups and emerging enterprises and we want 
to help them grow into sustainable businesses. As 
these companies scale their operations, we support 
their needs by offering industry insight and business 
advisory, and connecting them with alternative debt 
funding providers for financing.

being there When it matter

Various kind of CSR projects are carried out since last 
consecutive five years to enhance technical knowhow 
of smaller business of micro customers and inspiring 
and encouraging them through various programmers. 
Through kanrich saviya and welada warama loan 

schemes, we provide financial to small and medium 
scaler business without any collateral, those whose 
have problem with adequate securities in getting 
financial for their business. And we arranging convinces 
re – payment options to problem customers, those 
have problem in repaying their loans without hamming 
to their business.

leasinG

KFL Leasing product is one of the major lending 
products of the company which ensures a greater 
contribution to the company in ways of profit and 
portfolio. Therefore, the Company had a very strong 
motive to grow the leasing portfolio. KFL provides 
leasing solutions to mainly individual customers and 
SMEs. We strive to maintain the quality and service of 

Composition of loans and advances 18/19

Personal Loans against 
FD& Pro Note

Corporate Term Loans

Micro Loans

Gold Loans

Consumer Loans

Ran Sihina Loans

Lease & Hire Puchase

Mortgage Loans

Business Loans Real Estate Loans

Personal Loans

Staff Loans

Welada Warama and 
Saviya Loans

3%
0%

22%

37%

13%

1%

1%

3%

6% 8%

3%

2%

1%
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our leasing operations by practising effective process 
and procedures and adding innovative alterations in 
line with the environmental changes. The department 
is driven by well experienced, knowledgeable and 
skilled staff with all positive attitudes to cater the best 
service to our customers. 

KFL focused more on cross-selling to existing 
customers and acquiring new clients through constant 
promotions, regular dealer meetings were also 
held to make our presence felt amongst the dealer 
community. Upon initiating the relationship with our 
customers through making customers aware about our 
products through marketing initiatives, branding and 
staff referrals, we aim to provide a convenient service 
experience to customers.  

We also aim to handle customer complaints and 
grievances efficiently where a complaint is obtained 
in writing and is immediately escalated through the 
leasing department hierarchy as fast as possible, if a 
solution takes substantial time to resolve.

For the following year we have planned to contribute 
a significant profit margin to the company by 
implementing predesigned strategies. By those 
strategic initiatives, we ensure financial sustainability, 
diversify and grow revenue streams by covering up the 
whole country, cater the best value for the cost and to 
do cross selling.

Gold loans 

Introduced in the year 2017, gold loans have been 
well accepted with the KFL customer base. Through 
strategic initiatives, the company laid the foundation 
of a differentiated leader in specialty lending risks, 
achieving intelligent growth in selected markets, 
optimizing portfolios, matching risks with the right 
capital, and delivering solid and stable profitability. 

KFL placed emphasis on Gold Loan business during 
the year under review to enhance the secured 
advances portfolio whilst contributing a great deal to 
the Company profit. The Company grants the maximum 
amount per sovereign and charges comparatively 
low interest rates which have been the strategy 
in developing this product. NPLs in the gold loan 
portfolio is at minimal KFL focused on delivering the 
best solutions for clients. To do this, company foster a 
culture of collaboration between our people and our 
clients. We focus on engaging consumers and putting 
them at the heart of what we do. 

The portfolio has been increased over Rs 1 billion in a 
short span of time and the company plans to achieve 
the same growth in the next five years. Moving forward, 
KFL will remain focused on fine-tuning the product and 
training the staff further to determine acceptance of 
fake and stolen articles as is one of the major threats 
faced by the gold loan lenders. In order to facilitate 
the same, company continues to do training and 
has prepared a manual containing the operational 
process in detail which will provide an insight into 
the processes to be followed by staff right from 
identification of potential customers.

Consumer loan 

KFL consumer loans provide funding solutions to 
employees of different organizations to meet their 
financial requirements to purchase consumer goods. 
During the financial year 2018/19, we have strengthen 
our merchant partner network through strategic tie-
ups with leading consumer goods retailers across the 
country. We always strive to maintain the quality of the 
service by practicing proper and efficient procedures 
in the department.  The department is driven by highly 
skilled and dedicated staff under the guidance of 
proper management. 
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Upon initiating the relationship with our customers by 
contacting Human Resource Departments of various 
organizations, where we make the both organization 
and its employees aware about the nature and benefits 
of our consumer loan, we maintain a close relationship 
with both the companies and its employees in 
providing effective funding solutions to the employees 
with the assistance of their companies.

We offer loans at a interest rate which prevails in the 
market for companies and we have streamlined the 
operational and recovery process of consumer loans, 
to make it more convenient and efficient. 
 
miCro finanCe

KFL’s  microfinance aim to provide financial solutions 
to self-employed customers in the fields of agriculture, 
trading and cottage industries, who may not have 
access to financial instruments to meet the financial 
requirements of their businesses.

During the year 2018/19, the government has decided 
to write off more than Rs. 1 billion worth of micro-credit 
loans given by state and private financial institutions 
in the Northern, Eastern and North Central Provinces. 
This government intervention negatively affected 
to the company operations and led to decline the 
recoveries. A dedicated recovery team was set up to 
continuously monitor and track dues, while a legal unit 
was established In order to overcome from this major 
drawback, we ensure to go for more quality lending 
by properly evaluating customers and situations in the 
financial year 2019/20. Apart, as strategic initiatives, we 
plan to implement cost effective process, procedures 
and mechanisms within the department, create a 
performance-focused culture and focus on cross-
selling. 

Personal loan

KFL Personal/staff loans provide funding solutions 
from executive level employees to high-management 
level employees of KFL and other organizations 
to meet their financial requirements. As highly 
competitive product in the market, we offer loans at 
an attractive interest rates in order to sustain in the 
market.  Further we ensure to cater a convenient and 
efficient service by practicing process and procedure 
enhancements. 

The department is driven by highly skilled and 
well experienced staff under guidance of proper 
management. We initiate the relationship with our 
own staff by providing detailed explanation of the 
loan product by the Personal Loan department and 
employees of other organizations by cross selling this 
product through our branches.

In the following financial year we anticipate to focus 
more on strategic initiatives on recovery and enhance 
the quality of the service. 

real estate loans

Real estate loan offers customers, the opportunity 
to access property and real estate by acquiring and 
developing lands for outright sale or via an easy 
payment loan scheme. 

The main goal of Real Estate is to ensure a remarkable 
profit contribution to the company and increase our 
market share up to 5% while building up a strong 
relationship with our customers.  We strive to offer 
quality and risk free lands to our customers with zero 
legal issues. 

The core competency of the departments is, it 
drives by well qualified and experienced staff under 
supervision of an efficient governing structure. We 
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always ensure to offer quality service to our customers 
by utilizing our skills and abilities and maintain efficient 
methods to implement strategic decisions. 

Through our Easy Payment loan scheme we offer 
benefits to our customers by facilitating comparatively 
low interest rates, acceptable monthly rentals with long 
repayment periods under flexible terms.  

ran sihinaya

Ran Sihinaya loan is a guarantor-backed loan scheme 
that enables customer to purchase gold items from 
selected vendors. This was launched in 2016 and 
the product available in all KFL branches across the 
country. The main purpose of the loan is to provide 
financial assistance to our customers. 

The department is driven by well experienced and 
qualified staff and strives to contribute a higher profit 
to the company. 

We reach our customers mainly through direct 
marketing and through our vendors covering 
potential arrears. Target market consists with low 
and middle income people from both government 
and private sectors. Rather frequent promotion 
campaigns including exhibitions, public relations, radio 
advertisements, leaflet and banner campaigns conduct 
to build up and maintain our brand name in our target 
audiences’ mind. 

mortGaGe loans

Our mortgage loan scheme provides assistance to 
our customers to purchase real estate property, to 
raise funds to buy lands, or alternatively for existing 
property owners to raise funds for their purposes 
of loan redemptions, working capital requirements 
and education purposes while putting a lien on the 
property being mortgaged.

Our main customer group for mortgage loans consist 
of government and private sector employees, and 
Sri Lankans who are employed abroad. We have an 
extremely efficient mortgage loan department that 
visits our customers personally to collect the relevant 
paperwork and conduct an evaluation. As a customer 
centric department, the department always aims to 
provide high quality, fast services to the customer in 
order to maintain trust. Since the loan period is limited 
to 5 years, the department also maintains a good 
relationship with creditworthy customers throughout 
the years.

business loans

KFL Business Loans are extended to medium sized 
companies and corporate to finance their business 
expansion needs. Typically, loans are extended 
for business expansion purposes, new product 
development and to finance extension/ alteration 
of business premises etc. Loans are granted for 
businesses engaged in the agricultural, service and 
industrial sectors. Business loans are secured with 
collateral. 

revolvinG business loan (rbl)

sCheme – ‘Welada Warama’

Our RBL Scheme aims at supporting business entities 
to develop their business and achieve their financial 
goals by providing appropriate levels of finance 
for business growth when it is necessary. Our main 
customers are small to medium businesses who aim 
to build and grow their business and make additional 
investments to enhance their business position. We 
provide our valued customers with unmatched service 
and benefits with a highly skilled experienced team 
assisting customers through the entire loan process. 
We maintain an excellent relationship with our 
customers by making the loan disbursement process 
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2018/19

2017/18

funding mix  2017/18  2018/19 

Bank & Financial 1,111,848,341  984,519,683 
Institutional Borrowings

Deposits Due to 1,004,354,808 986,094,828 
Customer

Debt Instrument  7,103,743,723  5,968,403,592 
Issued & Other Borrowed Funds

Due to Banks 
& Financial 

12%

Deposits Due 
to Customers

13%
Debt 

Instruments 
Issued and 

Other 
Borrowed 

Funds
75%

Due to Banks 
& Financial 

12%

Deposits Due 
to Customers

11%

Debt 
Instruments 
Issued and 

Other 
Borrowed 

Funds
77%

easy and convenient for them and staying connected 
with our customers through various milestones of their 
business.

dePosits and fundinG Portfolio

The funding mix of the company contains by Deposits, 
Financial Institutional Borrowings, Debt Instruments 
and Other Borrowed Funds. Throughout the past years, 
the funding mix was dominated by the deposits and 
debt instruments (comprising Promissory Notes and 
Commercial Papers). Due to the corporate strategy 
the organization focus to decrease depends on public 
borrowing funds and as a substitute, alternative low 
cost funding sources was amplified.
The external environment changes and the industry 
performance made an indirect impact on the product 
performance but the organizational and product 
strategies helped to sustain throughout
this year. 

deposit Customers

14%

0%

81%

5%

Fixed Deposits

Micro Deposits

Commercial Paper

Promissory Note
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The company always aspires to provide best financial 
solution to its clientele through effective financial 
services, according to that FD operation team provide 
efficient services to the deposit customers while 
providing prompt and accurate services as well as 
offer best interest rates to the deposits customers 
in line with the interest rates trends in the country. 
Besides; the company carefully handled bulk funds 
according to the directions of Company Integrated Risk 
Management Policy and always encourages long term 
deposits reduce the maturity mismatch.

dePosit aGainst loan

Deposit products are primary funding sources of the 
Company. Deposit products constitute term deposits 
and short term borrowing instruments. We offer 
fixed deposits with a range of tenures and short term 
borrowings for limited term. KFL offers cash back loan 
product schemes for investors to meet immediate cash 
requirements, where the Company provides up to 90% 
of the deposit value as credit.

our relationshiP With our business Partners

Our suppliers are chosen through a transparent 
tendering process, after carefully assessing the cost, 
quality and services they offer. We currently have 125 
registered suppliers. Once in every 2 years we, call for 
supplier registrations under 24 supplier categories, 

FuTure ouTLooK

 Stress on customers deposit portfolio is 
supposed to be reduced through the finding 
of effective foreign funds

 Introduce a door step process where 
customer gets a convenient service 

where equal opportunities are provided to suppliers 
to send in a quote. We maintain a good relationship 
with our suppliers by making payments on time, based 
on a one month credit period as per our contractual 
agreements.

our relationshiP With our Community

KFL believes in improving the lives of our clients, and 
we believe that improvement can come only when the 
right kind of social initiatives are put in place. Company, 
therefore, have brought in place a host of supportive 
social initiatives for our clients, which include 
Healthcare initiatives, Environment Protection & 
Conservation, Empowerment of Community and Ethics 
& Values. It must be said that CSR is an integral part of 
our dayto-day operations and core competencies. It is 
an active role of our overall mission. We aim to further 
the socio-economic welfare of the under-served 
communities in the area of our operations through the 
CSR activities we intend to engage in activities, which 
enhance the development indicators of the societies 
we work with, without any prejudice, by carrying out 
non-profit oriented CSR initiatives. As a company, our 
goal is to maintain Financial, Social and Environment 
performance through sustainable development.
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Community CaPaCity buildinG

1. vocational training

Being one of the leading micro finance providers in 
Sri Lanka, KFL has an opportunity to develop the Sri 
Lanka rural economy. Increasing financial literacy is 
one of the best ways to reduce the financial difficulties 
of the individual citizens. In this regard, the Company 
supports women in rural and suburban areas through 
the provision of vocational training programs to 
assist them to improve their financial literacy and 
socio-economic standards. Eight vocational training 
programs were conducted in the financial year, with 
a total participation of over 600 women from the 
Gampaha, Wattala, Polonnaruwa, Matale , Nikaweratiya, 
Anuradhapura , Kurunegala and Chilaw areas. 

2. kanrich thaksalawa”

Post identification of the minimal prospects of learning 
of the English language for children in rural areas, this 
initiative was developed with a goal of providing such 
opportunities via free the conduction of free English 
classes for those who are eager to learn and improve, 
but are disadvantaged. Therefore this project was 
piloted in 2016 with the provision of this opportunity 
to the less fortunate children of the company’s under 
privileged customers in Sri Lanka.

environmental protection campaigns 

3. “urumaya” Project – Phase 1 (Collection of 
polythene & plastic bottles kandy perahera)

With polythene and plastic are becoming a major 
threat to the environment, KFL launched “Urumaya”, a 

“urumaya” Project - environmental protection Donation for Matale General Hospital
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project aimed at protecting Sri Lanka’s heritage sites. 
Phase 1 of the project, which was aimed promoting a 
plastic free zone in Kandy during the sacred Dalada 
Perahera was successfully carried out during the 
randoli perahera for 5 days. Our dedicated employees 
voluntarily got involved in this worthy cause by 
collecting plastic and polythene from the public 
who came to witness the sacred event. All the non-
biodegradable items in the area were collected daily 
after the conclusion of perahera and sent for recycling.

4. “urumaya” Project – Phase 2 (Plant distributions ) 

Plant distribution campaigns have been conducted 
across the country in four locations associating through 
our branch network to inculcate the requirement 
and importance of afforestation among the general 

public. We successfully concluded 4 plant distribution 
programs distributing more than 8000 plants to 
support the bio- diversity of the country.

5. alms giving – st. anthony’s Church

kochikade, Colombo-13

Once in a 03 month we offer an Alms Giving service to 
the Needy people at St.Anthony’s Church in Kochikade. 
This project was continually conducted for more than 
6 years.

Women empowerment “Liya Saviya” Workshop
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HuMan capital

Human capital is recognized as the most 

integral resource, the one that actually 

sets in motion corporate aspirations to 

manifest and materialize and to finally 

become actual reality. Hence, it is the 

HR policy of the Company to nurture the 

workforce to enhance their value for the 

betterment of the organization as well as 

for their personal career development. 

KFL management do this while staying 

committed to non-discriminatory practices 

and propagating equality in the workplace. 

Company have been a caring employer 

and a motivator to all our employees, 

displaying employee-centric values right 

through their business journey. KFL have 

inculcated strong values among their staff 

specifically focusing on integrity while 

fostering an atmosphere that promotes 

team building. 

“The value of a business 
is a function of how well 
the financial capital and 
the intellectual capital are 

managed by the human capital”

our drivinG forCes

aGility – We want to behave more simply, to 
embrace useful innovation and digital
Transformation

ComPlianCe Culture – We believe in promoting 
clear rules to foster a strong culture of compliance 
and ethics

Client satisfaCtion – We believe that our success lies 
in being the customers’ and clients’ preferred choice. We 
seek to listen carefully to them and work closely with them

oPenness – We promote open-minded attitudes towards 
our employees. We aim for everyone in the company to feel 
included, to have their say and to be empowered

stability – We build upon our solid long-term 
oriented management, our diversified and integrated 
business model and our national footprint

resPonsibility – We build upon our culture of 
responsibility and integrity to ever better serve the 
interest of our customers

exPertise – We build upon the recognized and 
expanding knowledge of our teams

Good PlaCe to Work – We foster a stimulating 
workplace where people are treated fairly and with 
respect
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our PeoPle and their values.

The achievement of Kanrich Finance Limited over 48 
years history would not have been possible if not for 
the dedication and commitment of the multi-talented 
team of employees at KFL. Throughout the Country the 
Team KFL has the workforce of 1,228 employees; in this 
section we define how we influence our human capital 
to deliver value to our shareholders by 
creating a sustainable organization. 

The constant efforts put in by the 
team have ensured that KFL remained 
a force to be reckoned with in the 
financial services industry. They 
have ensured that the strategy of 
the company was placed into action 
and ensured that we achieve our 
objectives. As such, we consider our 
employees as our most valuable asset. 
The company has in portion. 

Well thought-out HR strategy to look after the interests 
of our work force, so that they will, in turn do their 
utmost to serve our customers with care & respect 
always perpetuation the integrity of the institution the 
remuneration as well as employee’s welfare. Career 
development and progression are all significant 
components of this HR strategy.

We have a professional, well-thought-out and flexible 
recruitment process that ensures the company 
recruits people for the job that suit their talents and 
capabilities. KFL’s process is rationalized so that the 
company does not expend unnecessary resources 
on the recruitment process and caters to realizing 
equal opportunity and diversity. KFL has links with 
professional bodies to facilitate recruitment. 

Our business demands the highest attention to 

employee satisfaction day in & out our absolute and 
number one priority. Since KFL knows the value of their 
employees & once the employee is satisfied the best 
performance will be delivered in return. 

material foCus area - attraCt, develoP and 
retain quality emPloyees

We are committed to investing in the growth, 
development and mobility of our people to meet 
current and future capability requirements of the 
business. It is our people that take us forward and 
their development and success is our success too. 
Our employees provide us with many of our core 
competencies, including delivering excellent customer 
service, innovative product development, strong 
investment management skills and excellent balance 
sheet management.

Kanrich Finance promotes a high performance, 
customer centric culture to drive innovation and 
execution of strategy to create value for stakeholders. 
In exchange, Kanrich Finance commits to paying fair, 
performance related remuneration, providing career 
and skills development opportunities and value added 
benefits in a non-discriminatory work environment.

staff 
(numbers)

investment in training 
& development 

(rs’ 000)

remunaration and 
benefits 
(rs’ 000)

1,228 73,490,474.562,030,924.99
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We develop the employees’ 
skills through training in 
various products experience 

Give them opportunities 
to interact with Senior 
Management, provide them 
with mentoring and training 
and prepare them for the 
positions they will hold 
tomorrow.

Move employees across 
divisions and jobs stirring 
their work involvement.

education: exposuRe:expeRience:

talent develoPment & aPProaCh to human resourCe manaGement

We at KFL we inspire each and every individual to use their skills, talents, competencies, capabilities and experience in 
a way that adds value to the business and provides personal growth Such as we have developed our own photography 
club to enhance the skills of our team. Also for the new vacancies more often we give the opportunity to the internal 
transfers rather than recruiting new employees. We believe that it will help to diversify their personal as well as the 
professional path. We identify the employees as being fundamental to our success and future growth. We always 
prioritize our employees and they have the liberty to approach at any hierarchy level at any period. Our senior 
management is very responsive and equipped to assistance them as a squad.

kanrich finance has developed the “triple –e” approach, described below;
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traininG and develoPment

We mainly focused in Personal grooming of our 
employees, we believe a well groomed employee is 
a happy/ positive thinker which means he or she will 
constantly deliver the maximum effort to achieve the 
company goals therefore we conducted grooming 
programs as well as seminars. Also we thoroughly 
monitor the discipline, personal grooming and 
punctuality.  We encourage each one in enhancing 
their careers by engaging in professional development 
initiatives.

trainning & development   

i) Number of Training Programmes  72 

ii) Cost of Trainning  2,030,924.99  

iii) Total training hours  398 

iv) Training Coverage  1573 

v) Types of Trainings   

       i) Internal Trainings  53 

      ii) External Trainings  17 

      iii) Induction  2 

      iv)Tehnoloogy  2 

      v)Overseas Trainings  0 

      vi)Customer Care  3 

      vii)Privacy/Security/Risk Management 2 

      viii)Leadership Development  1 

Talent acquisition and training and development is 
taken as a progressive measure, where employees are 
encouraged to sustain their passion and commitment 
in enhancing their total value towards the Company. 
It not only involves direct training on knowledge 
and skills development, it also provides positive 

reinforcement, mentoring, coaching and even moral 
support to the individual  when required. 

PerformanCe & reWards

Employee appraisal and reward system is another key 
feature of KFL’s human resource management chain 
that is used across key divisions of the enterprise. 
company adopt formal appraisal measures to identify 
performance of employees annually. Employee 
salary increments and other benefits including career 
advancement aspects are derived from such annual 
appraisals. Already, we are in the process of extending 
the Human Resource Information System (HRIS) to 
incorporate assessment tools to extract individual 
balanced score card measures for appraising staff. 
Presently the HRIS provides master information of staff, 
career history and track record of performance. 

Integral to the management of Human Resource 
requirements, the managment placed emphasis on a 
career development and succession planning aspects 
of the workforce, and assessed the necessity for 
recruitment versus affording ‘job enhancement’ or ‘job 
enrichment’ to high performers within the organisation 
who have the potential to climb the corporate ladder. 
Through a comprehensive HR approach, the company 
have been able to sustain a workforce that possesses 
the right skills and experience to face complex 
demands of the industry. 

GrievanCe handlinG

The Company respects and recognizes the right of 
each employee to raise or highlight any concern he/
she might believe of any decision, behavior, or an 
action would have made an effect is unfair and impacts 
his/her employment. Any such grievance highlighted 
or raised needs to be resolved immediately and 
promptly in an objective manner.
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The employee concerned could raise the grievance 
with the immediate line manager or if the grievance 
involves the line manager it could be raised with 
the HOD. It would be beneficial if the employee 
attempts to resolve the grievance quite informally. If 
the grievance is not resolved at the initial stage the 
employee could highlight the grievance with the HR 
department and a formal process in resolving the issue 
could be followed. The formal process to be followed 
would include in obtaining the approval of the CEO for 
the final decision.

emPloyee enGaGement

The pride, passion and commitment of our people are 
essential to our success. We are focusing on delivering 
an employee experience where our people feel 
strongly connected to the company.
We regularly engage with our employees in many 
events including CSR activities, cultural and religious 
ceremonies, get-togethers and sports to encourage 
the team spirit and sense of belonging within the 
company.

Csr aCtivities

 Liya Saviya programs

 
Thaksalawa

 Cleaning project Esala Perahera – Kandy

Cultural and reliGious Ceremonies, 
GettoGethers and oPeninG Ceremonies

 Jan 1st Function

 
Sports Day

 Branch Opening ceremonies 

 
Annual pirith ceremony

Sports Day - 2018

Annual Pirith - 2019
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sPorts

Akila Dhananjaya Oshada Fernando

Kanrich finance Limited is well known as the 
Champions in overall Mercantile level and National 
level, But last year we at Kanrich focused deeply into 
the business and the wellbeing of our sports figures. 

And we have our international recognised individuals 
Akila Dhananjaya & Oshada Fernando, who brings a 
huge pride to Kanrich family and to the nation. 

We supported them & encouraged them throughout 
their journey as never restricted on their sports 
achievements as well as personal commitments. They 
have been playing for KFL for the last 4 years of their 
journey. We KFL is always dedicated for the wellbeing, 
growth of our employees.  We stand strong behind our 
sportsmen holding the ladder of success. 
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Represents the natural ecosystems and assets on which KFL’s businesses impact, including geology, soil, air, water and 
all forms of life. KFL acknowledges that the environment forms the basis for human survival and economic activity. As 
a responsible corporate citizen, it strives to minimize and mitigate the impact of its operations on the environment in a 
sensible, responsible, innovative and legally compliant manner. KFL is categorized as a medium to low risk organization 
in terms of the impact of its activities on the environment, however, not only are we committed to reducing KFL’s 
impact on climate change by reducing our carbon intensity, but we also need to make every effort to reduce our 
energy costs and thereby reduce its impact on our operating costs.

natuRal capital
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kfl Corporate Governance structure

Kanrich Finance Limited (KFL) always focusses on the 
Corporate Governance principles and take all efforts to 
introduce and maintain corporate   governance practices 
at all levels right throughout. Corporate governance 
enhances high standard of transparency, fairness, 
accountability and performance at all levels and this would 
lead to maintain high business standards, maximizing 
shareholder value and protecting their interest.

Accordingly the board is supposed to meet the  
following objectives

 To set the framework to fulfill board responsibilities 
in the perspective of stakeholders

 
Advise executive management in developing goals 
and strategies in line with vision and mission of 
the organization and meeting the best interest of 
stakeholders

 The board approves and reviews strategies and 
plans developed by executive management and 
close monitor the execution and outcomes of such

 The board sets the professional standards and 
ethical values  for the company

 The board selects, evaluate and compensate for key 
management personnel

 The board has to foresee the possible risks with 
regard to strategic, credit, operational, market 
conditions and regulatory etc.

external drivers of CorPorate GovernanCe

 Companies Act No 07 of 2007

 CBSL Direction No 03 of 2008 (Corporate 
Governance)

 Code of best practices on corporate governance 
jointly issued by SEC and ICASL

internal drivers of CorPorate GovernanCe

 Articles of Association

 Policies and procedures introduced by the 
management from time to time with regard to the 
corporate governance
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Appendix Two
Finance Companies (Corporate Governance) Direction No. 3 of 2008

Finance Companies (Corporate Governance) Direction No. 03 of 2008 issued by the Monetary Board of the Central Bank of  
Sri Lanka under the Finance Business act No.42 of 2011

  directions factual findings

1.  the responsibilities of the board of directors

 1.(1) Agreed upon procedures to be carried out to  
 ensure The Board of Directors has strengthened  
 the safety and soundness of the finance company

  a) Check the board approval of the finance  
  company’s strategic objectives and  
  corporate values.

   Check whether the finance company  
  has communicated the finance company’s 
  strategic objectives and corporate values  
  throughout the finance company.

  b) Check the board approval of the overall  
  business strategy of the finance company.

   Check that the overall business strategy  
  includes the overall risk policy, risk  
  management procedures and mechanisms  
  and they are documented.

   Check that the overall business strategy  
  contains measurable goals, for at least the 
  next three years. 

  c) Check that the appropriate systems to  
  manage the risks identified by the board are  
  prudent and are properly implemented. 
 
 

Partially complied

The corporate plan includes the overall corporate 
objectives and aims of the Company, for the next 
three years.

The overall risk policy and risk management 
procedures have not been documented by the 
Company.

However any matters relating to risks are reviewed 
by the Integrated Risk Management Committee 
(IRMC) and the Board.

Complied

The company’s strategic objectives and corporate 
values were communicated through the corporate 
plan 2019/22.

The plan was approved by the board of directors on 
14th September 2018.

Complied

Integrated Risk Management Committee (IRMC) 
reviews any matters and appropriate decisions are 
made. The approved meeting minutes are tabled 
at the Board meetings for review and guidance. 10 
meetings were held during the year.
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  d) Check that the board has approved and  
  implemented a policy of communication  
  with all stakeholders including depositors,  
  creditors, share-holders and borrowers. 
 

  e) Check that the board has reviewed the  
  adequacy and the integrity of the finance  
  company’s internal control systems and  
  management information systems. 
 
 
 

  f) Check that the board has identified and  
  designated key management personnel, as  
  defined in the Sri Lanka Accounting  
  Standards/ CBSL direction, who are in a  
  position to:  
  (i) significantly influence policy;  
  (ii)  direct activities; and  
  (iii)  exercise control over business activities,  
   operations and risk management.

  g)  Check that the board has defined the areas  
  of authority and key responsibilities for the  
  Board and for the key management personnel; 
 
 
 
 

Partially complied

There is no formal documented policy for 
communication with stakeholders. However 
matters are communicated to stakeholders in the 
normal course of business as and when required 
and at the AGM.

Complied

Matters on the integrity, internal control and 
management information system are discussed at 
IRMC meetings and at the board meetings.

There were instances noted where the board has 
suggested better ways to improve internal control 
systems and management information systems.

Complied

Board approved BOD, DGMs and GMs to be KMPs 
of the Company at the Board meeting held on 15th 
October 2018.

Further the compliance officer, Head of Finance 
and Head of Credit were also designated as KMPs 
at the board meeting held on 14th December 2018.

Partially complied

Activities and responsibilities of KMPs and 
executive directors are specified in their 
employment contract.

However the areas of authority and key 
responsibilities have not been documented for 
Non-executive Directors.
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  h)  Check that the board has exercised  
  appropriate oversight of the affairs of the  
  finance company by key management  
  personnel, that is consistent with  
  board policy. 
 
 
 
 
 

  i)  Check that the board has periodically  
  assessed the effectiveness of the board  
  directors’ own governance practices,  
  including:  
  (i)  the selection, nomination and election  
   of directors and key management  
   personnel;  
  (ii)  the management of conflicts of  
   interests; and  
  (iii)  the determination of weaknesses and  
   implementation of changes where  
   necessary.

  j)  Check that the board has a succession plan  
  for key management personnel. 
 

  k) Check that the board has scheduled regular  
  meetings with the key management  
  personnel to review policies, establish  
  communication lines and monitor progress  
  towards corporate objectives. 
 

Partially complied

The Company does not have a documented 
procedure manual highlighting how the board 
would monitor the affairs of the finance Company. 
However the Subcommittees to the Board reviews 
the affairs of the Company and keep the board 
updated on the affairs of the Company at the 
monthly Board meetings. Where required members 
of the management are required to provide 
explanation.

No terms of reference was provided for our review.

Complied

The board has implemented the process to assess 
the effectiveness of its own governance practices, 
by way of the self-assessment performed by the 
directors.

Complied

The board has succession plan for key 
management personnel which includes the skills 
and competence required and their responsibilities.

Complied

The Board meets on a monthly basis and reviews 
the policies and monitor progress towards the 
corporate objectives. The Company conducts 
separate meetings such as Manager’s meetings 
and Management meetings, where they discuss 
any issue. All KMPs must attend these meetings.
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  directions factual findings

  l)  Check that the board has taken measures  
  and processes in place to understand the  
  regulatory environment and that the finance  
  company maintains a relationship  
  with regulators.

  m) Check that the board has a process in  
  exercising due diligence in the hiring and  
  oversight of external auditors. 

 1 (2) Check that the board has appointed the Chairman  
 and the Chief Executive Officer (CEO). 
 Check that the functions and responsibilities of the  
 Chairman and the CEO are in line with Paragraph 7  
 of the Corporate Governance Direction. 
 

 1 (3) Check that there are procedures determined and  
 resolved by the board to enable directors, upon  
 reasonable request, to seek independent  
 professional advice in appropriate circumstances,  
 at the finance company’s expense. 

 1 (4) Check that a director has abstained from voting  
 and not be counted in quorum on any board  
 resolution in relation to which he/she or any of  
 his/her close relation or a concern in which a  
 director has substantial interest, is interested. 
 

Complied

Compliance department submit an update 
regulatory environment to the Board when required 
and if any non-compliances are noted.

Complied

The external auditors are appointed by the 
board with the recommendation of Board Audit 
Committee at the Annual General Meeting.

Complied

The Board has appointed the Chairman and CEO 
and the roles of the Chairman and the CEO are 
separate.

The functions and responsibilities have been 
identified in the terms of reference to the “Roles of 
the chairman and the chief executive officer “.

Partially complied

Any member of the Board is entitled to seek 
independent professional opinion at the Company’s 
expense with the approval of the other members.

No formal documented procedure is available 
highlighting this fact.

Complied

A necessity has not arisen as yet, as such situations 
had not taken place in the past. However, 
procedures are in place to ensure that conflicts and 
potential conflict of interests are properly disclosed 
to the Board. This is monitored by the Company 
secretary.
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 1 (5) Check that the board has a formal schedule of  
 matters specifically reserved to it for decisions. 
 
 
 

 1 (6) Check that the board has identified events where  
 it is unable to meet its obligations or is about to  
 become insolvent or is about to suspend payments  
 due to depositors and other creditors and informed  
 the Director of the Department of Supervision of  
 Non-Bank Financial Institutions of the situation of  
 the finance company prior to taking any  
 decision or action.

 1 (7)  Check that the board publishes in the finance  
 company’s Annual Report, an annual corporate  
 governance report setting out the compliance  
 with this Direction.

 1 (8) Check that the Board adopts a scheme of  
 self-assessment to be undertaken by each  
 director annually, and maintain records of  
 such assessments.

2.   meetings of the board

 2. (1) Check that the board has met regularly and held  
 board meetings at least twelve times a financial  
 year at approximately monthly intervals.

  Check whether consent of the board has been  
 obtained through the circulation of written or  
 electronic resolutions/papers.

Partially complied

All matters relating to the Company are discussed 
at the board meetings.

However no formal schedule of matters specifically 
reserved to the Board, for decisions and approvals 
are maintained.

This situation has not arisen during the year.

Complied

A corporate governance report has been published 
in the Company’s annual report.

Complied

The assessments of directors are carried out 
annually and relevant records are maintained.

Complied

The Board met 12 times during the year.

If any urgent matter arise, consent from directors 
is taken through circulation. However, the same is 
submitted at the next immediate meeting for the 
board’s approval
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 2 (2) Check that the board has a procedure in place to  
 enable all directors to include matters and  
 proposals in the agenda for regular board  
 meetings where such matters and proposals  
 relate to the promotion of business and the  
 management of risks of the finance company. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 2 (3) Check that the board has given notice of at least  
 7 days for a regular Board meeting to provide  
 all directors an opportunity to attend. For all  
 other Board meetings, a reasonable notice  
 shall be given.

 2 (4)  Check that the directors have met with the  
 attendance requirements. (at least two-thirds of  
 the meetings in the period of 12 months  
 immediately preceding or has not attended the  
 immediately preceding three consecutive  
 meetings held). Participation at the directors’  
 meetings through an alternate director, however,  
 to be acceptable as attendance.

 2 (5) Check that the board has appointed a company  
 secretary whose primary responsibilities shall be to 
 handle the secretarial services to the Board and  
 shareholder meetings and to carry out other functions 
 specified in the statutes and other regulations

Complied

All directors are provided with the equal 
opportunity to include matters and proposals 
relating to the promotion of business and the 
management of risks of the company in the agenda 
for regular Board meetings.

Directors are required to inform in writing to the 
Personal Assistant to the CEO, if there are any 
matters to be included.

Five days prior to  the board meeting the 
respective department uploads the board papers 
to  the system, if the directors have  any concerns 
they send their responses to those respective 
department and if they have any matters to be 
included it is informed to Mr. V. Banduwansa (PA to 
CEO) who upload the agenda to the system.

Complied

The company secretaries send a notice (through 
email) seven days prior to the meeting. 

Complied

All the members have attended two-thirds or more 
of the meetings during the year.

Complied

The Board has appointed Chart Business Systems 
(Private) Limited as the Company Secretary.



ANNUAL REPORT 2018/1980
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 2 (6) Check whether the Chairman has delegated the  
 responsibility for preparing the Agenda for the  
 Board Meeting. If so the company secretary shall  
 be responsible for carrying out such function.

 2 (7)  Check whether all directors shall have access to  
 advice and services of the company secretary  
 with a view to ensuring that Board procedures  
 and all applicable laws, directions, rules and  
 regulations are followed.

 2 (8) Check that the company secretary maintains the  
 minutes of board meetings and prepares the  
 minutes within a reasonable time and has a  
 documented process for the minutes to be  
 inspected by the directors.

 2 (9) Check that the minutes of a board meeting  
 contain or refer to the following: 

  a) a summary of data and information used by  
  the Board in its deliberations;

  b) the matters considered by the Board; 

  c) fact-finding discussions and the issues of  
  contention or dissent which may illustrate  
  whether the Board was carrying out its duties  
  with due care and prudence; 

  d) the explanations and confirmations of  
  relevant executives which indicate compliance  
  with the Board’s strategies and policies and  
   adherence to relevant laws and regulations; 

Complied

The Board has delegated the function of preparing 
the agenda for Board Meetings to the Company 
secretary.

Complied

All directors have access to Company Secretary to 
obtain required advice and services in relation to 
Company affairs.

Complied

The company secretary maintains the minutes of 
Board meetings and such minutes are open for 
inspection at any reasonable time, on reasonable 
notice by any director.

Complied

Minutes of Board meetings are recorded with 
sufficient details as specified in the direction.
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  e) the Board’s knowledge and understanding of  
  the risks to which the finance company is  
  exposed and an overview of the risk  
  management measures adopted; 

  f) Decisions and Board resolutions.

3.  Composition of the board

 3 (1) Check that the board comprise of not less than  
 5 and not more than 13 directors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 3 (2) Check the total period of service of a director  
 other than a director who holds the position of  
 chief executive officer or executive directors shall  
 not exceed nine years, and such period in office  
 of a non-executive Director shall be inclusive of  
 the total period of service served by such Director  
 up to January 1, 2009.

Complied

The Board consists of 5 directors as at the year end. 
List of Directors is given below.

 name Position

dr. W.m. hemachandra Chairman/  
 Independent Non -  
 Executive Director
mr. d.s.i. Weerasinghe Executive Director /  
 CEO
dr. k.m.s.b. rekogama Executive Director and  
 Resigned on 15.5.2019
mr. k.k.d. ranawaka Independent Non -  
 Executive Director
mr. t.l.b. hurulle Independent Non -  
 Executive Director

Subsequent to the financial reporting year end, 
Mr. M.D.M.R.S. Madappuli and Prof. W.L.P. Perera 
was appointed to the board as Independent Non - 
Executive Directors w.e.f. 1st August 2019

Complied

No director holds the position for more than nine 
years.
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 3 (3) Check that the number of executive directors,  
 including the CEO does not exceed one- half of the  
 number of directors of the board.

 3 (4) Check that the board has at least one fourth of  
 independent non-executive directors of the  
 total number of directors, 
 Non-executive directors cannot be considered  
 independent if he/she:

  a) has shares exceeding 2% of the paid up  
  capital of the finance company or 10% of the  
  paid up capital of another finance company

  b) has or had during the period of two years  
  immediately preceding his appointment as  
  director, any business transactions with the  
  finance company as described in Direction  
  hereof, aggregate value outstanding of which  
  at any particular time exceeds 10% of the  
  capital funds of the finance company as  
  shown in its last audited balance sheet;

  c) has been employed by the finance company  
  during the two year period immediately  
  preceding the appointment as director;

  d) has a relative, who is a director or chief  
  executive officer or a key management  
  personnel or holds shares exceeding 10% of  
  the paid up capital of the finance company or  
  exceeding 12.5% of the paid up capital of  
  another finance company.

  e) represents a shareholder, debtor, or such  
  other similar stakeholder of the finance  
  company;

Complied

Only two out of five directors appointed to the 
board are executive directors.

Complied

The Company consists of five directors and three 
out of them are independent non-executive 
directors.

The Non-executive directors do not hold shares of 
the Company.

The Non-executive directors did not have any 
business transactions with the finance company

None of the Non-executive directors have been 
employed by the Company

The Non-executive directors do not have any 
relatives, who is a director or chief executive officer 
or a key management personnel or holds shares 
exceeding the specified limit.

None of the Non-executive directors is a 
shareholder, debtor or has other similar stake in the 
finance company.
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  f) is an employee or a director or has a  
  shareholding of 10% or more of the paid  
  up capital in a company or business  
  organization:

   i.    which has a transaction with the finance  
   company as defined in section 9,  
   aggregate value outstanding of which at  
   any particular time exceeds 10% of the  
   capital funds as shown in its last audited  
   balance sheet of the finance company; or

    ii.   in which any of the other directors of the  
   finance company is employed or is a  
   director or holds shares exceeding 10% of  
   the capital funds as shown in its last  
   audited balance sheet of the finance  
   company; or

   iii.   in which any of the other directors of the  
   finance company has a transaction as  
   defined in section 9, aggregate value  
   outstanding of which at any particular time  
   exceeds 10% of the capital funds, as  
   shown in its last audited balance sheet  
   of the finance company.

 3 (5) Check whether the alternate director appointed to  
 represent an independent non-executive director  
 meets with the criteria for independent  
 non-executive directors

 3 (6) Ensure non-executive directors have necessary  
 skills, qualifications and experience especially in  
 banking, finance to bring an objective judgment  
 to bear on issues of strategy, performance  
 and resources.

None of the Non-executive directors is an 
employee or a director or has a shareholding of 
10% or more of the paid up capital in a company 
specified in the direction.

No alternate Director were appointed during the 
financial year 2018/19.

Complied

Non-executive directors have the  skills and 
experience as disclosed in page 16 - 19 of the 
annual report
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 3 (7) Check whether the required quorum had been  
 present and at least 50% of the directors present  
 at the meetings were non-executive directors. 

 3 (8) Check whether in all corporate communications  
 where the names of the directors are disclosed,  
 independent Non-Executive directors are  
 expressly identified. 
 
 Check whether the Annual Corporate Governance  
 Report which is a part of the Annual Report has  
 disclosed the composition of the board, by  
 category of directors, including the names of the  
 chairman, executive directors, non-executive  
 directors and independent non-executive directors

 3 (9) Check the procedure for the appointment of new  
 directors and orderly succession of appointments  
 to the board. 
 
 
 

 3 (10) Check that all directors appointed to fill a casual  
 vacancy be subject to election by shareholders  
 at the first general meeting after their appointment.

 3 (11) Check whether the board has announced to the  
 shareholders and notified the Director of the  
 Department of Supervision of Non-Bank Financial  
 Institutions of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka,  
 regarding the resignation or removal of directors  
 giving the reasons for such removal or resignation 
 including but not limited to informat ion relating to  
 the relevant director’s disagreement with the board,

Complied

There were no occasions where the Board 
meetings were held without having the minimum 
number of directors required by the direction.  

Complied

All corporate communications includes the names 
of the non-executive directors.

Profiles of the Directors are disclosed in  
page 16 - 19 of the Annual Report.

Complied

The Board has a formal and transparent procedure 
in place when appointing Directors to the Board. 
Nominated individuals are screened in accordance 
with CBSL and CSE’s requirement and submitted 
for prior approval of the Director – Superintendent 
of Non Business Financial Institution of CBSL.

There were no instances noted during the year.

Notifications on resignations of Directors of the 
Company are communicated to the Shareholders 
by way of the Annual Report. 

No resignations of Directors were noted during the 
year.
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4.  Criteria to assess the fitness and propriety of directors 

 4 (1) Check that the age of a person who serves as  
 director does not exceed 70 years. 

 4 (2) Check if a person holds office as a director of more  
 than 20 companies/ societies/ body corporates  
 inclusive of subsidiaries or associate companies  
 of the finance company.

5.  delegation of functions  

 5 (1) Check whether the functions delegated by the  
 board ensures that it does not hinder or reduce the  
 ability of the Board as a whole 
 

 5 (2) Check that the board review the delegation  
 processes in place on a periodic basis to ensure  
 that they remain relevant to the needs of the  
 finance company.

6.  the Chairman and the Chief executive officer

 6 (1) Check that the roles of chairman and CEO  
 is separated and not performed by the  
 same individual. 

 6 (2) Check that the chairman is a non-executive director. 
 In the case where the chairman is not an  
 independent Non-Executive director, check that  
 the board designates an Independent  
 Non-Executive director as the senior director with  
 suitably documented terms of reference. 

 Check that the designation of the senior director be  
 disclosed in the finance company’s Annual Report.

Complied

All the directors who are currently serving the 
board are under 70 years.

Complied

As at 31.03.2019 none of the Directors hold 
Directorships in more than 20 entities. This was 
confirmed by the company secretary.

Complied

Board of Directors retains the powers vested 
in them, in relation to the taking of all the key 
strategic decisions and areas relating to overall 
controls and supervision.

Complied

The delegation process was last reviewed and 
approved by the board at the meeting held in 
December 2018.

Complied

The Chairman and the chief executive officer is 
separated and carried out by Dr.W.M Hemachandra 
and Mr. D.S.l Weerasinghe respectively.

Complied 

The chairman, Dr. W. M. Hemachandra is an 
independent non-executive director. Hence there 
is no requirement for a Senior Independent Non-
Executive Director.
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 6 (3) Check that the board has a process to identify  
 and disclose in its Corporate Governance report,  
 which shall be a part of its Annual Report, any  
 relationship [including financial, business, family  
 or other material/relevant relationship(s)], if any,  
 between the Chairman and the CEO and  
 relationships among members of the board.

 6 (4) Check that the chairman:  
 a) provide leadership to the Board; 
 (b) ensure that the Board works effectively and  
  discharges its responsibilities; and 
 (c) ensure that all key issues are discussed by  
  the Board in a timely manner. 

 6 (5) Check that a formal agenda is circulated by the  
 company secretary approved by the chairman. 
 

 6 (6) Check that the agenda has adequate information  
 in relation to the agenda items. Agenda papers are  
 circulated to the directors 7 days prior to  
 the meeting. 

 6 (7) Peruse at least three board minutes to ensure that  
 the board members have adequately contributed  
 to the decisions. 

 6 (8) Peruse at least three board minutes to ensure  
 that the Chairman facilitates the contribution of  
 non-executive directors and ensures constructive  
 relationships between executive and  
 non – executive directors.

Complied

The details of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer 
are disclosed in the Annual Report. There is no 
any material relationship between Chairman and 
Chief Executive Officer or and other member of the 
Board.

Complied

Chairman has attended all the meetings happened 
during the year and key issues and strategies 
pertaining to the business have been discussed 
among the board members and the chairman, as 
documented in the meeting minutes.

Complied

The Chairman has delegated the function of 
preparing the agenda to the company secretary 
with his supervision.

Complied

The chairman ensures that all directors are 
informed adequately and notice of the meeting is 
sent with the papers prior to 7 days of the meeting.

Complied

The Board members have adequately contributed 
to the decisions of the Company. As evidenced in 
the board meetings.

Complied

Board meetings are headed by the chairman and 
any disputes are resolved in a professional manner 
as documented in the board minutes.
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 6 (9) Peruse the organizational chart approved by  
 the board and inquire from the key management  
 personnel whether they are under the  
 supervision of the Chairman.

 6 (10) Check the process adopted by the Chairman of  
 the Company to communicate with the  
 shareholders and how the views of shareholders  
 are communicated to the board.

 6 (11) Peruse the organizational chart approved by the  
 board to ensure that the CEO functions as the  
 apex of the company. 
 

7.  board appointed Committees

 7 (1) Check that the finance company has established  
 an Audit Committee and an Integrated Risk  
 Management Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Complied

The organizational chart of the Company was last 
approved by the board at the meeting held in 
December 2018.

Complied

At the AGM all significant issues (if any) are 
communicated with the shareholders, if required 

Complied

The chief executive officer functions as the 
apex executive-in-charge of the day-to-day-
management of the finance company’s operations 
and business

Complied

The Company has two Board committees namely, 
Board Audit Committee and Integrated Risk 
Management Committee and they report directly 
to the Board. A chairman and a secretary for each 
committee have been appointed by the Board.

head of audit Committee - K.K.D Ranawaka

secretary- Chart Business Systems

(Mr. M.D.M.R.S. Madappuli was appointed to the 
committee as the chairman from 15th August 2019.)  

head of integrated risk management Committee-
Mr.Hurulle

secretary- Mr. V. Banduwansa
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 7 (2) Audit Committee 

  a) Check that the chairman of the committee  
  is a non-executive director who possesses  
  qualifications and experience in accountancy  
  and/or audit.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  b) Check that the Board members appointed to  
  the committee are non-executive directors. 

  c) Check that the committee makes  
  recommendations on matters in  
  connection with:  
  (i)  the appointment of the external auditor  
   for audit services to be provided in  
   compliance with the relevant statutes;  
  (ii)  the implementation of the Central Bank  
   guidelines issued to auditors from time  
   to time;  
  (iii)  the application of the relevant  
   accounting standards

Partially Complied

The chairman of the committee, Mr K.K.D Ranawaka 
who served the committee until 15th August 
2019, is an Attorney at Law and a Non-executive 
Director of the Company. He does not possess any 
qualifications and experience in accountancy and/
or audit. 

However, Mr. M.D.M.R.S. Madappuli, who was 
appointed to the committee as the chairman, is 
a Fellow Chartered Accountant (FCA) and has 32 
years of post-qualification experience in the field of 
finance.

Complied

All three board members appointed to the 
committee are non-executive directors.

Complied

(i) External auditors are appointed by the audit  
 committee.

(ii) Finance company operates in line with the  
 directions published by the central bank.

(iii) Financial statements is in line with the Sri  
 Lankan Accounting Standards.
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  d)  Check whether the committee has established  
  a policy in relation to the service period, audit  
  fee and any resignation or dismissal of the  
  auditor; This policy should address that the  
  engagement partner does not exceed five  
  years, and is not re-engaged for the audit  
  before the expiry of three years from the date  
  of the completion of the previous term. 

  e) Check that the committee has obtained  
  representations from the external auditor’s  
  on their independence and evaluated the  
  effectiveness, and that the audit is carried  
  out in accordance with SLAuS. 

  f) Check that the committee has implemented  
  a policy on the engagement of an external  
  auditor which does not impair the  
  independence and objectivity in relation to the  
  provision of non-audit services (in accordance  
  with Sec 8 2(e) of the regulations). 
 

  g) Check that the committee has discussed and  
  finalised, the nature and scope of the audit,  
  with the external auditors including: 
  (i)  an assessment of the finance company’s  
   compliance with Directions issued under  
   the Act and the management’s internal  
   controls over financial reporting; 
  (ii)  the preparation of financial statements in  
   accordance with relevant accounting  
   principles and reporting obligations; and 
  (iii)  the co-ordination between auditors where  
   more than one auditor is involved.

not Complied

No formal policy has been documented.

Complied

The Committee has obtained a representation  
from the external auditor.

Complied
The Board has a policy for Engagement of the 
External Auditors for providing non-audit services. 
This policy includes about the services, the fees 
chargeable when proving non audit services.

Accordingly the board and audit committee 
critically evaluate whether “independence” of the 
auditor would be impaired in obtaining non-audit 
services in consultation with Head of Finance.

not complied

The Audit Committee had not invited the auditors 
to attend any Audit Committee meetings.
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  h)  Check that the committee has a process to  
  review the financial information of the finance  
  company, in order to monitor the integrity of  
  the financial statements of the finance  
  company, its annual report, accounts and  
  periodical reports prepared for disclosure,  
  and the significant financial reporting  
  judgments contained therein.  

  In reviewing the finance company’s annual  
  report and accounts and periodical reports  
  before submission to the Board, the  
  committee shall focus particularly on: 
  (i)   major judgmental areas;  
  (ii)  any changes in accounting policies  
   and practices;  
  (iii)  the going concern assumption; 
  (iv) the compliance with relevant  
   accounting standards and other legal  
   requirements, and; 
  (v)  in respect of the annual financial  
   statements the significant adjustments  
   arising from the audit.

  i)  Check that the committee has met the  
  external auditors to discuss issues, problems  
  and reservations arising from the interim and  
  the final audit including matters which needs  
  to be discussed in the absence of the  
  executive management by perusing  
  the minutes.

  j)  Check that the committee reviewed the  
  external auditor’s management letter and  
  the management’s response thereto. 

Partially Complied

The committee periodically reviews the financial 
information, in order to monitor the integrity of the 
financial statements. 

The Committee reviews the annual report of the 
Company and interim financial statements.

No evidence was provided to prove that the audit 
committee reviewed the 31 March 2019 accounts 
and recommended that the accounts be approved 
to the board of directors.

not complied

The Audit Committee had not invited the auditors 
to attend any Audit Committee meetings.

not Complied

No evidence is available for the Audit Committee 
review of external auditor’s management letter/ 
draft management letter
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  k)  Check that the committee has taken the  
  following steps with regard to the internal  
  audit function of the finance  company:  
  (i)  Established the internal audit charter  
   which covers the scope and functions  
   of the internal audit department and  
   satisfy itself that the department has the 
   necessary authority to carry out its work.  
  (ii)  Reviewed the resources of the internal  
   audit department, and satisfy itself that  
   the department has the necessary  
   resources to carry out its work; 
  (iii) Reviewed the internal audit program and  
   results of the internal audit process and,  
   where necessary, ensure that appropriate  
   actions are taken on the recommendations  
   of the internal audit department ; 
  (iv) Reviewed any appraisal or assessment of  
   the performance of the head and senior  
   staff members of the internal  
   audit department; 
  (v) Recommended the appointment or  
   termination of the head, senior staff  
   members and outsourced service  
   providers to the internal audit function; 
  (vi) Checked that the committee has been  
   informed of all resignations of senior staff  
   members of the internal audit department  
   including the chief internal auditor and  
   any outsourced service providers and has  
   provided an opportunity for them to give  
   the reasons for their resignations 
  (vii) Examined the organization chart and  
   terms of reference and ensure that the  
   internal audit function is independent of  
   the activities it audits.

Partially Complied

(i)  The internal audit plan for the year 2019 was  
 reviewed and approved by the audit  
 committee at the meeting held on 20th  
 December 2018.

(ii)  The committee has considered the scope of  
 the internal audit function and noted  
 the adequacy of resources and that  
 necessary authority had been allocated to  
 carry out its work.

(iii)  The internal audit findings were tabled at the  
 audit committee and recommendations were  
 made as evident in the meeting minutes

(iv)  No evidence was provided any appraisals  
 undertaken in relation to the performance of  
 the head and senior staff members of  
 internal audit

(v)  There was no appointment or termination of  
 the head, senior staff members and  
 outsourced  service providers to the internal  
 audit function such situations occurred  
 during the year

(vi)  The internal audit department is in house. No  
 resignation has occurred during the year.

(vii)  The internal audit function is independent of  
 the activities it audits.

(viii)  No Process documentation was provided for  
 as evidence
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   (viii) Checked that a process has been  
   documented which addresses that the  
   audit work has been performed with  
   impartiality, proficiency and due  
   professional care.

 l) Check that the committee considers the major  
 findings of internal investigations and  
 management’s response thereto; 

 m) Check that the committee has met the external  
 auditors without the executive management at  
 least once in six months.

 n) Check that the committee have:  
 (i)  explicit authority to investigate into any matter  
  within its terms of reference;  
 (ii)  the resources which it needs to do so;  
 (iii)  full access to information; and 
 (iv)  authority to obtain external professional  
  advice and to invite outsiders with relevant  
  experience to attend, if necessary.

  o) Check that the committee has met regularly and  
 maintained minutes. 

 p) Check that the Board has, in the Annual Report,  
 disclosed in an informative way,  
 (i)  details of the activities of the audit committee;  
 (ii)  the number of audit committee meetings held  
  in the year; and  
 (iii)  details of attendance of each individual  
  member at such meetings.

Complied
The Committee reviews the major findings of 
the internal audit and management’s responses 
thereto.

not complied
The Audit Committee had not invited the auditors 
to attend any Audit Committee meetings

Complied
Terms of reference to the Audit committee 
specifies the authorities of the committee and 
relevant documents are available with the Internal 
audit.

Complied 
The committee has met 10 times during the year 
and the minutes have been maintained by the 
Company.

Complied 
The details of the Audit Committee report is 
available in the annual report.
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  q) Check that the secretary of the committee is  
  the company secretary or the head of the  
  internal audit function.  

  r)  Check that the “whistle blower” policy covers  
  the process of dealing with; 
  i)  The improprieties in financial reporting,  
   internal control or other matters. 
  ii)  In relation to (i) the committee shall  
   ensure that proper arrangements are in  
   place for the fair and independent  
   investigation of such matters, and 
  iii)  Appropriate follow-up action. 
  iv) Protection of the whistle blower

 7 (3) Integrated Risk Management Committee

  a) Check that the committee consists of at least  
  one non-executive director, CEO and key  
  management personnel supervising broad  
  risk categories, i.e., credit, market, liquidity,  
  operational and strategic risks and work  
  within the framework of the authority and  
  responsibility assigned to the committee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Complied 
The Audit committee minutes are filed by the 
company Secretary who acts as the secretary of 
the committee.

Complied 
The internal audit has put a mechanism of “Whistle 
blower policy” in place and information received 
from staff are independently investigated.

The board has approved the whistle blower policy 
on the 15th of Novemeber 2018.

Complied
The board IRMC committee consists of:
mr t.l.b.hurulle - Non executive Director
mr d.s.i.Weerasinghe - CEO
mr e.a.Godage - GM (Marketing)
mr r.m.s.C.b.rathnayaka - GM (Investment)
mr r.i.kJoseph - DGM (IT)
mr e.s.t.Wijewaradena - AGM (Credit)
mr J.a.a.r.Perera - AGM (Compliance)
mr a.h.k.k.abayajeewa - Head of Finance

The committee works with key management 
personnel closely and make decisions on behalf of 
the Board within the framework of the authority and 
responsibility assigned to the committee.
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  b) Check that the committee has a documented  
  process to capture and assess all risks, i.e.,  
  credit, market, liquidity, operational and  
  strategic risks to the finance company on a  
  monthly basis through appropriate risk  
  indicators and management information.  
  In the case of subsidiary companies and  
  associate companies, risk management shall  
  be done, both on a finance company basis  
  and group basis.

  c) Check that the committee has evaluated  
  functions carried out by all management  
  level committees such as the credit  
  committee and the asset-liability committees,  
  in relation addressing specific risks and  
  managing these risks. 

  d) Check that the committee has taken prompt  
  actions in accordance with the policies on  
  risks which have gone beyond the specified  
  levels as decided by the committee.

  e) Check the committee has met at least  
  quarterly to assess all aspects of risk  
  management by perusing the minutes.

  f) Check that the committee has taken  
  appropriate actions against the officers  
  responsible for failure to identify specific risks  
  and take prompt corrective actions as  
  recommended by the committee, and/or as  
  directed by the Director of the Department of  
  Supervision of Non-Bank Financial Institutions  
  of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

Complied
The management information along with the risk 
indicators on credit, market, liquidity, operational 
and strategic risk of the Company is presented to 
the IRMC monthly meetings.

The Company has no subsidiaries.

Partially Complied

IRMC reviews any issues highlighted by the 
management level committees and escalates 
significant issues to the Board. Minutes of 
discussion is available as evidence to demonstrate 
that the IRMC evaluated the functions carried out 
by the management committees.

Complied

The Committee takes corrective action to mitigate 
the effects of specific risks on case by case basis.

Complied

The committee meetings were held monthly during 
the year 2018/19.

Complied

No such instances were noted during the year.
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  g)  Check that the committee submits a risk  
  assessment report within a week of each  
  meeting to the Board seeking the Board’s  
  views, concurrence and/or specific directions.  
 
 

  h)  Check that the committee establish a  
  compliance function to assess the finance  
  company’s compliance with laws, regulations,  
  directions, rules, regulatory guidelines,  
  internal controls and approved policies on all  
  areas of business operations. A dedicated  
  compliance officer selected from key  
  management personnel shall carry out the  
  compliance function and report to the  
  committee periodically. 

8.  related party transactions

 8 (1) Check that there is an established and documented  
 process by the board to avoid any conflicts of  
 interest that may arise from any transaction of the  
 finance company with the following categories of  
 persons who shall be considered as  
 “related parties” for the purposes of this Direction: 
 a) A subsidiary of the finance company;  
 b) Any associate company of the finance  
  company;  
 c) A director of the finance company;  
 d)  A key management personnel of the finance  
  company;  
 e)  A relative of a director or a key management  
  personnel of the finance company ;  
 f)   A shareholder who owns shares exceeding  
  10% of the paid up capital of the  
  finance company;   

not complied

The committee does not submit a risk assessment 
report to the Board within a week of each meeting.

However, the discussions and conclusions reached 
at such meetings are circulated to the Board of 
Directors at the next immediate Board Meeting.

Complied

The committee meets on a monthly basis. Each 
department is supposed to submit a risk profile in 
the IRMC meeting, where they talk about the risk 
which the department faces.

Mr. J. A. A. R. Perera, the compliance officer carry 
out the compliance function and report to the 
committee periodically.

Partially Complied

Currently the company does not have a 
documented procedure to identify related party 
transaction

However the company maintains a family tree  
though which it monitors RPT.

The company has implemented a documented 
procedure from October 2019.
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  g)  A concern in which a director of the finance  
  company or a relative of a director or a  
  shareholder who owns shares exceeding 10%  
  of the paid up capital of the finance company,  
  has substantial interest.  
 

 8 (2) Check that there is a process to identify and report  
 the following types of transactions been identified  
 as transactions with related parties that is covered  
 by this Direction. 
  a) The grant of any type of accommodation,  
   as defined in the Monetary board’s  
   Directions on maximum amount of  
   accommodation. 
 
  b) The creation of any liabilities of the  
   finance company in the form of deposits,  
   borrowings and investments. 
 
  c) The provision of any services of a financial  
   or non-financial nature provided to the  
   finance company or received from the  
   finance company. 
 
  d) The creation or maintenance of reporting  
   lines and information flows between the  
   finance company and any related parties  
   which may lead to the sharing of  
   potentially proprietary, confidential or  
   otherwise sensitive information that may  
   give benefits to such related parties.

not complied

There is no formally documented process to 
identify related party transactions covered in this 
direction.
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 8 (3) Does the board have a process to ensure that the  
 finance company does not engage in transactions  
 with related parties as defined in Direction  
 8(2) above, in a manner that would grant such  
 parties “more favourable treatment” than that  
 accorded to other constituents of the finance  
 company carrying on the same business. 
 
 a) Granting of “total net accommodation” to a  
  related party, exceeding a prudent  
  percentage of the finance company’s  
  regulatory capital, as determined by the  
  Board. The “total net accommodation” shall  
  be computed by deducting from the total  
  accommodation, the cash collateral and  
  investments made by such related party in  
  the finance company’s share capital and debt  
  instruments with a remaining maturity of  
  5 years or more. 
 b) Charging of a lower rate of interest than the 
  finance company’s best lending rate or paying  
  a rate of interest exceeding the rate paid for  
  a comparable transaction with an unrelated  
  comparable counterparty; 
 c) Providing preferential treatment, such as  
  favourable terms, covering trade losses  
  and/or waiving fees/commissions, that  
  extends beyond the terms granted in the  
  normal course of business with  
  unrelated parties; 
 d) Providing or obtaining services to or from a  
  related-party without a proper evaluation  
  procedure;

Partially complied

Even though the Company does not have a formal 
policy for identification of related parties, the Board 
ensures that the finance company does not engage 
transactions with a related party in a manner 
that would grant such party “more favourable 
treatment” than that is accorded to other similar 
constituents of the Company.
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   e) Maintaining reporting lines and  
   information flows between the finance  
   company and any related party which  
   may lead to share proprietary, confidential  
   or otherwise sensitive information that  
   may give benefits to such related party,  
   except as required for the performance  
   of legitimate duties and functions.

9.  disclosure

 9 (1) Check that the Board ensures that:   
 (a) annual audited financial statements and  
  periodical financial statements are prepared  
  and published in accordance with the formats  
  prescribed by the regulatory and supervisory  
  authorities and applicable accounting  
  standards, and that  
 (b) such statements are published in the  
  newspapers in an abridged form,  
  in Sinhala, Tamil and English.  
 
 
 

 9 (2)  Check that the Board ensures that at least the  
 following disclosures are made in the  
 Annual Report:

  a)  A statement to the effect that the annual  
  audited financial statements have been  
  prepared in line with applicable accounting  
  standards and regulatory requirements,  
  inclusive of specific disclosures.

Complied

The financial statements for the year ended 31st 
March 2019 and the bi-annual financial statements 
were verified by the board for compliance with all 
rules and regulatory requirements and applicable 
accounting standards. 

The Company published the audited financial 
statements for year 2018/19 Financial statement 
on 16th July 2019 in Sinhala, Tamil and English 
newspapers.

The interim Financial statements for the year 
2018/19 were published on the 30th of November 
2018.

Complied

Report of the “Director’s responsibility for financial 
reporting” in the annual report contain the required 
disclosure.
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  b) A report by the Board on the finance  
  company’s internal control mechanism that  
  confirms that the financial reporting system  
  has been designed to provide a reasonable  
  assurance regarding the reliability of financial  
  reporting, and that the preparation of financial  
  statements for external purposes has been  
  done in accordance with relevant accounting  
  principles and regulatory requirements.

  c)  Details of directors, including names,  
  transactions with the finance company. 
 
 
 
 

  d)  Fees and remuneration paid to directors  
  in aggregate. 
 

  e)  Total net accommodation as defined in  
  paragraph 9(4) granted to each category of  
  related parties. The net accommodation  
  granted to each category of related parties  
  shall also be disclosed as a percentage of  
  the finance company’s capital funds. 
 
 

Complied

Report of the “Director’s responsibility for financial 
reporting” in the annual report contain the required 
disclosure.

Complied

Details of the Directors, including their names have 
disclosed in the page 16 to 19 of the annual report.

Director’s transactions with the finance company 
are disclosed in the Related Party Transactions 
note in page 199 to 200 of the annual report.

Complied

Disclosed in page 125 “The Annual Report of the 
Board of Directors on the affairs of the company”  
of the Annual Report

Partially complied

Director’s transactions with the finance company 
are disclosed in the Related Party Transactions 
note in page 199 of the annual report.

However, the net accommodation outstanding in 
respect of each category of related parties as a 
percentage of the finance company’s capital funds 
is not disclosed.
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  f)  The aggregate values of remuneration paid  
  by the finance company to its key  
  management personnel and the aggregate  
  values of the transactions of the finance  
  company with its key management personnel  
  during the financial year, set out by broad  
  categories such as remuneration paid,  
  accommodation granted and deposits or  
  investments made in the finance company. 

  g)  A report setting out details of the compliance  
  with prudential requirements, regulations,  
  laws and internal controls and measures  
  taken to rectify any material non-compliances. 

  h)  A statement of the regulatory and supervisory  
  concerns on lapses in the finance company’s  
  risk management, or non-compliance with the  
  Act, and rules and directions that have been  
  communicated by the Director of the  
  Department of Supervision of Non-Bank  
  Financial Institutions, if so directed by the  
  Monetary Board to be disclosed to the public,  
  together with the measures taken by the  
  finance company to address such concerns. 

  i)  A statement indicating that the board has  
  obtained a factual findings report on the  
  compliance with the corporate governance  
  direction. 

10 Check that the board has obtained the external auditor’s  
report on the effectiveness of the internal control  
mechanism referred to in Directions 9 (2) (b) above. 

Complied

The key management personnel’s transactions with 
the finance company are disclosed in the Related 
Party Transactions note in page 200 of the annual 
report.

Complied

Disclosed in “the annual report of the Board of 
Directors on the affairs of the company “ of the 
Annual Report

Complied

Disclosed in “the annual report of the Board of 
Directors on the affairs of the company and” 
Directors statement on the internal controls over 
financial Reporting” statement of the Annual Report.

Complied
The factual findings report on the compliance with 
the corporate governance direction was obtained 
by the Directors and have disclosed from pages 75 
to 100 of the annual report

not Complied
A report was not obtained from the External Auditors



101ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

RepoRt oF tHe BoaRd audit coMMittee

ComPosition of the audit Committee

The ‘Board Audit Committee’ appointed by the Board 
of Directors of Kanrich Finance Limited comprises of 
three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely, 

Mr. K.K.D. Ranawaka, Dr. W.M. Hemachandra and Mr. 
T.L.B. Hurulle. Each Member possesses wide ranging 
financial, banking and management experience and brief 
profiles of the Members are given in the Directors’ Profile 
of this Annual Report. The Company Secretary functions 
as the Secretary to the Audit Committee.

funCtions of the audit Committee

Functions of the Board Audit Committee are to 
assist the Board of Directors in fulfilling its oversight 
responsibilities in the financial reporting process and 
audit of the financial statements by monitoring the 
integrity and reliability of the financial statements. The 
Committee oversees the effectiveness of the system 
of internal controls and risk management. Also, the 
Committee shall review and monitor the external 
auditor’s independence, objectivity and effectiveness 
of the audit process in accordance with the applicable 
standards and best practices.  

role of the audit Committee

The Committee conducts its independent reviews 
by bringing a systematic and disciplined approach to 
evaluate and improve the effectiveness of controls, 
risk management and Governance processes of the 
Company to: 

 Ensure that financial reporting systems in 
place are comprehensive, effective and well-
managed in order to provide relevant and timely 
information to the Board of Directors, Regulatory 
Authorities, the Management and other 
Stakeholders;

 Review the appropriateness of accounting 
policies and ensure their adherence to statutory 
and regulatory compliance requirements and 
applicable Accounting Standards;

 Evaluate the existence, adequacy, efficiency 
and effectiveness the Internal Control system of 
the Company in place to avoid or mitigate the 
evolving risks;

 Review Internal and External Audit Reports for 
follow up with the Management on the basis of 
their findings and recommendations; 

 Implement the CBSL guidelines issued to 
Auditors from time to time and

  Review the Annual Financial Statements of the 
Company in order to monitor the integrity and 
reliability of such statements. 

meetinGs of the audit Committee

The Committee met on 12 occasions during the 
year under review. The frequency and the duration 
of the meetings enabled the Committee to fulfill its 
responsibilities effectively. The Chief Executive Officer, 
Executive Director, General Managers, Head of Finance, 
Compliance Officer, Head of Credit, Head of Internal 
Audit and the Heads of Divisions had been invited to 
the meetings of the Audit Committee at various times 
during the year in order to seek clarification where 
necessary. Based on the Head of Internal Audit ’s main 
findings of all internal audits and investigations the 
committee reviewed the same and where necessary 
corrective action was recommended and monitored 
the implementation.
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Monitoring the Internal Audit Functions of the Company 
The Committee makes its reviews to ensure that the 
Internal Audit Function has been independent of the 
operational management of the Company and it is 
performed diligently with due professional care. The 
Audit Committee also reviewed the internal audit 
charter which defines mission and scope of work 
accountability, responsibility and authority of the 
Head of Internal Audit  to provide an independent 
audit function. It also reviews the internal audit 
programme and results of the internal audit process, 
and where necessary ensure that appropriate actions 
are taken on the recommendations of the internal 
audit department. It also assessed the internal audit 
department’s resource requirements, including its 
succession planning. The Committee reviewed audit 
reports covering various functions of the Company 
and followed up the implementation of the audit 
recommendations confirmed by the Committee. 
 
statutory and reGulatory ComPlianCe

The Committee also reviewed the procedures 
established by the Management for compliance with 
the statutory and regulatory requirements of the 
Central Bank of Sri Lanka and due compliance with all 
other requirements.

external audit

The committee developed and has implemented 
a policy with the approval of the board on the 
engagement of an external auditor to audit and non-
audit services that are permitted under the relevant 
statutes, regulations requirements and guidelines. The 
committee discussed their audit plan and the scope 
of the audit before the commencement of the annual 
audit by the external auditors. 

Messrs. KPMG are deemed re-appointed as Auditors 
at the Annual General Meeting of the company in 
terms of Section 158 of the Companies Act No. 07 of 
2007. The directors have been authorized to determine 
the remuneration of the Auditors and the fee paid to 
the Auditors are disclosed in note 11 to the financial 
statements on page 133. As far as the directors are 
aware, the auditors do not have any relationship (other 
than that of an auditor) with the company or any of its 
subsidiaries other than those disclosed in the above 
note.

ConClusion

Based on the reviews of the reports presented by the 
external and internal auditors, the information obtained 
by the Committee and having examined the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the internal controls which have 
been designed to provide a reasonable assurance to 
Directors that the control environment prevailing in the 
company provides a reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of the financial reporting of the Company 
and safeguarding the assets of the Company, the 
Audit Committee is satisfied that the financial position 
of the Company is regularly monitored and steps are 
being taken continuously to improve the controls, risk 
management and governance environment in which 
the Company operates.

k. k. d. ranawaka
Chairman of the Board Audit Committee

05th July 2019
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BoaRd intgRated Risk ManageMent coMMittee

The Board Appointed Integrated Risk Management 
Committee (BIRMC) of Kanrich Finance Ltd. was 
established in terms of the Finance Companies (Corporate 
Governance) Direction No.3 of 2008 issued by the 
Monetary Board of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka under the 
Finance Business Act No.42 of 2011. 

The Members of the Committee during the year under 
review were Dr.W.M.Hemachandra - Chairman/ Independent 
Non-Executive Director (who served on the Committee until 
11th September 2018), the Chief Executive Officer, General 
Managers, Departmental Heads and Compliance Officer 
of the company. With the reconstitution, Mr.T.L.B.Hurulle, 
Independent Non-Executive Director was appointed as the 
Chairman of the BIRMC from 18th October 2018 and all the 
Key Management Personnel (KMPs) as members of the 
Committee.

The BIRMC assesses the risks of company’s all department 
and product related risks on a monthly basis while 
categorizing them under 03 risk categories i.e. Low, Medium 
and High. Immediate and appropriate actions were taken to 
mitigate the effects of those identified risks and staff were 
made aware of the actions required to be implemented. As a 
measure of reducing the risks that the company would face, 
the compliance function was also strengthened to adhere 
to laws, regulatory directions and guidelines related to 
encompass all areas of business operations. 

aCtivities Performed durinG the Period 2018/2019

The BIRMC held 12 meetings during the year under review 
and the attendance of Committee Members at meetings 
is stated on page _.The committee assessed all key risks 
such as credit, operational, market, liquidity and other 
risks which were tracked on a monthly basis through a 
set of risk indicators. In order to discharge the duties and 
responsibilities, the Committee carried out the following 
activities during the period under review.

 Monitored the actions proposed at the meetings of 
the Committee to ensure that the severity of risks 
were mitigated. 

 Reviewed and agreed to work plans, related 
strategies and policies to mitigate the risks along 
with a good understanding of the measures and 
mechanisms suggested by the members of the 
BIRMC

 Reviewed all risks and related activities on monthly 
basis, thus reducing the risks in all functions that the 
company was undertaking;

 Consequent to the reviewing the risks, quantitative 
and qualitative measures were proposed and such 
actions were reported to the Board of Directors on a 
monthly basis;

 Follow up actions were taken to ensure that 
decisions made at the committees were 
implemented; 

 Action was taken to ensure that the Corporate Plan 
was carefully considered while addressing the 03 
levels of risks involved;

 Reviewed the effectiveness of the compliance 
function to assess the company’s compliance 
with laws, regulations, regulatory guidelines and 
corrective actions were taken where necessary. The 
Compliance Officer facilitated related matters. 

Based on the activities of the committees, the BIRMC 
during the year submitted monthly a risk assessment 
report to the Board of Directors seeking the views of the 
Board, its concurrence and specific directions on related 
matters. 

t.l.b.hurulle Chairman
Board Integrated Risk Management Committee

05th July 2019
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Composition of the Committee

The Board Nomination Committee, BNC, comprised of 
the following Directors of the Company.

The Board Nomination Committee operates in pursuant 
to the Board Nomination Committee Charter approved 
by the Board of Directors. The objective of the 
Committee is to lead the process of selection of the 
most suitable candidate or candidates for appointing to 
the Board and to make recommendations to the Board 
for its consideration, after taking into account the plans 
for succession for both executive and non-executive 
Directors, whilst maintaining the balance of skills and 
experience on the Board and its Committees, and 
also to make recommendations for appointing Chief 
Executive Officer and Officer / Officers performing 
executive functions.

Charter of the Committee

The mandate of the Committee includes inter alia the 
following:

 To implement a procedure to elect / appoint 
new Directors, Chief Executive Officer and 
Officers performing executive functions as 
defined in the Finance Companies (Assessment 
of Fitness and Propriety of Directors and Officers 
Performing Executive Functions) Direction No. 03 
of 2011.

 To consider and make recommendation to re-
elect current Directors, after taking into account 

BoaRd noMination coMMittee RepoRt

the performance and contribution made by them 
towards the overall discharge of the Board’s 
responsibilities.

 To set the criteria such as qualifications, 
experience and key attributes required to gain 
eligibility, to be considered for an appointment or 
promotion to the post of Chief Executive Officer 
and Officer/ Officers performing executive 
functions.

 To ensure that Directors, Chief Executive Officer 
and Officer / Officers performing executive 
functions are fit and proper persons to hold 
office, as per the criteria set out in the said 
Direction No. 3 of 2011 issued by the Central Bank 
of Sri Lanka and relevant statutes.

 To consider and recommend, from time to time, 
the requirements of additional / new expertise 
and the succession arrangements for retiring 
Directors and Officer/ Officers performing 
executive functions.

 To make recommendations on any other relevant 
matter/s referred to the Committee, by the 
Board of Directors. 

During the financial year under review, the Committee 
met twice for recommendations to the Board of 
Directors for appointment of a Legal officer and a 
Compliance Officer.

dr. W.m. hemachandra 
Chairman

05th July 2019

Dr. W.M. Hemachandra  Chairman of the  
  Committee 

Dr. K.M.S.B. Rekogama Member

Mr. K. K. D. Ranawaka  Member

Mr. T.L.B. Hurulle Member  
  (From 01st January 2018)
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BoaRd ReMuneRation coMMittee RepoRt

The Board Remuneration Committee (BRC) comprised 
of the following Directors of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee operates in pursuant 
to the guidelines set out in the Remuneration 
Committee Charter approved by the Board of 
Directors. The Charter sets out the role of the 
Committee, its objectives, membership, and the 
remuneration framework to be considered in making its 
recommendations to the Board of Directors. 

The objective of the Committee is to assist the Board 
by making suitable recommendations, for fulfilling its 
corporate governance responsibilities with regard to 
the remuneration matters including the following:

a) The remuneration framework to be applicable for 
Non- Executive Directors.

b) The remuneration and incentive framework 
applicable for the Chief Executive Officer / 
Executive Director / Directors and officers 
performing executive functions.

Dr. W.M. Hemachandra  Chairman of the  
  Committee 

Dr. K.M.S.B. Rekogama Member

Mr. K. K. D. Ranawaka  Member

Mr. T.L.B. Hurulle Member  
  (From 01st January 2018)

c) Make recommendations on the remuneration 
and all inclusive packages to be offered for the 
Chief Executive Officer / Executive Director 
/ Directors and officers performing executive 
functions.

During the year under review, the Committee met twice 
for recommendations to the Board of Directors on the 
remuneration package for the Compliance Officer and 
for designating a director to the Board of Directors.

dr. W.m. hemachandra 
Chairman

05th July 2019
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Risk ManageMent

The management of risk has become a vital part of a finance company, now more than ever, due to many 
factors such as the rising complexity of financial products and services, rapid changes in regulations, 
technology, operations and the economic environment. Risk related situations may arise without notice and 
therefore a company should have a strong risk management mechanism in place, in line with the strategic 
objectives of the company. The strategic objectives can be used to provide the roadmap and direction for 
the risk management function of the company and to determine the risk appetite of the company.

Certain unfavorable events that prevailed in the operating and macro-economic environment during the 
last quarter of the previous year, such as rising interest rates and inflation, deterioration of foreign reserves 
coupled with the worsening political stability locally and internationally (especially in the Middle East 
region), continued during the year under review. As a result, a number of risk related events which had a 
detrimental impact on the business and the strategic objectives have occurred during the year.  

1. risk manaGement obJeCtive the obJeCtives of risk manaGement are as folloWs:

  Recognizing and understanding emerging risks in relation to strategic objectives. 

  Determining risk appetite levels 

  Determining risk tolerance levels in line with the strategic objectives of the company

  Ensuring that business operations and decision making are shaped by the risk appetite framework. 

  Utilizing the risk management function as a support tool in decision making

  Strengthening the risk management culture at various decision-making levels

2. enterPrise risk manaGement (erm) 

As far as KFL is concerned, ERM is an ongoing process that requires continuous improvement and changes 
from time to-time. It should provide a consistent framework of reference and a common language by 
which risks are identified, described, measured, mitigated and reported. This process should first start at 
the board level and ultimately spread down to all levels including the senior management. Further, this 
process should be supported by an implementation team who has relevant expertise, commitment of time, 
resources, training and support to get actively involved in achieving ERM objectives and aid those who are 
involved in the process.

The Board of Directors hold the ultimate responsibility of managing risk and they are supported by the 
Integrated Risk Management Committee (IRMC), which assembles on a regular basis to review risk related 
matters. The risk is monitored and managed at each department and business unit and is reported 
to the IRMC. In addition, the Risk and Compliance Department is responsible for coordinating the risk 
management function and providing expertise to other departments and units, while the Internal Audit 
Department is responsible for conducting regular audits on the effectiveness of the risk management 
process and reporting to Audit Committee of the Board and the Board of Directors.
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Risk Management
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The main elements of the risk oversight structure of KFL can be elaborated as follows:

key oBjectives RepResented By cHaiRed By

Implementation of risk 
management strategies

Close monitoring of risk 
events of the company

Non-Executive 
Independent Chairman 
Chief Executive Officer 
General Managers
Head of Finance Head

Independent Non-
Executive director

Chief Executive Officer 
General Managers 
Head of Finance 
Head of Credit 
Head of Information 
Technology 
Head of Compliance

Independent non-
executive director

is also be responsible for eliminating gaps and 
overlaps in the risk management responsibilities 
and authorities and resolving significant internal 
conflicts.

 irmC coordinates decision making involved in 
evaluating risk measurement methodologies and 
develops enterprise wide risk policies. They also 
evaluate the effectiveness of the infrastructure 
which is in place for managing specific risks and 
ensure that necessary improvements are made to 
close any gaps. This committee assembles once a 
month.

 the board of directors oversee the entire 
process, with an emphasis on understanding 
priority risks, approving risk management policies 
for critical risks and determining whether the 
responses for those risks are effective. This may 
also be carried out by the Audit Committee and 
the IRMC.

 the Ceo is ultimately responsible for ERM 
priorities, strategies and policies and acts as the 
final enforcer on such matters.  He is overseeing 
whether these are aligned with the objectives, 
strategies and risk appetite of the company. He 
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 business units (Zones and branches) are 
lines of operations of organization with specific 
objectives, strategies, markets, customer and 
products. The business units,

  Align their risk priorities, tolerances and 
strategies with enterprise wide policies and 
guidelines.

  Target business and product development 
activities to create new sources of value 
consistent with the enterprise’s overall risk 
appetite. 

  Identify, source and measure risk. 

  Benchmark processes and share best 
practices with the objective of continuously 
improving measures and processes. 

  Assign risk management responsibilities 
and accountabilities to key managers. 

  Report overall quality of risk responses, 
control activities and information and 
communication as applied to specific risk.

 supporting units consist of activities such 
as the Human Resource function, Information 
System function, Finance function, Administration 
function, Corporate Communication function and 
Research and Development function. Supporting 
units work closely with business units and 
risk units to manage risk that are germane to 
specialized skill sets.

 assurance units consist of the Risk and 
Compliance Department and Internal Audit 
Department. They perform periodic or continuous 
reviews to provide information to the IRMC and 
the Board on the effectiveness and efficiency of 
the risk management processes affecting critical 
functions and established policies

  KFL identifies risk events through risk 
indicators, process analysis and data 
tracking etc. The identification of risks or 
events that could go wrong, requires the 
ability to assess what would the impact 
of such an event be like on strategic and 
business objectives. Therefore, the success 
of the risk identification process depends on 
the experience, foresight and assessment 
capabilities of the KFL staff engaged in the 
process.

  Risk are first assessed, considering the 
likelihood and impact of such events, as the 
basis for determining how they should be 
managed. Further risks are assessed on an 
inherent and residual basis.

  Risk tolerance levels are derived from 
the risk appetite of the company. The 
compliance with risk tolerance levels are 
monitored monthly and reported to the 
IRMC and to the Board where decisions 
are taken with a view of maintaining risks 
within the tolerance levels. Further, risk 
constraints are imposed on departments 
and operational units based on the overall 
risk tolerance limits.

  In determining risk appetite and tolerance 
limits, the company consider risks within its 
control and beyond its control. Basically, the 
following risks are beyond the control of the 
company:

   Macro-economic Risk 

   Regulatory and Legal Risk

 The following risks are within the control of KFL 
and the risk appetite framework has been set in 
such way to cover these risks
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1.  Credit Risk 

2.  Market Risk

3.  Liquidity Risk 

4.  Compliance Risk 

5.  Operational Risk 

6.  Strategic Risk 

7.  Reputational Risk

 The current risk appetite of Kanrich Finance 
Limited (KFL) can be defined in terms of the 
following characteristics:

 Motive to improve asset quality

 Improvement of compliance, internal 
controls and good governance 

 Motive to maintain an optimum level of 
profitability while reducing overheads 

 Motive to diversify the existing  
product portfolio 

 Motive to maintain the optimum funding 
level

risk Category risk indicator tolerance limits

Credit risk NPL Ratio 8%
 Provisioin Cover Above 70%
 Impairment Charge ratio 4%
 Single Borrower Limits As per CBSL
market risk Net Interest Margin Above 15% 
(interest rate risk)
liquidity risk Liquid Assets Ratio Above 15%
 CBSL Liquidity Requirement As per CBSL
 Maturity Mismatches Below 5% of total
 (Below one year) Financial Assets
Compliance risk Number of Violations of Zero  
 Applicable Directions and Acts
stragic risk Return on Equity Above 35%
 Returnon Assests Above 5%
 Earnings per share Above 8/-
 Capital Adequacy As per CBSL
operational risk Cost to Income Ratio Below 50%
 Operational Efficiency Below 70%
 Colletion Efficiency Above 80%
 Staff Turnover Below 20%
 Value of Fraud and Cash Below 0.5% 
 robberies committed during  
 the year as a percentage of 
 Operational expenses
 Number of system break-dowsn Zero

Composition of loans and advances 17/18

Certain risk tolerance ranges of KFl would be as follows:

Personal Loans against 
FD& Pro Note

Corporate Term Loans

Micro Loans

Gold Loans

Consumer Loans

Ran Sihina Loans

Lease & Hire Puchase

Mortgage Loans

Business Loans Real Estate Loans

Personal Loans

Staff Loans

Welada Warama and 
Saviya Loans

3%
0%

22%

37%

13%

1%

1%

3%

6% 8%

3%

2%

1%
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Composition of loans  and advance 18/19

Personal Loans against 
FD& Pro Note

Corporate Term Loans

Micro Loans

Gold Loans

Consumer Loans

Ran Sihina Loans

Lease & Hire Puchase

Mortgage Loans

Business Loans Real Estate Loans

Personal Loans

Staff Loans

Welada Warama and 
Saviya Loans

3%

16%

52%

5%

1%

1%

4%

6%

8%

2%

2%

0%

0%



ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19112

manaGinG risks 

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from a 
counterparty being unable to meet its contractual 
obligations to the company in respect of loans or other 
financial transactions. This risk comprises of default 
risk, recovery risk, exposure risk, concentration risk 
and settlement risk. At the portfolio level, credit risk 
is assessed in relation to the degree of name, sector 
and geographic concentration, with a view of setting 
appropriate risk mitigation and transfer mechanisms 
and to assess risk capital requirements. The manner 
in which the company’s exposure to credit risk arises, 
its policies and processes for managing it and the 
methods used to measure and monitor it are set out 
below.

Credit risk arises from loans and advances to 
customers.  It comprises both drawn exposures and 
exposures the company has committed to extend.

Credit Concentration 
Risk Credit concentration risk is the risk of loss due 
to exposure to a single entity or group of entities, 
engaged in similar activities and having similar 
economic characteristics that would cause their 
contractual obligations to be similar and affected by 
changes in economic or other conditions in a similar 
manner. Undue concentrations could lead to increased 
or unexpected volatility in the company’s earnings. The 
company imposes control limits and complies with 
CBSL directions regarding borrowing limits to mitigate 
significant concentration risk. 

The company decided to lower the maximum lending 
exposure for any single borrower up to Rs. 50 Mn 
even though the statutory single borrower limit 
remains higher during the year under review, in order 

to manage the credit concentration risk. Further, the 
company has restricted lending on certain industries 
as the prevailing economic conditions has affected 
those industries negatively and as a consequence, the 
company may encounter a default risk.

The company paid more attention with regards to 
increasing the composition of gold loans and structure 
micro leasing to secured products and small tickets. 
Further, steps were taken to curtail lending on certain 
products, considering the default risk. 

Credit evaluation Process 
As depicted below, the credit evaluation process takes 
place at the Head Office level, Branch level and the 
Zone level. Authorization limits for the credit approval 
process has been assigned according to the levels of the 
hierarchy.

Credit Committee 
KFL has an effective credit committee and it gathers 
frequently to evaluate the granted credit facilities and 
to review credit policies. The committee consists of the 
Chief Executive Officer, General Manager-Operations, 
General Manager-Marketing, General Manager-
Investments, Head of Finance and Head of Credit. 

One of main objectives of the company during the 
year was to improve the credit quality and reduce 
the NPL. The credit department conducted number 
of training programs covering all the branches on 
“Credit Evaluation” to improve credit knowledge of staff 
at the branch level. With the intention of improving 
credit quality, it was decided to automate the credit 
evaluation process fully and related developments are 
now in progress. A new file indexing methodology was 
introduced to improve the quality of documentation of 
credit facilities. Further, a comprehensive credit manual 
is being developed to give very clear guidelines with 
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regards to credit evaluation which will have to be 
strictly followed. Customer due diligence are carried 
out for larger facilities to assess their creditworthiness, 
repaying capacity etc. The credit department has 
taken initiatives to develop a comprehensive internal 
credit rating methodology, which would facilitate the 
evaluation of customers on regular basis.

Compilation of security documents and Credit 
disbursements 
The Credit Department at the Head Office level 
ensures that all the relevant security documents 
and other documentations are available, and they 
also obtain the support of the Legal during this 
process. Thereafter, the Finance Department has 
been entrusted with the task of  making  all the 
disbursements in order to minimize disbursement 
related risks that may occur at the Credit Department.

monitoring of Credit Portfolio 
The monitoring of the credit portfolio takes place at 
various levels. The Head of Credit evaluates the   credit 
portfolio at the overall level and identifies signals 
pertaining to possible risks. At the same time, Product 
Heads closely monitor their product portfolios and 
identify negative signals. And finally, the IRMC reviews 
the credit portfolio against the risk tolerance limits.

recovery Process 
Steps were taken to decentralize the recovery function 
during the year where a recovery unit was to be set-up 
at each branch which has reporting lines towards the 
Branch Manager and the Head of Recovery, in order 
improve recovery efficiency and communication gaps. 
Further resources and man power were allocated for 
the recovery process. The Legal Department was also 
strengthened with more staff and more resources in 
order to speed-up the legal recovery process. 

During the year under review, the company has 
taken number of steps to strengthen and restructure 
the recovery process. The company continued 
rescheduling of accommodations, especially aimed 
at distressed customers who cannot whereby 
customers cannot meet repayment requirements 
as they have undergone financial difficulties due to 
negative economic conditions prevailing in the country. 
With this rescheduling program, they were offered 
concessional repayment schemes which meets their 
repaying capacity. This has been successful during the 
year under review. Further, the Company paid more 
attention to improve the recovery ratio and allocate 
more resources for recovery purposes during the year.

impairment Process 
In determining provisioning for impairment at the 
reporting date, the company considers possible 
objective evidences of those who have may triggered 
impairment losses of the credit portfolio such as:

 Financial difficulties of customers

 Higher number of  installments in arrears

 Possibility of going bankrupt 

 Loss of active market or negative economic 
impacts 

 Adverse wheather conditions that have a direct 
and indirect impact to the defferent sector

individual impairment 
The company makes provisions for impairment by 
taking into account significant loan accommodations 
individually and if objective evidence of probable 
default events as  mentioned above exist.
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Collective impairment 
The provision for collective impairment is determined 
by taking into account both portfolio factors as well as  
external environmental factors.   Portfolio factors relate 
to negative  signals emanating from the borrowers with 
regard to recovery patterns. External environmental 
factors relate to possible economic, political or 
geographical factors that  affect the recovery patterns 
of the borrowers. 

Portfolio factors

 Aging of the portfolio 

 Collateral value in comparison with portfolio value 

 Loss given default ratio of the portfolio External

environmental factors 

 Interest rates 

 Inflation rate

 Unemployment rate 

 Change in disposable income of borrowers 

 Changes in tax structure

 Industry related matters such as changes in prices  
 of a crop that affects the disposable income of the  
 borrower 

 Change in government policies such as  
 encouraging or discouraging certain industries  
The company performs the abovementioned 
impairment analysis on regular basis and 
individually impaired accommodations are further 
analyzed in such a way, in order to group them as 
materially impaired and materially not impaired. 
Materially impaired contracts are deeply examined 
in terms of root causes, industry conditions 
and economic conditions etc. These facts are 
communicated to recovery units so that these 
factors can be considered in implementing their 
recovery plans

loan Portfolio vs impairment Provision
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liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company experiences while encountering difficulties in financing its assets and 
meeting its contractual payment obligations when due or is  only  able to do so at a cost substantially above the 
prevailing market cost of funds. Funding risk is the risk that the company faces when it does not have sufficiently stable 
and diverse sources of funding or has an inefficient funding structure.

Composition of funding 2018/19 Composition of funding 2017/18
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Liquidity risks can arise from imbalances in cash 
inflows and outflows. Cash inflows are driven by the 
maturity structure of loans disbursed by the company 
and outflows (from withdrawals of deposits and lending 
disbursements). Liquidity risk can increase due to the 
unexpected extending of maturities, non-repayment of 
assets or sudden withdrawal of deposits.

The company maintains an adequate reserve of liquid 
assets in line with CBSL requirements. CBSL liquidity 
requirement is monitored on a daily basis. In addition 
that the company is in process implace a liquidity buffer 
to cushion the liquidity risk result from uncertainties. 
The forecasted cash flows and maturity analysis are 
submitted to ALCO on monthly basis in order to foresee 
liquidity related risks. Further, deposit concentration risk 
and the sensitivity between the maturity gap, deposit 
renewal rate and collection efficiency are also reviewed 
at ALCO to foresee related risks. 

maturity Gap 31.03.2019

maturity Gap 31.03.2018

In the rec ent past, the company took initiatives to 
lower the deposit concentration risk and to shift on to 
intuitional borrowings instead of public borrowings. 
Further, attempts are being made to make contingency 
funding arrangements with banks. Various tenner of the 
company’s product range also will help to minimize the 
level of liquidity risk through the filling nagetive liquidity 
gap when the interest rate is like to be increase

The company has been able to manage the deposit 
renewal ratio beyond 75% and consequently, a 
healthy level of liquid assets was maintained right 
throughout the financial year. Further, the company 
has mostly invested in lending exposures with short 
term maturities (almost 75% of the lending portfolio) 
and therefore gives the company the ability to avoid 
instance of tight cash flow, as the recovery takes place 
in the short run.
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market risk

interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk refers to the risk that occurs when 
there is a change in future levels of income and 
expenses or fair value of assets and liabilities of the 
Statement of Financial Position, due to the volatility of 
interest rates.

The company reviews the yield curve changes and 
deposit rates of competitor firms on a regular basis at 
ALCO in order to foresee possible interest rate related 
risks.

The ALCO also monitors the lending WACC and 
Borrowing WACC and net interest margins on a 
regular basis and also monitors regulatory compliance 
regulations with regard to deposit rates.

commodities. The fluctuations in gold prices in local 
and global context affects the recoverability of gold 
loans and as such loans are backed with gold articles.

The ALCO decides the maximum exposures of gold 
loans every fortnight, considering the gold prices that 
prevail in local and global markets, to minimize credit 
related losses. On the other hand, gold loan products 
have been designed with short term maturities to avoid 
adverse impacts of commodity prices in the long run.

Compliance risk 
The company operates in a highly regulated 
industry and there are various regulations which 
are applicable and need to be adhered to by the 
company. Noncompliance with any of these regulations   
could result in the imposing of caps, sanctions and/
or penalties, beside the damage to the company’s  
reputation. Ultimately such non-compliant actions 
could affect the business operations, financial position 
and strategic objectives of the company adversely.
All the departments are equally responsible for 
compliance in line with the rules and regulations 
stipulated by the  Central Bank, Finance Business Act, 
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Company Act, tax laws and other regulations. The 
Compliance Officer is supposed to continuously 
monitors all the compliance aspects of the company 
and changes in  the regulatory environment and 
report them to the Board of Directors and IRMC on 
regular basis. 

The company has taken steps during the year 
to develop a more comprehensive compliance 
framework and allocate more resources in order to 
strengthen the risk and compliance function.

operational risk 
Operational risks arise due to inadequate and 
inappropriate internal processes, systems and 
people or from external events.   Operational risk can 
be correlated  with other risks such as credit risk, 
liquidity risk, market risk and compliance risk and 
arise when these risks are  not managed in a precise 
and timely manner.

A mechanism is in place to monitor, identify, 
evaluate, treat and report operational risk events 
pertaining to processes, systems, people and 
external events. A bottom-up approach is used 
while implementing this monitoring mechanism. 
In assessing operational risk, KFL monitors the 
following operational risk indicators.

The company considers its employees as its major 
strength. It is the knowledge,  experience and 
commitment of these employees that gets converted 
into the success of the organization. 

KFL has various incentive schemes in place to reward 
employees. The achievement of targets is kept in 
mind while evaluating the employee performance 

with a view to awarding incentives and promotions.   The 
company also offers valuable training opportunities to its 
employees in order to develop and enhance job related 
skills. The company has ensured work place safety 
and health care of the staff by providing them with an 
insurance cover in the event of hospitalization as well as  
the reimbursement of OPD claims. 
In addition to the above, KFL also provides financial 
assistance at concessionary rates so that employees 
can improve the quality of their lives. The company 

external events 

  Number of cash robberies that has occurred

People

  Staff turnover ratio 

  Number of frauds committed by employees 

  Number of disciplinary actions taken against  
  employees

systems

  Number of system break downs reported 

  Number of system errors reported

Processes

  Repeated process weaknesses reported by  
  internal audit 

  Percentage of unsatisfactory credit files  
  returned by HO to branches 

  Operating efficiency ratio 

  Collection efficiency ratio
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currently continues the process of  automating many 
manual and semi-manual processes in order to reduce 
employee stress. Additionally, the top management of 
KFL always adopts an “open door” policy in  handling 
employee grievances.

The risk of  fraud by staff  arises as a consequence of 
weaknesses in the internal control systems and lack 
of integrity of staff. The internal audit department 
frequently monitors the controls in place and report 
to the Board Audit Committee on weaknesses of the 
control systems. Steps are  taken on an ongoing basis 
to rectify and strengthen the internal control systems. 
The human resources department also ensures the  
recruitment of the right people with a high level of 
integrity. Accordingly, proper background reference 
checks are done before offering  employment. 
The company has hired an expert to conduct an 
independent review of the controls and processes and 
based on their report, the recommendations would be 
implemented in future.

The company has obtained a fidelity guarantee policy 
which covers all the employees against frauds. Further 
internal audit carries out surprise checks on a routine 
basis and in adherence to procedures etc. in order to 
minimize  the risk of employee fraud.  

The internal audit department periodically reviews the 
effectiveness and efficiency of processes and their 
design and reports to the Board Audit Committee, who 
then acts to rectify or improve controls and processes, 
should there be any deficiencies. At the same time, 
continuous staff training sessions are carried out 
among the employees regarding processes and 
procedures with a view to increasing  staff awareness 
of the processes and improving their efficiency levels.  
The company continuously engages in improving 
product and functional manuals with a view of 

providing very clear guidelines for functions and to 
ensure a proper segregation of duties. 

The company has obtained insurance covers against  
the risk of fire and burglary to ensure the safety of its 
people, property, equipment and money.  KFL  now has 
a CCTV surveillance system in place in almostall fully-
fledged branches to ensure the safety of these assets. 

KFL has an Internal Tender Board Committee which 
comprises of the  General Manager, Head of Finance 
and the Head of Administration which is empowered 
to take decisions regarding the procurement of items, 
thereby mitigating the risks related to the procurement 
processes , as collective decisions are made. The 
committee takes procurement decisions after a 
careful evaluation of several supplier bids so that the 
maximum benefit would flow into the company. During 
the year under review, the company took the initiative 
to register those suppliers who supply items on a 
recurring basis and the quality of these suppliers and 
prices will be evaluated on regular basis.

Information Technology plays a key role in the context 
of business operations, given their expansion and 
complexity. At the same time the company encounters 
a greater degree of IT risk due to the automation of 
processors. The company has taken number of steps 
to mitigate such risks. The company has an adequate 
level of general controls and access controls over the 
system which ensures continuance, confidentiality 
and integrity of data. The company has a password 
mechanism which avoids unauthorized access to 
data and unauthorized modification to data. The 
user rights of the system are assigned according 
to a predetermined structure which considers the 
designation and level of authority required for each 
user and reviews of user rights are carried out on 
regular basis.   
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The service and maintenance agreements with 
vendors regarding hardware items have been signed 
and renewed on a timely manner to ensure proper 
functioning of hardware items.

The IT department conducts post reviews on system 
modifications and gets feedback from of respective 
departments to ensure that anticipated objectives has 
been achieved.

Access to the server room has been restricted and the 
temperature of the room is continuously monitored.  
An appropriate firewall mechanism  is in place to avoid 
possible hacking. 

The company maintains a daily back-up  off-site   in 
order to ensure the continuance of business operations 
in case of any disaster. Further, the company maintains 
a disaster recovery site away from the office premises 
so that  business operations can continue without 
interruptions in case of unexpected events.  Data 
is  automatically encrypted when it is  transmitted to 
branches and vice versa.

The IT department organizes training sessions among 
user staff frequently to raise their awareness on 
existing system facilities, newly developed system 
facilities and how to use the  system in a manner that 
would minimize possible system errors and ensures 
data integrity. 
The Internal Audit Department carries out frequent 
system audits and reports to the Board Audit 
Committee which takes  precautionary action when 
needed. 

The frequency of cash robberies has decreased when 
compared to the previous year. In order to mitigate 
risks of cash robberies, the company increased the 

insurance cover during the year under review. Further 
the company adopted the practice of depositing 
collections in the banks immediately  from collection 
points, instead of  bringing the collections to micro 
centers in order to minimize cash related risk. Further, 
steps have been taken to seek assistance of cash 
transporters to deposit cash from branches, which 
have a significantly high collection to banks, to avoid 
risk of cash robberies.  

Strategic Risk Strategic risk can be defined as a 
possible source of loss that arise as a consequence of 
poor business plans. It could be due to poor decision 
making, inadequate resource allocation or failure 
to respond to changes  prevailing in the business 
environment.
 
KFL is managed by an experienced and well-educated 
set of Board members from different disciplines. The 
Board of KFL consists of a Chartered Accountant, a 
Central Banker, a Lawyer and two Engineers. All the 
decisions of the Board are taken collectively after an in 
dept analysis of various perspectives and the expertise 
and experience of all the Board members are utilized in 
doing so.

The company prepares the corporate plan in a timely 
manner and accordingly, people and resources 
are directed towards these strategic objectives.   
Necessary amendments are  made to the corporate 
plan in a proactive manner as a response to changes 
in the prevailing business environment. The Board 
of Directors review the performance of the company 
against the corporate plan and deviations are reviewed 
on a regular basis and actions are taken to rectify if any 
malfunctions exist. 
The corporate research division carries out an internal 
and external environmental analysis in a timely 
manner and provides  information to the corporate 
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management regarding the prevailing marketing 
conditions, threats from  rivals and strengths, 
weaknesses and corecompetencies of the company 
which facilitates effective decision making.

Further, they conduct research on various internal 
and external matters which have an impact on 
strategic objectives and comes up with findings and 
recommendations which are presented to the Board 
so that the negative impact these findings can be 
minimized. Further, the Finance Department provides 
timely information with regards to the direction of 
the company and market information, enhancing the 
ability of the Board of Directors to make their decisions 
effectively.

In order to minimize the risk of capital funds, the 
budgetary controls have been linked with anticipated 
levels of capital adequacy. In other words, investing 
and other activities are planned considering the capital 
adequacy. Further, statutory requirements of capital 

adequacy is closely monitored and maintained. 

Reputational Risk Reputational risk arises from events 
and behavior which sends negative signals to the 
general public about the company. The approach of 
the company of managing reputational risk has been 
to manage all other risks properly as reputational risk 
corelates with them. 

The company takes customer complaints very seriously 
and formal channels have been set out to receive 
customer feedback about the company. The Research 
and Development Department also engages in surveys 
and research with regards to customer preferences, 
expectations and satisfaction in order to minimize 
reputational risk. Further, all the departments and business 
units are on alert with regards to incidents and events 
which may disrupt the confidence of the general public.
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This section includes a discussion and analysis of  
the Financial performance for the year 2018/19 in  
comparison to 2017/18.  We have striven to adopt  
best financial management  practices to create  
value to all stakeholders.



FiNANCiAl rEPOrTS
We seek to anticipate and respond to the risks and opportunities arising in our external 

environment to ensure that we can continue to create value for our stakeholders. 

A summary of the issues influencing our strategy is outlined in the reports.
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tHe annual RepoRt oF tHe BoaRd oF diRectoRs 
on tHe aFFaiRs oF tHe coMpany

The Board of Directors of Kanrich Finance Limited has pleasure in presenting their 
Report on the affairs of the Company together with the Summary of the Financial 
Statements for the years ended 31st March 2019. The Financial Statements have  
been prepared in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

leGal status

Incorporated as a Limited Liability Company on 
October, 27, 1971 under Chapter 145 of the Company 
Ordinance No. 51 of 1938 and a Licensed Finance 
Company with the Central Bank of Sri Lanka under the 
Finance Business Act, No. 42 of 2011 and re-registered 
under the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and  
changed its name as Kanrich Finance Limited on 
06th October 2010.

PrinCiPal aCtivities

The Company accepts deposits form the public 
and engaged in Leasing, Hire Purchase, Loans, 
Microfinance Loans and Real Estate.

finanCial statements

The Summary of the Financial Statements of the 
Company is attached herewith.

indePendent auditor’s rePort

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial 
Statements is attached.

turnover

The Turnover of the Company was Rs. 3.109.627.413/- 
as compared with a turnover of Rs. 3,420,633,144/- 
during previous Financial Year.

aCCountinG PoliCes

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation 
of Financial Statements are given in the Financial 
Statements. There were no significant changes in 
the Accounting Policies adopted during the Year 
ended 31 March 2019 except for the changes made 
with regard to the adoption of SLFRS 09 (Financial 
Instruments) and SLFRS 15 (Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers) which came into effective from 01 
April 2018.

stated CaPital

The Stated Capital of the Company as per the Audited 
Accounts as at 31st March 2019 was Rs. 672,993,004/-
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direCtorate

The names of the Directors of the Company who 
served during the year are given below.

Dr. W.M. Hemachandra

Mr. D.S.I Weerasinghe

Dr. Eng. K.M.S.B. Rekogama

Mr. K.K.D. Ranawaka

Mr. T.L.B. Hurulle

exeCutive direCtors

Mr. D.S.I Weerasinghe

Dr. Eng. K.M.S.B. Rekogame  
                                         (from 01-04-2018 to 31-12-2018)

non-exeCutive / indePendent direCtors

dr. W.m. hemachandra
dr. eng. k.m.s.b. rekogama  
                                         (from 01-04-2018 to 31-12-2018)
mr. k.k.d. ranawaka
mr. t.l.b. hurulle

the remuneration and other benefits of 
the direCtors

Directors remuneration and other emoluments in 
respect of the Company for the year ended 31st 
March 2019 was 33.060,000/- as compared with 
the remuneration Rs. 33,476,001/- during previous 
Financial Year.

CorPorate GovernanCe

The Board has taken necessary measures to ensure 
proper systems and procedures are in place within the 
Company by adopting sound Corporate Governance 
practice.

auditors

The Financial Statements for the year has been 
audited by Messrs. KPMG is deemed to have been 
re-appointed as auditors in terms of the Section `158 of 
the Companies Act. No. 7 of 2007

The Auditors, Messrs. KPMG was paid Rs. 1,232,000/- 
as audit fees by the Company.

As far as the Directors are aware, the Auditors do not 
have any relationships (other than that of an auditor) 
with the Company other than those disclosed above. 
The Auditors also do not have any interests in the 
Company

Signed on behalf of the Board,
kanriCh finanCe limited

director

director

Secretaries
Chart business systems (Pvt) ltd.

05th July 2019
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The following statement sets out the responsibilities 
of the Board of Directors in relataion to the preparation 
and presentation of the Financial Statement of the 
Company.  These responsibilities differ from those 
of the Auditors, which are set out in their Report 
appearing on page No 101 of this Annual Report.

The Companies Act, No. 07 of 2007 and the Finance 
Companies Act, No. 78 of 1988, requires that the 
Directors are required to prepare financial statements 
for each financial year, giving a true and fair view of 
the state of affairs of the company as at the end of the 
financial year and the profit or loss of the Company for 
the financial year.

The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that 
the Company maintains adequate accounting records, 
which are sufficient enough to prepare financial 
statements that disclose with reasonable accuracy 
the financial position of the Company.  Further the 
Directors have the responsibility for the general 
supervision, control and administration of the affairs 
and business of the Company.

The overall responsibility for the Company’s internal 
control systems lies with the Board of Directors.  Whilst 
recognizing the fact that there is no single system of 
internal control that could provide absolute assurance 
against material misstatements and fraud, the Directors 
confirm that the prevalent internal control systems are 
so designed that, there is reasonable assurance that 
the assets are safeguarded and transactions properly 
authorized and recorded so that materials misstatements 
are irregularities are either prevented or detected within 
a reasonable period of time.  The Finance Committee 
under the guidance of the Management to monitor the 
effectiveness of the system of internal controls and 
recommends modifications where necessary.

diRectoRs’ ResponsiBility FoR 
Financial RepoRting

The Directors are responsible to ensure that the 
Financial Statements presented in the Annual Report 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at 31st March 2018  and the profit /loss for 
the year then ended. 

The Directors confirm that the financial statements 
have been prepared and presented in accordance with 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards and that they provide 
the information as required by the Companies Act, No. 
07 of 2007. 

The Directors confirm that suitable accounting 
policies have been use and applied consistently and 
that all applicable accounting standards have been 
followed in the preparation of the Financial Statements. 
Furthermore, reasonable and prudent judgments and 
estimates have been made in the preparation of these 
Financial Statements.        

Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge 
all taxes, statutory dues and levies payable by the 
Company as at the Balance Sheets date have been 
paid for or where relevant provided for.

By order of the Board,

Secretaries
Chart business systems (Private) limited

05th July 2019
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diRectoRs’ statetMent on 
inteRnal contRols

resPonsibility

In line with the section 10(2)(b) of the Finance 
Companies Direction No 03 of 2008 as amended by the 
direction No 06 of 2013, the board of directors present 
this report on internal controls over Financial Reporting.

The Board Directors is responsible for the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the internal control mechanism in 
place at Kanrich Finance Limited (“Company”)

The Board has established an on going process for 
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant 
risks faced by the company and this process includes 
the system of internal controls over Financial Reporting. 
The process is regularly reviewed by the Board.

The Board is on the view that the systems of internal 
control over financial reporting in place is sound 
and adequate to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting, and that 
the preparation of Financial statements for external 
purposes is in accordance with relevant accounting 
principals and regulatory requirements.

The management assists the board of directors in the 
implementation of Board’s policies and procedures 
pertaining to internal controls over Financial Reporting. 
The management is continuously in the process of 
enhancing the documentation of the system of internal 
controls over Financial Reporting. In assessing the 
internal control system over financial reporting, identified 
officers of the company collated all procedures over and 
controls that are connected with significant accounts and 
disclosures of the Financial Statements of the Company. 
These in turn are being checked by Internal Audit 
Department of the company for suitability of design and 
effectiveness on an on-going basis.

The processes and procedures initially applied to adopt 
Sri Lanka Accounting standards comprising LKAS 
and SLFRS were further strengthened during the year 

based on the feedback received from the Board audit 
committee, Internal Audit Department, External Auditors 
and the regulators. The company is in the process of 
further upgrading the relevant processes embedding 
all requirements into existing processes to comply with 
requirements of recognition, measurement, classification 
and   disclosures required under Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards, based on the recommendations made by 
internal and external auditors.

Confirmation
Based on above processes, the board confirms that the 
financial reporting system of the company has been 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements for external purposes and has 
been done in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting 
Standards and regulatory requirements of the Central 
Bank of Sri Lanka.

mr.k.k.d. ranawaka
Chairman-Board Audit Committee

dr. W.m. hemachandra
Chairman

05th July 2019
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independent auditoRs’ RepoRt

KPMG Tel : +94 - 11 542 6426
(Chartered Accountants) Fax : +94 - 11 244 5872
32A, Sir Mohamed Macan Markar Mawatha,  +94 - 11 244 6058
P.O. Box 186,  +94 - 11 254 1249
Colombo 00300, Internet : www.kpmg.com.lk
Sri Lanka

KPMG

to the shareholders of kanriCh finanCe limited

report on the audit of the financial statements

oPinion
We have audited the financial statements of Kanrich 
Finance Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 
statement of financial position as at March 31, 2019, and 
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of 
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes comprising 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information set out on pages 130 to 212

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements 
give a true and fair view of the financial position of 
the Company as at March 31, 2019, and of its financial 
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.

basis for oPinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Sri Lanka 
Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by CA Sri 
Lanka (Code of Ethics) and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.

emPhasis of matter
Non-Compliance with Central Bank regulations 

We draw attention to Note 44 of the financial statements 
which indicate that the Company has not complied with 
the Minimum Core Capital Direction No 03 of 2018, Capital 
Adequacy Direction No 02 of 2017 in relation to tier two 
capital and Finance Companies (Liquid Assets) Direction 
No 4 of 2013. The Company has also incurred losses for 
the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 of Rs 
160,360,526 and Rs.15,808,610 respectively which has 
contributed to the deterioration of core capital to below 
the threshold. In order to apply the going concern basis 
of accounting the Company has to satisfy the regulatory 
requirements with the concurrence of the Central Bank of 
Sri Lanka. Our opinion is not modified in respect of these 
matters. 

other information
“Management is responsible for the other information. 
The other information comprises the information included 
in the annual report, but does not include the financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, 
our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 



129ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.” 

resPonsibilities of manaGement and those 
CharGed With GovernanCe for the   
finanCial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of financial 
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance 
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management 
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

auditor’s resPonsibilities for the audit of the 
finanCial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with SLAuSs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements.

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for 
the audit of the financial statements is located at Sri Lanka 
Accounting and Auditing Standards website at: http://
slaasc.com/auditing/auditorsresponsibility.php. This 
description forms part of our auditor’s report.

rePort on other leGal and reGulatory 
requirements
As required by section 163 (2) of the Companies Act No. 
07 of 2007, we have obtained all the information and 
explanations that were required for the audit and, as far as 
appears from our examination, proper accounting records 
have been kept by the Company. However, as required by 
the Finance Business Act the Company does not fulfill the 
requirements of Minimum Core Capital Direction No 03 of 
2018, Capital Adequacy Direction No 02 of 2017 in relation 
to tier two capital and Finance Companies (Liquid Assets) 
Direction No 4 of 2013 as at 31 March 2019. 

Chartered accountants

Colombo, Sri Lanka 
5th July 2019

KPMG, a Sri Lankan partnership and a member firm 
of the KPMG network of independent member firms 
affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity.

M.R. Mihula FCA P.Y.S. Perera FCA C.P. Jayatilake FCA
T.J.S. Rajakarier FCA W.W.J.C. Perera FCA Ms. S. Joseph FCA
Ms. S.M.B. Jayasekara ACA W.K.D.C. Abeyrathne FCA S.T.D.L. Perera FCA
G.A.U. Karunaratne FCA R.M.D.B. Rajapakse FCA Ms. B.K.D.T.N. Rodrigo FCA
R.H. Rajan FCA M.N.AM. Shameel ACA

Principals:-
S.R.I. Perera FCMA(UK), LLB, Attorney-at-Law, H.S. Goonewardena ACA, 
Ms. C.T.K.N. Perera ACA
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stateMent oF pRoFit oR loss and otHeR coMpReHensive incoMe

for the year ended 31 march, notes 2019 2018
   rs. rs.
    (restated)

Gross Income 4  3,109,627,413  3,420,633,144
Interest Income  4.1  2,876,746,415  3,132,419,087
Interest Expenses 4.2  (1,001,320,535)  (1,117,939,620)
net interest income   1,875,425,880  2,014,479,468

Fee and Commission Income 5  37,104,694  82,582,062
Fair Value Gain on Investment Properties 21  -  3,079,000
Net Other Operating Income  6  195,776,304  205,631,995
total operating  income   2,108,306,878  2,305,772,525

Net Impairment Charge for Loans and Other Losses 8  (651,299,653)  (287,316,852)
Loans and Receivables Write Off -  (244,120,089)
net operating income   1,457,007,225   1,774,335,584

operating   expenses
Personnel Expenses 9  (592,060,985)  (644,579,550)
Depreciation and Amortization   (73,612,515)  (65,588,088)
Other Operating Expenses 10  (1,012,376,597)  (953,490,261)
operating Profit/(loss) before value added tax (vat), nation building   (221,042,872)  110,677,685 
tax (nbt) and debt recovery levy (drl) on financial services
VAT,NBT and DRL on Financial Services   (57,621,461)  (85,822,711)

Profit/(loss) before income tax expense 11  (278,664,333)  24,854,974

Income Tax (Expense)/Credit 12  118,303,807  (40,663,584)
Profit/(loss) for the year   (160,360,526)  (15,808,610)

items that are or may be reclassified to Profit or loss
Net change in Fair Value of Financial Assets-AFS  -  2,890,839
Net change in Fair Value of Financial Assets-FVTOCI 18.1  157,725  -
    157,725  2,890,839
items that will never be reclassified to Profit or loss
Actuarial Gain /(Loss) arising on Employee Benefits 31.2  18,544,134  101,843
Deffered Tax Effect on Other Comprehensive Income 29.1  (5,192,358)  (28,516)
    13,351,776  73,327
other Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax   13,509,501  2,964,166

total Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year   (146,851,025)  (12,844,444)

Earnings/(Loss) Per Share  13.1  (2.06) (0.20)

The notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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stateMent oF Financial position
as at 31 march, notes 2019 2018
   rs. rs.
    (restated)

assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 14  200,198,431  352,024,146
Placement with Banks & Other Financial Institutions 15  747,808,768  742,037,317
Loans and Receivables 16  5,474,680,175  7,770,646,505
Lease Rental  and Hire Purchase Receivables 17  1,698,947,944  1,482,269,176
Financial Investments - FVTOCI 18  33,033,444  -
Financial Investments - AFS 18  -  31,983,912
Other Financial Assets 19  366,834,729  375,767,030
Real Estate Stock 20  666,591,260  742,395,046
Investment Properties 21  164,000,000  74,000,000
Other Non Financial Assets 22  167,350,571  135,580,872
Intangible Assets 23  20,616,453  22,479,843
Property, Plant & Equipment  24  182,184,380  206,772,295
Deferred Tax Assets 29  324,852,807  78,510,657
total assets   10,047,098,962  12,014,466,799

liabilities
Due to Banks & Financial Institutions 25  984,519,683  1,111,848,341
Deposits Due to Customers 26  986,094,828  1,004,354,807
Debt Instruments Issued and Other Borrowed Funds 27  5,968,403,592  7,103,743,722
Other Financial Liabilities 28  80,070,078  89,302,863
Current Tax Liabilities   146,511,444  170,261,117
Other Liabilities 30  566,593,746  650,022,031
Employee Benefits 31  69,033,963  73,184,015
Compensation Reserve Fund 32  35,010,092  31,272,475
total liabilities   8,836,237,426  10,233,989,371

equity
Stated Capital 33  672,993,044  672,993,044
Reserves 34  50,663,985  50,506,260
Retained Earnings   487,204,507  1,056,978,124
total equity   1,210,861,536  1,780,477,428
total liabilities and equity   10,047,098,962  12,014,466,799
net assets value Per share (rs.)   15.58  22.91 

The notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.  

Certification  
I certify that these financial statements are in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

mr. a.k.h.h. abayajeewa
Head of Finance

  dr. W.m.hemachandra
 Chairman 

02 July 2019
Colombo.

mr. d.s.i. Weerasinghe
 Director /Chief Executive Officer

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these financial statements. Approved and signed for and on behalf 
of the Board of Directors
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 stated statutory General fvoCi retained total 
  Capital reserve fund reserve reserve earnings equity
 rs. rs. rs. rs. rs. rs.
      (restated)   (restated) 

balance as at 01 april 2017  672,993,044  49,322,413   280,000   (2,321,562) 1,073,047,976     1,793,321,870 

total Comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the Year  -     -     -     -     (15,808,610)  (15,808,610)

other Comprehensive income  
Net change in Fair Value of Available for Sale  -     -     -     2,890,839   -     2,890,839 
Financial Assets 

Actuarial Gain /(Loss) arising on Employee Benefits  -     -     -     -     101,843   101,843 

Deffered Tax Effect on Other Comprehensive Income  -     -     -     -     (28,516)  (28,516)

total Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year  -     -     -  2,890,839  (15,735,283)  (12,844,444)

transactions with equity holders of the Company
Transfers to Statutory Reserve Fund  -     334,570   -     -     (334,570)  -   

Dividend Paid  -     -     -     -     -     -   

balance as at 31 march 2018  672,993,044 49,656,983  280,000 569,277 1,056,978,124   1,780,477,428 

balance as at 01 april 2018 as previously stated  672,993,044 49,656,983 280,000 569,277 1,056,978,124  1,780,477,428 
Re-measurement Adjustments on Adopting  -     -     -     -     (533,233,755)  (533,233,755) 
SLFRS 09 and 15 (Note 41.3)

Deffered Tax Effect on Restatement Adjustment  -     -     -     -     110,468,888   110,468,888 
on Adopting SLFRS 09 

total Comprehensive income for the year  
Loss for the Year  -     -     -    - (160,360,526)  (160,360,526)

other Comprehensive income/(loss)   

Net change in Fair Value of Available for Sale Financial Assets  -     -    -  157,725   -     157,725 

Actuarial Gain /(Loss) arising on Employee Benefits  -     -     -     -    18,544,134   18,544,134 

Deffered Tax Effect on Other Comprehensive Income  -     -     -     -    (5,192,358)  (5,192,358)

total Comprehensive income/(loss) for the year  672,993,044   49,656,983   280,000   727,002   487,204,507   1,210,861,536 

transactions with equity holders of the Company   
Transfers to Statutory Reserve Fund  -     -     -     -     -     -   

Dividend Paid  -     -     -     -     -     -   

balance as at 31 march 2019  672,993,044  49,656,983  280,000 727,002  487,204,507  1,210,861,536 

stateMent oF cHanges in eQuity

The notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
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stateMent oF casH Flows

for the year ended 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs.   rs. 
    (restated) 

Cash flow from operating activities  

Profit/(Loss) before Income Tax Expense    (278,664,333)  24,854,974

Adjustments for;  

Depreciation and Amortizations   73,612,515  65,588,088

Impairment Charges   651,299,653  287,316,852

Amounts Write Off   -  244,120,089

Provision for Defined Benefit Plans   20,774,332  24,778,195

Loss on Disposal of Investment Properties   3,600,000  -

Profit on Disposal of Property & Equipment   (3,889,599)  (4,964,344)

Fair Value Gain on investment Properties   -  (3,079,000)

Dividend Income   (112,800)  (94,000)

operating Profit before Working Capital Changes   466,619,768  638,520,854

Changes in,  

Real Estate Stock   75,803,785  (204,893,349)

Loans and Receivables   1,313,147,768  (715,625,907)

Lease Rental & Hire Purchase Receivables   (343,811,468)  167,299,838

Other Financial Assets   (28,800,156)  (211,761,612)

Non-financial Assets   (39,848,278)  6,975,149

Amounts Due to Customers   (18,259,979)  50,192,630

Debt Instruments Issued and Other Borrowed Funds   (1,135,340,130)  (66,534,101)

Other Financial Liabilities   (9,232,785)  40,736,914

Other Liabilities   (229,947,561)  225,373,626

Compensation Reserve Fund   3,737,617  30,735,082

Cash generated from/(used in) operations   54,068,581  (38,980,876)

Retirement Benefit Liabilities Paid   (6,380,250)  (2,968,500)

Taxes  Paid   (38,763,318)  (29,551,436)

net cash flows generated from/(used in) operating activities   8,925,013  (71,500,812)

Cash flows from investing activities  

Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment    (47,315,056)  (57,138,242)

Acquisition of Intangible Assets   (3,456,555)  -

Proceeds from Sales of  Investment Property   16,400,000  -

Proceeds from Sales of  Property, Plant and Equipment   7,500,000  7,115,000

Net investment in financial instruments- FVTOCI   (891,807)  -
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statement of cash flows Contd.

Net investment in financial instruments- AFS  -     (478,061)

Net withdrawals of Placement with Banks & Other Financial Institutions   6,300,985   56,379,982

Net acquisition in Repurchase Agreements and Reverse Repurchase Agreements   (12,072,437)  68,248,347

Dividend Received   112,800   94,000

net cash flows used in investing activities   (33,422,070)  74,221,026

Cash flows from / (used in) financing activities  

Payment under Finance Lease Obtained   (10,610,853)  (7,704,085)

Loan Obtained during the Year   1,691,000,000  821,000,000

Loan Repaid during the Year   (1,589,652,906)  (960,042,954)

Dividend Paid   -  -

net cash flows generated from/(used in) financing activities   90,736,241  (146,747,039)

net increase in Cash and Cash equivalents   66,239,184  (144,026,826)

Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year    (56,489,840)  87,536,986

Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the Year    9,749,344  (56,489,840)

Cash and Cash equivalents for the Purpose of Cash flow statement  

Cash and Bank Balances (Note 14)   200,198,431  352,024,146

Bank Overdrafts (Note 25)   (190,449,087)  (408,513,986)

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents For the Purpose of Cash Flow Statement   9,749,344  (56,489,840)

for the year ended 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs.   rs. 
    (restated) 
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notes to tHe Financial stateMents

1 rePortinG entity

1.1. Corporate information
 Kanrich Finance Limited (“Company”), regulated 

under the Finance Business Act No. 42 of 2011, 
was incorporated on 27 October 1971 as a Limited 
Liability Company domiciled in Sri Lanka under 
the provisions of the Companies Act No. 17 of 
1982 and re-registered under the Companies Act 
No. 7 of 2007.

 The registered office of the Company is located at 
No 69, Ward Place, Colombo 07 and the principal 
place of business of the Company is at No 139/B 
High Level Road, Nugegoda.

 The Staff strength of the Company as at 31 Match 
2019 was 1,211 (1,411 as at 31 March 2018). 

1.2. Principal business activities and nature of 
operations

 The principal business activities of the Company 
are granting micro loans, welada warama 
loans, finance leases, hire purchase, real estate 
business, assets financing, granting of mortgage 
loans, business loans, consumer loans, personal 
loans, pawning, mobilization of deposits and other 
credit facilities.

 There were no significant changes in the nature 
of the principal business activities of the company 
during the financial year under review.

1.3. Parent entity and ultimate Parent entity
 In the opinion of Directors, the Company’s 

immediate and ultimate parent undertaking and 
controlling party is Mutual Holdings Limited, 
which is incorporated in Sri Lanka.

2 basis of PreParation 

2.1. statement of Compliance
 The Financial Statements of the Company have 

been prepared and presented in accordance with 
the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLFRSs and 
LKASs) laid down by The Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Sri Lanka and in compliance with the 
requirements of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 
and the Finance Business Act No. 42 of 2011 and 
amendments thereto. These Financial Statements, 
except for information on cash flows have been 
prepared following the accrual basis of accounting.

2.2. responsibility for financial statements
 The Board of Directors of the Company is 

responsible for the preparation and presentation 
of these Financial Statements as per the 
provisions of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 
and SLFRSs and LKASs.

 The Board of Directors acknowledges their 
responsibility for Financial Statements by 
Certification on the Statement of Financial Position.

 These Financial Statements include the following 
components:

 Statement of Profit or Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income providing the 
information on the financial performance of 
the Company for the year under review.

 Statement of Financial Position providing the 
information on the financial position of the 
Company as at the year-end.

 Statement of Changes in Equity depicting all 
changes in shareholders’ funds during the 
year under review of the Company.
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 Statement of Cash Flows providing the 
information to the users, on the ability of 
the Company to generate cash and cash 
equivalents and utilization of those cash flows.

 Notes to the Financial Statements comprising 
Accounting Policies and other explanatory 
information.

2.3. approval of financial statements by the  
board of directors

 The Financial Statements of the Company for the 
year ended 31 March 2019 were approved and 
authorized for issue by the Board of Directors in 
accordance with the Resolution of the Directors 
on 02nd July 2019.

2.4. basis of measurement
 The Financial Statements have been prepared on 

the historical cost basis and applied consistently 
with no adjustments being made for inflationary 
factors affecting the Financial Statements, except 
for the following, 

 Policy applicable up to 31st march 2018
 Financial instruments designated at fair value 

through profit or loss are measured at Fair 
value;

 Available for sale financial assets are 
measured at fair value;

 Liability for defined benefit obligations 
is recognized as the present value of the 
defined benefit obligation.

 Policy applicable from 01st april 2018
 Financial instruments measured at fair value 

through profit or loss are measured at fair value.

 Financial assets measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income 
measured at fair value.

 Defined Benefit Obligation is recognized 
as the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation.

 This is the first set of the annual financial 
statements in which SLFRS 15 Revenue 
from contracts with customers and SLFRS 
9 Financial instruments have been applied. 
Changes to significant policies are described 
in Note 3.1.

2.5. functional and Presentation Currency
 Items included in the Financial Statements of 

the Company are measured using the currency 
of the primary economic environment in which 
the Company operates. The Financial Statements 
are presented in the Sri Lankan rupees being, 
the functional and presentation currency unless 
indicated otherwise.

 There was no change in the Company’s 
Presentation and Functional Currency during the 
year under review.

2.6. Presentation of financial statements
 The assets and liabilities of the Company 

presented in the Statements of Financial Position 
are grouped by nature and listed in an order 
that reflects their relative liquidity and maturity 
pattern. No adjustments have been made 
for inflationary factors affecting the Financial 
Statements.

2.7.  materiality and aggregation
 Each material class of similar items is presented 
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separately in the Financial Statements. Items 
of dissimilar nature or function are presented 
separately unless they are immaterial as 
permitted by the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - 
LKAS 01 - “Presentation of Financial Statements”.

2.8. Going Concern basis for accounting
 The Management has made an assessment of 

its ability to continue as a going concern and is 
satisfied that it has the resources to continue in 
business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, 
the Management is not aware of any material 
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt 
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. Therefore, the Financial Statements of 
the Company continue to be prepared on a going 
concern basis.

2.9. offsetting 
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset 

and the net amount reported in the Statement 
of Financial Position, only when there is a legally 
enforceable right to offset the recognised 
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a 
net basis or to realise the assets and settle the 
liabilities simultaneously.

 Income and expenses are not offset in the 
Income Statement, unless required or permitted 
by an Accounting Standard or Interpretation 
(issued by the International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee and Standard 
Interpretation Committee) and as specifically 
disclosed in the Accounting Policies of the 
Company.

2.10. rounding
 The amounts in the Financial Statements have 

been rounded off to the nearest Rupee, except 
where otherwise indicated as permitted by the 

Sri Lanka Accounting Standard – LKAS 01 - 
“Presentation of Financial Statements”.

2.11. Comparative information
 Comparative information is disclosed in respect 

of the previous period in the Financial  
Statements in order to enhance the 
understanding of the current period’s Financial 
Statements and to enhance the inter period 
comparability. The presentation and classification 
of the Financial Statements of the previous 
year are amended, where relevant for better 
presentation and to be comparable with those of 
the current year.

2.12. use of Judgments and estimates 
 In preparing the Financial Statements of the 

Company in conformity with SLFRSs and LKASs 
the management  has make judgments, estimates 
and assumptions which affect the application of 
Accounting Policies and the reported amounts of 
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual 
results may differ from these estimates. 

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 
to accounting estimates are recognised 
prospectively. The most significant areas of 
estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments 
in applying Accounting Policies that have most 
significant effect on amounts recognised in the 
Financial Statements of the Company are as 
follows:

 applicable to 2018/2019 only:
 Classification of financial assets: assessment 

of the business model within which the 
assets are held and assessment of whether 
the contractual terms of the financial asset 
are SPPI in the principal amount outstanding. 
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 Establishing the criteria for determining 
whether the credit risk on the financial 
asset has increased significantly since initial 
recognition, determining methodology for 
incorporating forward-looking information 
into measurement of ECL and selection and 
approval models used to meaure ECL. 

applicable to 2017/18 and 2018/19:
 Determination of the fair value of financial 

instruments with significant unobservable 
inputs.

 Measurement of defined benefit obligations – 
key actuarial assumptions

 Recognition of deferred tax assets : 
availability of future taxable profit against 
which carry-forward tax losses can be used.

 Impairment of real estate stocks – key 
assumptions underlying recoverable amounts

 Impairment of financial instruments – key 
assumptions used in estimating recoverable 
cashflows

 Fair value of investment properties

 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

3 summary of siGnifiCant  
 aCCountinG PoliCies

 The accounting policies set out below have been 
applied consistently to all periods presented in 
these Financial Statements.

3.1. Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
 The Company has applied SLFRS 9 – Financial 

Instruments, SLFRS 7 (Revised) - Financial 
Instruments Disclosures, SLFRS 15-Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers, in the  
financial statements effective for annual  
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018,  
for the first time. The Company has not adopted 
early any other standard, interpretation or 
amendment that has been issued but is not yet 
effective.

 The effect of initially applying these standards is 
mainly attributed to the following :

 An increase in impairment losses recognized 
on financial assets

 Additional disclosures relating to SLFRS 9

 Additional disclosures relating to SLFRS 15

 Except for the changes below, the Company has 
consistently applied the accounting policies as 
set out below to all periods presented in these 
financial statements

(a) SLFRS 9 – “Financial Instruments”
 SLFRS 9 replaces LKAS 39 for annual periods 

on or after 1 April 2018 as permitted by the 
transitional provisions of SLFRS 9, the Company 
elected not to restate comparative figures.  

 Any adjustments to the carrying amounts of 
financial assets and liabilities, at the date of 
transition were recognized in the retained 
earnings as at 1 April 2018. Accordingly, the 
information presented for year 2017/18 does not 
reflect the requirements of SLFRS 9 and therefore 
not comparable to the information presented for 
the year 2018/19 under 
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SLFRS 9.
 SLFRS 9 sets out the requirements for 

recognizing and measuring financial assets 
and financial liabilities. This standard replaces 
LKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement. The requirements of SLFRS 9 
represents a significant change from LKAS 39. 
This new standard brings fundamental changes to 
the accounting for financial assets and to certain 
aspects of accounting for financial liabilities. 

 The key changes to the Company’s accounting 
policies resulting from its adoption of SLFRS 9 are 
reflected in Note 41

Changes to classification and measurement
 SLFRS 9 contains three principal classification 

categories for financial assets: measured 
at amortised cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair 
value through profit or loss (FVTPL). SLFRS 9 
classification is generally based on the business 
model in which a financial asset is managed 
and its contractual cash flows. The standard 
eliminates the previous LKAS 39 categories of 
held-to-maturity, loans and receivables and 
available-for-sale.

 SLFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements 
in LKAS 39 for the classification of financial 
liabilities. However, although under LKAS 39 all 
fair value changes of liabilities designated under 
the fair value option were recognised in profit 
or loss, under SLFRS 9 fair value changes are 
generally presented as follows:

 the amount of change in the fair value that is 
attributable to changes in the credit risk of 
the liability is presented in OCI; and

 the remaining amount of change in the fair 
value is presented in profit or loss.

Changes to the impairment calculation
 Under SLFRS 9 the loan loss impairment  

based on incurred loss approach as per LKAS 39 
has been replaced by a forward-looking  
expected credit loss (ECL) approach. SLFRS 9 
requires the Company to record an allowance 
for ECLs for all loans and other debt financial 
assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan 
commitments and financial guarantee contracts. 
The allowance is based on the ECLs associated 
with the probability of default in the next twelve 
months unless there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk since origination. If the 
financial asset meets the definition of purchased 
or originated credit impaired (POCI), the 
allowance is based on the change in the ECLs 
over the life of the asset. The quantitative impact 
of applying SLFRS 9 as at 1 April 2018 is disclosed 
in Note 41. 

Transition
 Changes in accounting policies resulting from 

the adoption of SLFRS 9 have been applied 
retrospectively, except as described below:

 The Company used the exemption not to 
restate comparatives. Differences in the 
carrying amounts of financial assets and 
financial liabilities resulting from the adoption 
of SLFRS 9 are recognised in retained 
earnings and reserves as at 1st April 2018. 
Accordingly, the information presented for 
2017/18 does not reflect the requirements 
of SLFRS 9 and therefore is not comparable 
to the information presented for 2017/2018 
under SLFRS 9.
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 The following assessments have been made 
on the basis of the facts and circumstances 
that existed at the date of initial application:
 The determination of the business model 

within which a financial asset is held.

 The designation and revocation of 
previous designations of certain 
financial assets and financial liabilities as 
measured at FVTPL.

 For financial liabilities designated as at 
FVTPL, the determination of whether 
presenting the effects of changes in 
the financial liability’s credit risk in OCI 
would create or enlarge an accounting 
mismatch in profit or loss.

 If a debt security had low credit risk at 
the date of initial application of SLFRS 
9, then the Company has assumed that 
credit risk on the asset had not increased 
significantly since its initial recognition.

 The information and details on the 
changes and implications resulting from 
the adoption of SLFRS 9 is given in note 
41.

Impact of adopting SLFRS 9 -“Financial  Instruments”
 The impact of this change in accounting policy 

as at 1st April 2018 has been to decrease retained 
earnings by Rs.284,062,855 net of tax.

 Note 41 summarizes the impact of transition to 
SLFRS 9 -“Financial Instruments” on reserves and 
retained earnings as at 1st April 2018.

 Note 41 depicts the original measurement 
categories under LKAS 39 -“Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement” and the new 
measurement categories under SLFRS 9 

-“Financial Instruments” along with their carrying 
amounts for each class of the Company’s financial 
assets and financial liabilities as at 1st April 2018.

(b) SLFRS 15 – “Revenue from Contracts with  
 Customers”
 SLFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive 

framework for determining whether, how much 
and when revenue is recognised. It replaced LKAS 
18 Revenue, LKAS 11 Construction Contracts and 
related interpretations.

 The Company initially applied SLFRS 15 on 1April 
2018 retrospectively in accordance with LKAS 8 
without any practical expedients. The timing or 
amount of the Company’s real estate profit was 
impacted by the adoption of SLFRS 15. 

 Impact of adopting SLFRS 15 - “Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers”

 The impact of this change in accounting policy 
as at 1st April 2018 has been to decrease retained 
earnings by Rs.138.702,012 net of tax.

 Note 41 summarizes the impact of transition 
to SLFRS 15 - “Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers” on reserves and retained earnings as 
at 1st April 2018.

 Note 41 depicts the original measurement 
categories under LKAS 18 -“Revenue” and SLFRS 
15 – “Revenue with contracts with customers”

3.2. summary of significant accounting policies
 The accounting policies set out below have been 

applied consistently to all periods presented in 
the Financial Statements of the Company, unless 
otherwise indicated.
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3.2.1. foreign Currency - foreign currency 
transactions

 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated 
into the respective functional currency of the 
Company at the spot exchange rates at the dates 
of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies at the reporting date are translated 
into the functional currency at the spot exchange 
rate at that date. 

 Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are 
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 
translated into the functional currency at the 
spot exchange rate at the date on which the fair 
value is determined. Non-monetary items that are 
measured based on historical cost in a foreign 
currency are translated using the spot exchange 
rate at the date of the transaction. 

3.3. financial instruments
 The Company initially recognises loans and 

receivables and deposits on the date that they are 
originated. All other financial instruments (including 
regular purchases and sales of financial assets) are 
recognised on the trade date, at which is the date 
on which the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument.

 For financial assets and liabilities held at fair 
value through profit and loss any changes in fair 
value from the trade date to settlement date is 
accounted in the statement of profit or loss while 
for financial assets measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income any changes in 
fair value from the trade date to settlement 
date is accounted in the statement of other 
comprehensive income.

 A financial asset or financial liability is 
measured initially at fair value plus or minus 
transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to its acquisition or issue, except in the case of 
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss as per SLFRS 9 and 
trade receivables that do not have a significant 
financing component as defined by SLFRS 15.

 Transaction cost in relation to financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss are dealt with through the Income Statement.

 Trade receivables that do not have significant 
financing component are measured at their 
transaction price at initial recognition as defined 
in SLFRS 15.

 When the fair value of financial instruments 
(except trade receivables that do not have 
significant financing component) at initial 
recognition differs from the transaction price, the 
Company accounts for the Day 1 profit or loss, as 
described below.

3.1.1.1.1 “Day 1” Profit or Loss
 When the transaction price differs from the 

fair value of other observable current market 
transactions in the same instrument, or based 
on a valuation technique whose variables 
include only data from observable markets, the 
Company recognises the difference between the 
transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ profit or 
loss) in ‘Interest Income and Personnel Expenses’. 
In cases where fair value is determined using data 
which is not observable, the difference between 
the transaction price and model value is only 
recognised in the profit or Loss when the inputs 
become observable, or when the instrument is 
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derecognised. The ‘Day 1 loss’ arising in the case 
of loans granted to employees at concessionary 
rates under uniformly applicable schemes is 
deferred and amortised using Effective Interest 
Rates (EIR) over the remaining service period of 
the employees or tenure of the loan whichever is 
shorter.

3.3.1. Classification
Financial Assets - Policy Applicable from 1 April 2018
 On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified 

as measured at amortised cost, FVOCI or FVTPL. 
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost 
if it meets both of the following conditions and is 
not designated at FVTPL:

 the asset is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold assets to collect 
contractual cash flows;    and

 the contractual terms of the financial asset 
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments of principal and interest 
on the principal amount outstanding.

 A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it 
meets both of the following conditions and is not 
designated as at FVTPL:

 the asset is held within a business model 
whose objective is achieved by both 
collecting;

 contractual cash flows and selling financial 
assets; and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates 
to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.

 On initial recognition of an equity investment 
that is not held for trading, the Company may 
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes 
in fair value in OCI. This election is made on an 
investment-by-investment basis.

 All other financial assets are classified and 
measured at FVTPL.

 In addition, on initial recognition, the Company 
may irrevocably designate a financial asset 
that otherwise meets the requirements to be 
measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at 
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly 
reduces an accounting mismatch that would 
otherwise arise.

Business model assessment
 The Company makes an assessment of the 

objective of a business model in which an asset is 
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects 
the way the business is managed and information 
is provided to management. The information 
considered includes 

 the stated policies and objectives for 
the portfolio and the operation of those 
policies in practice. In particular, whether 
management’s strategy focuses on earning 
contractual interest revenue, maintaining 
a particular interest rate profile, matching 
the duration of the financial assets to the 
duration of the liabilities that are funding 
those assets or realising cash flows through 
the sale of the assets;

 how the performance of the portfolio is 
evaluated and reported to the Company’s 
management;
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 the risks that affect the performance of the 
business model (and the financial assets held 
within that business model) and how those 
risks are managed;

 how managers of the business are 
compensated – e.g. whether compensation 
is based on the fair value of the assets 
managed or the contractual cash flows 
collected; and

 the frequency, volume and timing of sales in 
prior periods, the reasons for such sales and 
its expectations about future sales activity. 
However, information about sales activity is not 
considered in isolation, but as part of an overall 
assessment of how the Company’s stated 
objective for managing the financial assets is 
achieved and how cash flows are realised.

 Financial assets that are held for trading or 
managed and whose performance is evaluated on 
a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL because 
they are neither held to collect contractual cash 
flows nor held both to collect contractual cash 
flows and to sell financial assets.

 Assessment whether contractual cash flows are 
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)

 For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ 
is defined as the fair value of the financial asset 
on initial recognition. “Interest” is defined as 
consideration for the time value of money and 
for the credit risk associated with the principal 
amount outstanding during a particular period of 
time and for other basic lending risks and costs 
(e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well 
as profit margin.

 In assessing whether the contractual cash flows 
are solely payments of principal and interest, the 
Company considers the contractual terms of the 
instrument. This includes assessing whether the 
financial asset contains a contractual term that could 
change the timing or amount of contractual cash 
flows such that it would not meet this condition. In 
making the assessment, the Company considers:

 contingent events that would change the 
amount and timing of cash flows;

 leverage features;

 prepayment and extension terms;

 terms that limit the Company’s claim to 
cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-
recourse asset arrangements); and

 features that modify consideration of the 
time value of money – e.g. periodical reset of 
interest rates.

 Policy applicable before 1 april 2018

3.3.2. Financial Instruments – Initial  Recognition, 
Classification and Subsequent Measurement

Date of Recognition
 The Company initially recognizes micro loans, 

Lease and Hire Purchase receivables, other loans 
and advances, deposits and debt securities 
issued on the date on which they are originated. 
All other financial instruments (including regular 
way purchases and sales of financial assets) are 
recognised on the trade date, which is the date 
on which the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instrument. 
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 Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments
 The classification of financial instruments at 

initial recognition depends on their purpose and 
characteristics and the management’s intention in 
acquiring them. 

 All financial instruments are initially measured 
at their fair value plus transaction costs, that 
are directly attributable to acquisition or issue 
of such financial instruments except in the case 
of financial assets and financial liabilities as per 
the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard – LKAS 39 
on “ Financial Instruments : Recognition and 
Measurement” recorded at fair value through 
profit or loss.

 Transaction cost in relation to financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss are dealt with through the Income Statement.

3.3.3. Classification and Subsequent  Measurement of 
Financial Assets

 Company classifies financial assets into one of 
the following categories:

 Financial Assets at Fair value through  
Profit or Loss, and within this  
category as : 

 Held for Trading ;  or 

 Designated at Fair Value through  
Profit or Loss

 Loans and Receivables;

 Held-to-Maturity;

 Available for Sale

 The subsequent measurement of the financial 
assets depends on their classification.

 Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss include financial assets held for trading 
and financial assets designated upon initial 
recognition at fair value through profit or loss 
which are discussed below.

Financial Assets Held for Trading
 Financial assets are classified as held for trading 

if they are acquired principally for the purpose 
of selling or repurchasing in the near term or 
they hold as a part of a portfolio that is managed 
together for short-term Profit or position taking.

 Financial assets held for trading are recorded in 
the Statement of Financial Position at fair value. 
Changes in fair value are recognised in profit or 
loss. Interest and dividend income are recorded 
in interest Income and Net Gains/ (Losses) from 
Trading respectively in the income statement 
according to the terms of the contract, or when 
the right to receive the payment has been 
established.

 The Company evaluates its financial assets held 
for trading, to determine whether the intention 
to sell them in the near term is still appropriate. 
When the Company is unable to trade these 
financial assets due to inactive markets and 
management’s intention to sell them in the 
foreseeable future significantly changes, the 
Company may elect to reclassify these financial 
assets in rare circumstances. During the reporting 
financial year Company has not classified any 
financial asset as asset held for trading.
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 Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value through 
Profit or Loss

 The Company designates financial assets at 
fair value through profit or loss in the following 
circumstances:

 The assets are managed, evaluated  
and reported internally at fair value;  
or

 The designation eliminates or  significantly 
reduces an accounting  mismatch, which 
would otherwise have arisen; or

 The asset contains an embedded  derivative 
that significantly modifies the cash flows 
which would have  been required under the 
contract.

 Financial assets designated at fair value through 
profit or loss are recorded in the Statement of 
Financial Position at fair value. Changes in fair value 
are recorded in ‘Net gain or loss on financial assets 
and liabilities designated at fair value through 
profit or loss’. Interest earned is accrued in ‘Interest 
Income’, using the EIR, while dividend income is 
recorded in ‘other operating income’ when the right 
to receive the payment has been established.

 The Company has not designated any financial 
assets upon initial recognition as at fair value 
through profit or loss.

Loans and Receivables
 ‘Loans and receivables’ comprised of non 

derivative financial assets with fixed or 
determinable payments that are not quoted in an 
active market, other than:

 Those that the Company intends  to sell 
immediately or in the near term and those 
that the Company, upon initial recognition, 
designates as at fair value through profit or 
loss

 Those that the Company, upon initial 
recognition, designates as available  for sale

 Those for which the Company may not 
recover substantially all of its initial 
investment, other than because of credit 
deterioration

 ‘Loans and receivables’ include Placements with 
Banks and other Finance Companies, Lease 
Receivable and Hire Purchase Receivables, 
Micro Loans, Weleda Warama, Other Loans 
and Receivables from Customers, Reverse 
Repurchase Agreements and other financial 
investments classified as loans and receivables of 
the Company.

 Assets leased to customers which  transfer 
substantially all the risks and  rewards associated 
with ownership other  than legal title, are 
classified as finance  leases. Amounts receivable 
under finance leases are included under “Lease 
Rentals Receivable”. Leasing balances are stated 
in the Statement of Financial Position after 
deduction of initial rentals received, unearned 
lease income and the provision for impairment.

 Assets sold to customers under fixed rate hire 
agreements, which transfer all risk and rewards 
as well as the legal title at the end of such 
contractual period are classified as ‘Hire Purchase 
Receivable’. Such assets are accounted for in a 
similar manner as finance leases.
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 After initial measurement, ‘loans and advances’ 
are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the EIR, less provision for impairment 
except when the Company designates loans 
and receivables at fair value through profit or 
loss. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees and costs that are an integral part of 
the EIR. The amortization is included in ‘Interest 
Income’. The losses arising from impairment 
are recognized in the Income Statement in 
‘Impairment charges for loans and other losses’ in 
the Income Statement.

 Securities purchased under agreements to resale 
at a specified future date are not recognized 
in the Statement of Financial Position. The 
consideration paid, including accrued interest, is 
recorded in the Statement of Financial Position, 
within ‘reverse repurchase agreements’, reflecting 
the transaction’s economic substance as a 
loan by Company. The difference between the 
purchase and resale prices is recorded in ‘Net 
interest income’ and is accrued over the life of the 
agreement using the EIR.

Held to Maturity Financial Investments
 Held to Maturity financial investments are non-

derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments and fixed maturities, which the Company 
has the intention and ability to hold to maturity. 
After initial measurement, held to maturity financial 
investments are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the EIR, less impairment. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The amortisation 
is included in ‘Interest Income’ in the Income 
Statement. The losses arising from impairment of 

such investments are recognised in the Income 
Statement in ‘Impairment charges for loans and 
other losses’.

 If the Company were to sell or reclassify more 
than an insignificant amount of Held to Maturity 
investments before maturity (other than in certain 
specific circumstances permitted in the Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standard - LKAS 39 on ‘Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’), the 
entire category would be tainted and would have 
to be reclassified accordingly. Furthermore, the 
Company would be prohibited from classifying 
any financial asset as Held to Maturity during the 
following two years.

Available for Sale Financial Investments
 Available-for-sale investments include equity 

securities and Government debt securities. Equity 
investments classified as Available-for-Sale 
are those which are neither classified as held 
for trading nor designated at fair value through 
profit or loss. Government Debt securities in this 
category are intended to be held for an indefinite 
period of time or in response to changes in the 
market conditions.

 After initial measurement, available for sale financial 
investments are subsequently measured at fair value.

 Unrealised gains and losses are recognised 
directly in Equity through Other Comprehensive 
Income in the ‘Available-For-Sale Reserve’. When 
the investment is disposed of, the cumulative 
gain or loss previously recognised in Equity is 
recycled to Income Statement in ‘Other operating 
income’. Interest earned whilst holding Available-
for-Sale financial investments is reported as 
‘Interest Income’ using the EIR.
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 Interest earned whilst holding Available-for-
Sale financial investments are recognised in the 
Income Statement as ‘Interest income’ when 
the right to receive the payment has been 
established. The losses arising from impairment 
of such investments too are recognised in the 
Income Statement in ‘Impairment losses on 
financial investments’ and removed from the 
‘Available for Sale reserve’.

 Classification and Subsequent Measurement of 
Financial Liabilities

 Company classifies financial liabilities into one of 
the following categories: 

 Financial Liabilities at Fair Value  
through Profit or Loss

 Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost

 The subsequent measurement of financial 
liabilities depends on their classification.

 Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or 
Loss

 Financial liabilities at fair value through profit  
or loss include financial liabilities held for  
trading and financial liabilities designated upon 
initial recognition as at fair value through profit 
or loss.

 Financial liabilities are classified as held for 
trading if they are acquired principally for 
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the 
near term or holds as a part of a portfolio that 
is managed together for short-term profit or 
position taking. Gains or losses on liabilities 
held for trading are recognised in the Income 
Statement.

 Interest paid/ payable is accrued in Interest 
Expense using the EIR. The Company has not 
designated any financial liabilities upon initial 
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost
 Financial instruments that are not designated 

at fair value through profit or loss, are classified 
as liabilities under ‘Deposits Due to Customers’, 
‘Debt Instruments Issued and Other Borrowed 
Funds’ or ‘Due to Banks & Financial Institutions’ 
as appropriate, where the substance of the 
contractual arrangement results in the Company 
having an obligation either to deliver cash or 
another financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy 
the obligation other than by the exchange of a 
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for 
a fixed number of own equity shares.

 After initial recognition, such financial liabilities 
are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the EIR method. Amortised cost is 
calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are 
an integral part of the EIR. 

 The EIR amortisation is included in ‘Interest 
Expenses’ in the Income Statement. Gains and 
losses are recognised in Income Statement when 
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through 
the EIR amortisation process.

3.4. reclassification of financial assets and 
liabilities

Policy Applicable from 1 April 2018
 Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent 

to their initial recognition, except in the period 
after the Company changes its business model 
for managing financial assets.
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Policy Applicable before 1 April 2018
 The Company may reclassify non-derivative 

financial assets out of the ‘held for trading’ 
category and into the ‘available-for-sale’, 
‘loans and receivables’, or ‘held to maturity’ 
categories as permitted by the Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards - LKAS 39 on ‘Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’. 
Further, in certain circumstances, the Company 
is permitted to reclassify financial instruments 
out of the ‘available-for-sale’ category and 
into the ‘loans and receivables’ category. 
Reclassifications are recorded at fair value at the 
date of reclassification, which becomes the new 
amortised cost.

 For a financial asset with a fixed maturity 
reclassified out of the ‘available-for-sale’ 
category, any previous gain or loss on that asset 
that has been recognised in Equity is amortised 
to profit or loss over the remaining life of the 
asset using the EIR. Any difference between 
the new amortised cost and the expected cash 
flows is also amortised over the remaining life of 
the asset using the EIR. In the case of a financial 
asset does not have a fixed maturity, the gain 
or loss is recognised in the profit or loss when 
such financial asset is sold or disposed off. If the 
financial asset is subsequently determined to be 
impaired, then the amount recorded in Equity is 
recycled to profit or loss.

 The Company may reclassify a non-derivative 
trading asset out of the ‘held for trading’ category 
and into the ‘loans and receivables’ category if it 
meets the definition of loans and receivables and 
the Company has the intention and ability to hold 
the financial asset for the foreseeable future or 
until maturity. If a financial asset is reclassified, 

and if the Company subsequently increases its 
estimates of future cash receipts as a result of 
increased recoverability of those cash receipts, 
the effect of that increase is recognised as an 
adjustment to the EIR from the date of the change 
in estimate.

 Reclassification is at the election of management, 
and is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

 The Company does not reclassify any financial 
instrument into the fair value through profit or 
loss category after initial recognition. Further, 
the Company does not reclassify any financial 
instrument out of the fair value through profit or 
loss category if upon initial recognition it  
was designated as at fair value through  
profit or loss. 

 An entity shall not classify any financial assets 
as held to maturity if the entity has, during 
the current financial year or during the two 
preceding financial years, sold or reclassified 
more than an insignificant amount of held-to-
maturity investments before maturity (more than 
insignificant in relation to the total amount of 
held-to-maturity investments) other than sales or 
reclassifications that:

(i)  are so close to maturity or the financial 
asset’s call date that changes in the market 
rate of interest would not have a significant 
effect on the financial asset’s fair value;

(ii)  occur after the entity has collected 
substantially all of the financial asset’s 
original principal through scheduled 
payments or prepayments; or
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(iii)  are attributable to an isolated event that is 
beyond the entity’s control, is non-recurring 
and could not have been reasonably 
anticipated by the entity.

3.5. de recognition of financial assets and  
financial liabilities

3.5.1.  Financial Assets
 Policy Applicable both from and before 1 April 

2018

 The Company derecognises a financial asset 
when the contractual rights to the cash flows 
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers  
the rights to receive the contractual cash flows 
in a transaction in which substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of ownership of the  
financial asset are transferred or in which 
the Company neither transfers nor retains 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership and it does not retain control of the 
financial asset.

 On derecognition of a financial asset, the 
difference between the carrying amount of the 
asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the 
portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum of 
(i) the consideration received (including any 

new asset obtained less any new liability 
assumed) and 

(ii) (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been 
recognised in OCI is recognised in profit or 
loss. 

 From 1 April 2018 any cumulative gain/
loss recognised in OCI in respect of equity 
investment securities designated as at  
FVOCI is not recognised in profit or loss on 

derecognition of such securities. Any interest 
in transferred financial assets that qualify for 
derecognition that is created or retained by the 
Company is recognised as a separate asset or 
liability.

 The Company enters into transactions whereby 
it transfers assets recognised on its statement 
of financial position, but retains either all or 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
the transferred assets or a portion of them. 
In such cases, the transferred assets are not 
derecognised. Examples of such transactions 
are securities lending and sale-and-repurchase 
transactions.

 In transactions in which the Company neither 
retains nor transfers substantially all of the risks 
and rewards of ownership of a financial asset 
and it retains control over the asset,  
the Company continues to recognise the  
asset to the extent of its continuing 
involvement, determined by the extent to which 
it is exposed to changes in the value of the 
transferred asset.

 In certain transactions, the Company retains 
the obligation to service the transferred 
financial asset for a fee. The transferred asset 
is derecognised if it meets the derecognition 
criteria. An asset or liability is recognised for the 
servicing contract if the servicing fee is more than 
adequate (asset) or is less than adequate (liability) 
for performing the servicing.

3.5.2. Financial Liabilities
 A financial liability is derecognised when the 

obligation under liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expired.
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3.6. modifications of financial assets and financial 
liabilities (continued)

 Policy applicable from 1 april 2018 

3.6.1. Financial assets 
 If the terms of a financial asset are modified, then 

the Company evaluates whether the cash flows 
of the modified asset are substantially different.If 
the cash flows are substantially different, then the 
contractual rights to cash flows from the original 
financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this 
case, the original financial asset is derecognized 
and a new financial asset is recognised at fair 
value plus any eligible transaction costs. Any 
fees received as part of the modification are 
accounted for as follows:

 fees that are considered in determining 
the fair value of the new asset and fees 
that represent reimbursement of eligible 
transaction costs are included in the initial 
measurement of the asset; 

 and

 other fees are included in profit or loss as 
part of the gain or loss on derecognition.

 If cash flows are modified when the borrower is 
in financial difficulties, then the objective of the 
modification is usually to maximise recovery of the 
original contractual terms rather than to originate 
a new asset with substantially different terms. If 
the Company plans to modify a financial asset in a 
way that would result in forgiveness of cash flows, 
then it first considers whether a portion of the asset 
should be written off before the modification takes 
place (see below for write-off policy). This approach 
impacts the result of the quantitative evaluation and 

means that the derecognition criteria are not usually 
met in such cases.

 If the modification of a financial asset measured 
at amortised cost or FVOCI does not result in 
derecognition of the financial asset, then the 
Company first recalculates the gross carrying 
amount of the financial asset using the original 
effective interest rate of the asset and recognises 
the resulting adjustment as a modification gain 
or loss in profit or loss. For floating-rate financial 
assets, the original effective interest rate used to 
calculate the modification gain or loss is adjusted 
to reflect current market terms at the time of the 
modification. Any costs or fees incurred and fees 
received as part of the modification adjust the 
gross carrying amount of the modified financial 
asset and are amortised over the remaining term 
of the modified financial asset.

 If such a modification is carried out because of 
financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain 
or loss is presented together with impairment 
losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest 
income calculated using the effective interest 
rate method. 

3.6.2. Financial liabilities
 The Company derecognises a financial liability 

when its terms are modified and the cash flows 
of the modified liability are substantially different. 
In this case, a new financial liability based on the 
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The 
difference between the carrying amount of the 
financial liability derecognised and consideration 
paid is recognised in profit or loss. Consideration 
paid includes non-financial assets transferred, if 
any, and the assumption of liabilities, including 
the new modified financial liability.
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  If the modification of a financial liability is 
not accounted for as derecognition, then the 
amortised cost of the liability is recalculated 
by discounting the modified cash flows at 
the original effective interest rate and the 
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or 
loss. For floating-rate financial liabilities, the 
original effective interest rate used to calculate 
the modification gain or loss is adjusted to 
reflect current market terms at the time of the 
modification. Any costs and fees incurred are 
recognised as an adjustment to the carrying 
amount of the liability and amortised over the 
remaining term of the modified financial liability 
by re-computing the effective interest rate on the 
instrument.

 Policy applicable before 1 april 2018

3.6.3.  Financial assets
 If the terms of a financial asset were modified, 

then the Company evaluated whether the cash 
flows of the modified asset were substantially 
different. If the cash flows were substantially 
different, then the contractual rights to cash flows 
from the original financial asset were deemed to 
have expired. In this case, the original financial 
asset was derecognised and a new financial asset 
was recognised at fair value.

 If the terms of a financial asset were modified 
because of financial difficulties of the borrower 
and the asset was not derecognised, then 
impairment of the asset was measured using the 
premodification interest rate.

3.6.4. Financial liabilities
 The Company derecognised a financial liability 

when its terms were modified and the cash 

flows of the modified liability were substantially 
different. In this case, a new financial liability 
based on the modified terms was recognised at 
fair value. The difference between the carrying 
amount of the financial liability extinguished and 
consideration paid was recognised in profit or 
loss. 

 Consideration paid included non-financial 
assets transferred, if any, and the assumption of 
liabilities, including the new modified financial 
liability.

 If the modification of a financial liability was 
not accounted for as derecognition, then any 
costs and fees incurred were recognised as an 
adjustment to the carrying amount of the liability 
and amortised over the remaining term of the 
modified financial liability by re-computing the 
effective interest rate on the instrument.

3.7. offsetting of financial instruments
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset 

and the net amount reported in the Statement 
of Financial Position if, and only if, there is a 
currently enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and 
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

 Income and expenses are presented on a net 
basis only when permitted under SLFRSs, or 
for gains and losses arising from a Company of 
similar transactions such as in the Company’s 
trading activity.

3.8.  amortised Cost measurement
 An ‘Amortised Cost’ of a financial asset or financial 

liability is the amount at which the financial asset 
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or liability is measured at initial recognition, 
minus principal repayments, plus or minus the 
cumulative amortisation using the EIR method 
of any difference between the initial amount 
recognised and the maturity amount, minus any 
reduction for impairment.

3.9. determination of fair value
 Fair value is the price that would be received to 

sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants 
at the measurement date.

 The fair value measurement is based on the 
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset 
or transfer the liability takes place either:

 in the principal market for the asset or liability 
or

 in the absence of a principal market, in the 
most advantageous market for the asset or 
liability.

 All assets and liabilities for which fair value is 
measured or disclosed in the financial statements 
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, 
described as follows, based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole:

 level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted)market prices 
in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities

 level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is directly or indirectly 
observable

 level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is unobservable

level 1
 When available, the Company measures the 

fair value of an instrument using active quoted 
prices or dealer price quotations (assets and long 
positions are measured at a bid price; liabilities 
and short positions are measured at an ask price), 
without any deduction for transaction costs. 
A market is regarded as active if transactions 
for asset or liability take place with sufficient 
frequency and volume to provide pricing 
information on an ongoing basis.

level 2
 If a market for a financial instrument is not active, 

then the Company establishes fair value using 
a valuation technique. Valuation techniques 
include using recent arm’s length transactions 
between knowledgeable, willing parties (if 
available), reference to the current fair value 
of other instruments that are substantially the 
same, discounted cash flow analyses, credit 
models, option pricing models and other 
relevant valuation models. The chosen valuation 
technique makes maximum use of market 
inputs, relies as little as possible on estimates 
specific to the Company, incorporates all factors 
that market participants would consider in 
setting a price, and is consistent with accepted 
economic methodologies for pricing financial 
instruments. Inputs to valuation techniques 
reasonably represent market expectations and 
measures of the risk-return factors inherent in 
the financial instrument. The Company calibrates 
valuation techniques and tests them for validity 
using prices from observable current market 
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transactions in the same instrument or based on 
other available observable market data.

 
 The best evidence of the fair value of a financial 

instrument at initial recognition is the transaction 
price, i.e. the fair value of the consideration 
given or received, unless the fair value of that 
instrument is evidenced by comparison with 
other observable current market transactions in 
the same instrument, i.e. without modification or 
repackaging, or based on a valuation technique 
whose variables include only data from 
observable markets. 

 When transaction price provides the best 
evidence of fair value at initial recognition, the 
financial instrument is initially measured at the 
transaction price and any difference between 
this price and the value initially obtained from a 
valuation model is subsequently recognised in 
profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the 
life of the instrument but not later than when 
the valuation is supported wholly by observable 
market data or the transaction is closed out.

level 3

 inputs that are unobservable.
 
 This category includes all instruments for which the 

valuation technique includes inputs not based on 
observable data and the unobservable inputs have a 
significant effect on the instrument’s valuation.

 This category includes instruments that are 
valued based on quoted prices of similar 
instruments for which significant unobservable 
adjustments or assumptions are required to 
reflect difference between the instruments.

 Valuation techniques include net present 
 value and discounted cash flow models, 
comparison with similar instruments for which 
observable market prices exist. Assumptions 
and inputs used in valuation techniques  
include risk-free and benchmark interest rates, 
risk premiums in estimating discount rates, 
bond and equity prices, foreign exchange  
rates, expected price volatilities and 
corrections.

 Observable prices or model inputs such as 
market interest rates are usually available 
in the market for listed equity securities and 
Government Securities such as Treasury Bills 
and Treasury Bonds. Availability of observable 
prices and model inputs reduces the need for 
Management judgement and estimation while 
reducing uncertainty associated in determining 
the fair values.

 Models are adjusted to reflect the spread for 
bid and ask prices to reflect costs to close out 
positions, credit and debit valuation adjustments, 
liquidity spread and limitations in the models. 
Also, profit or loss calculated when such financial 
instruments are first recorded (“Day 1” profit or 
loss) is deferred and recognised only when the 
inputs become observable or on derecognition of 
the instrument.

3.10. identification, measurement and assessment of 
impairment of financial assets

 Policy applicable from 1 april 2018
 
 The Company recognises loss allowances for ECL 

on the following financial instruments that are not 
measured at FVTPL: 
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 financial assets that are debt instruments;

 lease receivables;

 financial guarantee contracts issued; and

 loan commitments issued.

 no impairment loss is recognised on equity 
investments.

 The Company measures loss allowances at 
an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for 
the following, for which they are measured as 
12-month ECL:

 debt investment securities that are 
determined to have low credit risk at the 
reporting date; and

 other financial instruments (other than 
lease receivables) on which credit risk has 
not increased significantly since their initial 
recognition 

 Loss allowances for lease receivables are always 
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.

 The Company considers a debt investment 
security to have low credit risk when its credit risk 
rating is equivalent to the globally understood 
definition of ‘investment grade’. The Copany does 
not apply the low credit risk exemption to any 
other financial instruments.

 12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result 
from default events on a financial instrument 
that are possible within the 12 months after the 
reporting date. Financial instruments for which 

a 12-month ECL is recognised are referred to as 
‘Stage 1 financial instruments’.

 Life-time ECL are the ECL that result from all 
possible default events over the expected life of 
the financial instrument. Financial instruments 
for which a lifetime ECL is recognised but which 
are not credit-impaired are referred to as ‘Stage 2 
financial instruments’.

3.10.1. Measurement of ECL

 eCl are a probability-weighted estimate of 
credit losses. they are measured as follows:

 financial assets that are not credit-impaired 
at the reporting date: as the present value 
of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference 
between the cash flows due to the entity 
in accordance with the contract and the 
cash flows that the Company expects to 
receive);

 financial assets that are credit-impaired at 
the reporting date: as the difference between 
the gross carrying amount and the present 
value of estimated future cash flows;

 undrawn loan commitments: as the present 
value of the difference between the 
contractual cash flows  that are due to the 
Company if the commitment is drawn down 
and the cash flows that the Company expects 
to receive; and

 financial guarantee contracts: the expected 
payments to reimburse the holder less 
any amounts that the Company expects to 
recover.
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3.10.2. Restructured financial assets
 If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated 

or modified or an existing financial asset is 
replaced with a new one due to financial 
difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment 
is made of whether the financial asset should be 
derecognised (see (iv)) and ECL are measured as 
follows.

 If the expected restructuring will not result 
in derecognition of the existing asset, then 
the expected cash flows arising from the 
modified financial asset are included in 
calculating the cash shortfalls from the 
existing asset.

 If the expected restructuring will result in 
derecognition of the existing asset, then 
the expected fair value of the new asset 
is treated as the final cash flow from the 
existing financial asset at the time of its 
derecognition. This amount is included in 
calculating the cash shortfalls from the 
existing financial asset that are discounted 
from the expected date of derecognition 
to the reporting date using the original 
effective interest rate of the existing 
financial asset.

3.10.3. Credit-impaired financial assets
 At each reporting date, the Company assesses 

whether financial assets carried at amortised cost 
and debt financial assets carried at FVOCI, and 
finance lease receivables are credit-impaired 
(referred to as ‘Stage 3 financial assets’). A 
financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or 
more events that have a detrimental impact on 
the estimated future cash flows of the financial 
asset have occurred. 

 Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired 
includes the following observable data:

 significant financial difficulty of the borrower 
or issuer;

 a breach of contract such as a default or past 
due event;

 the restructuring of a loan or advance by the 
Company on terms that the Company would 
not consider otherwise;

 it is becoming probable that the borrower 
will enter bankruptcy or other financial 
reorganisation; or 

 the disappearance of an active market for a 
security because of financial difficulties.

 A loan that has been renegotiated due to a 
deterioration in the borrower’s condition is usually 
considered to be credit-impaired unless there is 
evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual 
cash flows has reduced significantly and there 
are no other indicators of impairment. In addition, 
a retail loan that is overdue for 90 days or more 
is considered credit-impaired even when the 
regulatory definition of default is different.

 In making an assessment of whether an 
investment in sovereign debt is credit-impaired, 
the Company considers the following factors.

 The market’s assessment of creditworthiness 
as reflected in the bond yields.

 The rating agencies’ assessments of 
creditworthiness.
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 The country’s ability to access the capital 
markets for new debt issuance.

 The probability of debt being restructured, 
resulting in holders suffering losses through 
voluntary or mandatory debt forgiveness.

 The international support mechanisms in 
place to provide the necessary support 
as ‘lender of last resort’ to that country, as 
well as the intention, reflected in public 
statements, of governments and agencies 
to use those mechanisms. This includes 
an assessment of the depth of those 
mechanisms and, irrespective of the political 
intent, whether there is the capacity to fulfil 
the required criteria.

3.10.4.Presentation of allowance for ECL in the 
statement of financial position

 Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the 
statement of financial position as follows:

 financial assets measured at amortised 
cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying 
amount of the assets;

 loan commitments and financial guarantee 
contracts: generally, as a provision;

 where a financial instrument includes both a 
drawn and an undrawn component, and the 
Company cannot identify the ECL on the loan 
commitment component separately from 
those on the drawn component: the Company 
presents a combined loss allowance for 
both components. The combined amount 
is presented as a deduction from the gross 
carrying amount of the drawn component. 
Any excess of the loss allowance over the 

gross amount of the drawn component is 
presented as a provision; and

 debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss 
allowance is recognised in the statement 
of financial position because the carrying 
amount of these assets is their fair value. 
However, the loss allowance is disclosed and 
is recognised in the fair value reserve.

3.10.5. Write-off
 Loans and debt securities are written off (either 

partially or in full) when there is no reasonable 
expectation of recovering a financial asset in its 
entirety or a portion thereof. This is generally 
the case when the Company determines that 
the borrower does not have assets or sources of 
income that could generate sufficient cash flows 
to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. This 
assessment is carried out at the individual asset 
level.

 Recoveries of amounts previously written off 
are included in ‘impairment losses on financial 
instruments’ in the statement of profit or loss and 
OCI.

 Financial assets that are written off could still 
be subject to enforcement activities in order 
to comply with the Company’s procedures for 
recovery of amounts due.

3.10.6. Movement between the stages
 Financial assets can be transferred between the 

different categories (other than POCI) depending 
on their relative change in credit risk since initial 
recognition. Financial instruments are transferred 
out of stage 2 if their credit risk is no longer 
considered to be significantly increased since 
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initial recognition. Financial instruments are 
transferred out of stage 3 when they no longer 
exhibit any evidence of credit impairment.

3.10.7. Grouping financial assets measured on 
collective basis

 Those financial assets for which, the Company 
determines that no provision is required under 
individual impairment are then collectively 
assessed for ECL. For the purpose of ECL 
calculation on collective basis, financial 
assets are grouped on the basis of similar risk 
characteristics. Loans and advances to other 
customers are grouped into homogeneous 
portfolios, based on product and underlying 
security characteristics.

3.10.8. Incorporating Forward Looking Information
 The Company incorporates forward-looking 

information into both its assessment of whether 
the credit risk of an instrument has increased 
significantly since its initial recognition and its 
measurement of ECL using variety of external 
actual and forecasted information, the Company 
formulates a “base case” view of the future 
direction of relevant economic variables as well 
as a representative range (Best Case and worst 
Case) of other possible forecast scenarios.

 This process involves developing two or more 
additional economic scenarios and considering 
the relative probabilities of each outcome. 
External information includes economic data 
and forecasts published by both local and 
international sources.

 
 The base case represents a most-likely outcome 

and is aligned with information used by the 
Company for other purposes. Such as strategic 

planning and budgeting. The other scenarios 
represent more optimistic and more pessimistic 
outcomes. 

 Policy applicable before 1 april 2018

3.10.9. Identification and Measurement of Impairment 
of Financial Assets

 At each Reporting date, the Company assesses 
whether there is objective evidence that financial 
assets not carried at fair value through profit or 
loss are impaired. 

 A financial asset or a group of financial assets is 
‘impaired’ when objective evidence demonstrates 
that a loss event has occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset(s) and that the loss event 
has an impact on the future cash flows of the 
asset(s) that can be estimated reliably.

 
 Objective evidence that financial assets (including 

equity securities) are impaired can include:

 Significant financial difficulty of the borrower 
or issuer, 

 Re schedulement of credit facilities,

 Default or delinquency by a borrower, 

 Restructuring of a loan or advance by the 
Company on terms that the Company would 
not otherwise consider, 

 Indications that a borrower or issuer will enter 
bankruptcy, 

 The disappearance of an active market for a 
security, or 
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 Other observable data relating to a group 
of assets such as adverse changes in the 
payment status of borrowers or issuers in the 
group, or economic conditions that correlate 
with defaults in the group.

 
 In addition, for an investment in an equity security, 

a significant or prolonged decline in its fair value 
below its cost is considered as an objective 
evidence of impairment.

3.10.10. Impairment of Financial Assets carried at 
Amortised Cost

 For financial assets carried at amortised 
cost (such as lease rental and hire purchase 
receivables, loans and receivables to other 
customers as well as held to maturity 
investments) , the Company first assesses 
individually whether objective evidence of 
impairment exists for financial assets that are 
individually significant, or collectively for financial 
assets that are not individually significant. If 
the Company determines that no objective 
evidence of impairment exists for an individually 
assessed financial asset, it includes the asset in 
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk 
characteristics and collectively assesses them for 
impairment. Assets that are individually assessed 
for impairment and for which an impairment loss 
is, or continues to be, recognised are not included 
in a collective assessment of impairment.

 If there is objective evidence that an impairment 
loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss 
is measured as the difference between the 
assets’s carrying amount and the present value 
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future 
expected credit losses that have not yet been 
incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is 

reduced through the use of an allowance account 
and the amount of impairment loss is recognised 
in the Income Statement. 

 For the purpose of collective evaluation of 
impairment, financial assets are grouped on a 
basis which takes in to consideration credit risk 
characteristics.

 Future cash flows on a group of financial assets 
that are collectively evaluated for impairment 
are estimated on the basis of historical 
loss experience for assets with credit risk 
characteristics similar to those in the group. 
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis 
of current observable data to reflect the effects 
of current conditions on which the historical loss 
experience is based and to remove the effects of 
conditions in the historical period that do not exist 
currently.

3.10.11. Impairment of Financial Investments - 
Available for Sale

 For available for sale financial investments, 
the Company assesses at each Reporting date 
whether there is objective evidence that an 
investment is impaired.

 In the case of debt instruments classified as 
available-for-sale, the Company assesses 
individually whether there is objective evidence 
of impairment based on the same criteria as 
financial assets carried at amortised cost. 
However, the amount recorded for impairment is 
the cumulative loss measured as the difference 
between the amortised cost and the current fair 
value, less any impairment loss on  
that investment previously recognised in  
profit or loss. 
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 Future interest income is based on the reduced 
carrying amount/impaired balance and is 
accrued using the rate of interest used to 
discount the future cash flows for the purpose 
of measuring the impairment loss. The interest 
income on such assets too is recorded within 
‘Interest income’. 

 If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt 
instrument increases and the increase can be 
objectively related to a credit event occurring 
after the impairment loss was recognised in 
the Income Statement, the impairment loss is 
reversed through the Income Statement.

 In the case of equity investments classified as 
available for sale, objective evidence would 
also include a ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ 
decline in the fair value of the investment 
below its cost. Where there is evidence of 
impairment, the cumulative loss measured as 
the difference between the acquisition cost and 
the current fair value, less any impairment loss 
on that investment previously recognised in the 
Income Statement is removed from equity  
and recognised in the Income Statement. 
However, any subsequent recovery in the fair 
value of an impaired available-for-sale  
equity security is recognised in Other 
Comprehensive Income.

3.10.12. Collateral Valuation
 The Company seeks to use collateral, where 

possible to mitigate the risks on Financial Assets. 
The Collateral comes in various forms such as 
vehicles, gold, real estate, inventories and other 
non –financial assets. The fair value of collateral 
is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception 
and based on Company’s valuation policy.

 Non-financial collateral such as real estate is 
valued by an external, independent valuer, having 
appropriate recognised professional qualifications 
and recent experience in the location and 
category of property being valued.

3.10.13. Collateral Repossessed 
 The Company’s policy is to sell the repossessed 

assets at the earliest possible opportunity. 
Such collateral repossessed are held on a 
memorandum basis without de recognising the 
underlying receivable.

3.11. repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements
 Securities sold subject to repurchase agreements 

(repos) remain on the Statement of Financial 
Position; the counterparty liability is included 
under borrowings. Securities purchased under 
agreements to resell (reverse repos) are recorded 
as loans and advances to other banks or 
customers, as appropriate. 

3.12. loans and advances

 Policy applicable from 1 april 2018

 ‘Loans and advances’ captions in the statement of 
financial position include:

 loans and advances measured at amortised cost 
 they are initially measured at fair value plus 

incremental direct transaction costs, and 
subsequently at their amortised cost using 
the effective interest method;

 loans and advances mandatorily measured at 
FVTPL or designated as at FVTPL; 

 these are measured at fair value with 
changes recognised immediately in profit or 
loss; and finance lease receivables.
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 Policy applicable before 1 april 2018

 ‘Loans and advances’ were non-derivative 
financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that were not quoted in an active 
market and that the Company did not intend to 
sell immediately or in the near term.

 Loans and advances to customers included:
 those classified as loans and receivables;

 those designated as at FVTPL; and

 finance lease receivables.

 Loans and advances were initially measured at 
fair value plus incremental direct transaction 
costs, and subsequently measured at their 
amortised cost using the effective interest 
method. When the Company chose to designate 
the loans and advances as measured at FVTPL. 
They were measured at fair value with face value 
changes recognised immediately in profit or loss.

 Loans and advances also included finance lease 
receivables in which the Company was the lessor. 
When the Company purchased a financial asset 
and simultaneously entered into an agreement 
to resell the asset (or a substantially similar 
asset) at a fixed price on a future date (reverse 
repo or stock borrowing), the arrangement 
was accounted for as a loan or advance, and 
the underlying asset was not recognised in the 
Company’s financial statements.

3.13. Property, Plant & equipment
 The Company applies the requirements of the 

Sri Lanka Accounting Standard – LKAS 16 on 
‘Property, Plant & Equipment’ in accounting 

for its owned assets (including buildings 
under operating leases where the Company 
is the lessor) which are held for and use in the 
provision of services, for rental to others or for 
administrative purposes and are expected to be 
used for more than one year.

3.13.1. Basis of Recognition and measurement
 Property, Plant & Equipment are recognised 

if it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the asset will flow to the 
Company and cost of the asset can be reliably 
measured.

3.13.2. Measurement
 The Company applies the Cost Model to all 

Property, Plant & Equipment and records at 
cost of purchase together with any incidental 
expenses thereon, less accumulated depreciation 
and any accumulated impairment losses.

 An item of Property, Plant & Equipment that 
qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially 
measured at its cost. Cost includes expenditure 
that is directly attributable to the acquisition 
of the asset and subsequent costs (excluding 
the costs of day-to-day servicing). Purchased 
software which is integral to the functionality of 
the related equipment is capitalised as part of 
Computer Equipment.

 When parts of an item of property or equipment 
have different useful lives, they are accounted for 
as separate items (major components) of property 
and equipment.

3.13.3. Subsequent cost
 Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when 

it is probable that the future economic benefits 
of the expenditure will flow to the Company. 
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Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed 
as incurred.

3.13.4. Depreciation
 Depreciation is calculated to write-off the cost of 

items of Property, Plant & Equipment less their 
estimated residual values using the straight-line 
method over their estimated useful lives, and is 
recognised in profit or loss. Leased assets under 
finance leases are depreciated over the shorter 
of the lease term and their useful lives. Freehold 
land is not depreciated. The estimated useful 
lives for the current and comparative years are as 
follows:

Buildings            20 years

Computer Equipment        4 years

Furniture & Fittings 4 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Freehold Motor Vehicles 4-8 years

Leasehold Motor Vehicles 8 years

Leasehold Improvements 4 years

 The depreciation rates are determined separately 
for each significant part of an item of Property, 
Plant & Equipment and commence to depreciate 
when it is available for use, i.e., when it is in the 
location and condition necessary for it to be 
capable of operating in the manner intended 
by the management. Depreciation of an asset 
ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset 
is classified as held for sale or the date that the 
asset is derecognised.

3.13.5. Change in Depreciation Rate
 Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual 

values are reassessed at each reporting date and 
adjusted, if required.

3.13.6. De-recognition
 An item of Property, Plant & Equipment is 

derecognised upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use. Any 
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset 
(calculated as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset), is recognised in ‘Other Operating Income’ in 
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised. 
When replacement costs are recognised in the 
carrying amount of an item of Property, Plant & 
Equipment, the remaining carrying amount of the 
replaced part is derecognised as required by Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standard – LKAS 16 on ‘Property, 
Plant & Equipment’.

3.14.  intangible assets
 An intangible asset is an identifiable non-

monetary asset without physical substance held 
for use in the production or supply of goods or 
services, for rental to others or for administrative 
purposes. The Company’s intangible assets 
include the value of Computer Software.

3.14.1. Basis of Recognition
 An intangible asset is recognised if it is probable that 

future economic benefits associated with the asset 
will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can 
be measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired 
separately are measured on initial recognition at 
cost. Following initial recognition, these assets are 
stated in the Statement of Financial Position at cost, 
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any.
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3.14.2. Subsequent Expenditure
 Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets 

is capitalised only when it increases the future 
economic benefits embodied in the specific 
asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is 
expensed as incurred.

3.14.3. Amortisation 
 Intangible assets are amortised using the 

straight line method to write down the cost 
over its estimated useful economic lives 
specified below:

Computer Software 10 years

3.14.4.Derecognition of Intangible Assets
 Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal 

or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from their use. Gains or losses arising 
from derecognition of an intangible asset are 
measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset and are recognised in profit or loss.

3.15. investment Property
 Investment property is properly held either to 

earn rental income, for capital appreciation or 
for both, but not for sale in the ordinary course 
of business, use in the production or supply of 
goods or services or for administrative purposes. 

 Investment property is measured at cost on initial 
recognition and subsequently at fair value with 
any change therein recognized in profit or loss. 

 
 Cost includes expenditure that is directly 

attributable to the acquisition of the investment 
property. 

 Any gain or loss on disposal of an investment 
property (calculated as the difference between 
the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying 
amount of the item) is recognized in profit or 
loss. When an investment property that was 
previously classified as property, plant and 
equipment is sold, any related amount included in 
the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained 
earnings.

 When the use of a property changes such as that 
it is reclassified as property, plant, equipment, its 
fair value at the date of reclassification becomes 
its cost for subsequent accounting. When the use 
of a property changes from owner-occupied to 
investment property, the property is re measured 
to fair value and reclassified as investment 
property. Any gain arising on re measurement 
is recognized in profit or loss to the extent 
that it reverses a previous impairment loss on 
the specific property, with any remaining gain 
recognized in other comprehensive income and 
presented in the revaluation reserve in equity. Any 
loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

3.16. real estate inventory
 Lands purchased for real estate business are 

classified as real estate inventory. Costs includes 
purchase price and development & construction 
costs. Inventories are measured at the lower of 
cost and net realisable value. 

 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in 
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated 
costs of completion and selling expenses.

3.17. leases
 The determination of whether an arrangement 

is a lease or it contains a lease, is based on the 
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substance of the arrangement and requires 
an assessment of whether the fulfillment of 
the arrangement is dependent on the use of a 
specific asset or assets and the arrangement 
conveys a right to use the asset.

3.17.1. Operating Leases
 operating leases – Company as a Lessee
 Leases that do not transfer to the Company 

substantially all risks and benefits incidental 
to ownership of the leased assets are 
operating leases. Operating lease payments 
are recognised as an expense in the Income 
Statement on a straight line basis over the 
lease term. Contingent rental payable is 
recognised as an expense in the period in 
which they are incurred.

 operating leases – Company as a Lessor
 Leases where the Company does not transfer 

substantially all risks and benefits of ownership of 
the asset are classified as operating leases. Initial 
direct costs incurred in negotiating operating 
leases are added to the carrying amount of the 
leased asset unrecognized over the lease term on 
the same basis as rental income.

 Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the 
period in which they are earned.

3.17.2.Finance Leases
 finance leases – Company as a Lessee
 Finance leases that transfer substantially all 

risks and benefits incidental to ownership of 
the leased item to the Company, are capitalised 
at the commencement of the lease at the 
fair value of the leased property or, if lower, 
at the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. Lease payments are apportioned 

between finance charges and reduction of the 
lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate 
of interest on the remaining balance of the 
liability.

 A leased asset is depreciated over the useful 
life of the asset. However, if there is no 
reasonable certainty that the Company will 
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, 
the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the 
estimated useful life of the asset and the  
lease term.

 finance leases – Company as a Lessor
 When the Company is the lessor under finance 

leases the amounts due under the leases, after 
deduction of

 Unearned charges, are included in Lease 
rentals receivables , as appropriate. The 
finance income receivable is recognised in 
‘interest income’ over the periods of the leases 
so as to give a constant rate of return on the 
net investment in the leases.

3.18. impairment of non-financial assets
 At each Reporting date, the Company reviews 

the carrying amounts of its non – financial 
assets (other than inventories and deferred 
tax assets) to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is 
estimated. 

 For impairment testing, assets are grouped 
together into the smallest group of assets that 
generates cash inflows from continuing use that 
is largely independent of the cash inflows of other 
assets or CGUs. 
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 The ‘recoverable amount’ of an asset or CGU is 
the greater of its value in use and its fair value less 
costs to sell. ‘Value in use’ is based on the estimated 
future cash flows, discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

 An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying 
amount of an asset or its related Cash-Generating 
unit (CGU) exceeds its estimated recoverable 
amount.

 The Company’s corporate assets do not generate 
separate cash inflows and are utilised by more 
than one CGU. Corporate assets are allocated to 
CGUs on a reasonable and consistent basis and 
tested for impairment as part of the testing of the 
CGU to which the corporate asset is allocated.

 Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. 
They are allocated first to reduce the carrying 
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and 
then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other 
assets in the CGU on a pro-rata basis.

 An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not 
reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss 
is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s 
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss 
had been recognised.

3.19. dividends Payable
 Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as 

a liability and deducted from equity when they 
are recommended and declared by the Board of 
Directors.

3.20. deposits due to Customers debt instruments 
issued and other borrowed funds

 These include term deposits, Promissory notes 
& commercial papers. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, deposits are measured at their 
amortised cost using the effective interest 
method, except where the Company designates 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. 
Interest paid / payable on these deposits 
recognised in profit or loss.

3.21. debt securities issued and subordinated term 
debts

 These represent the funds borrowed by the 
Company for long-term funding requirements. 
Subsequent to initial recognition debt securities 
issued are measured at their amortised cost using 
the effective interest method, except where the 
Company designates debt securities issued at fair 
value through profit or loss. Interest paid/payable 
is recognised in profit or loss.

3.22. other liabilities
 Other liabilities are recorded at amounts 

expected to be payable at the Reporting date.

3.23. Provisions
 A provision is recognised if, as a result of a 

past event, the Company has a present legal or 
constructive obligation that can be estimated 
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of 
economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation. Provisions are determined by 
discounting the expected future cash flows 
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the 
discount is recognised in ‘Interest Expense’ in 
profit or loss.
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3.24. Provisions for operational risk events
 Provisions for operational risk events are 

recognised for losses incurred by the Company 
which do not relate directly to amounts of 
principal outstanding for loans and advances.

 The amount recognised as a provision is the best 
estimate of the expenditure required to settle 
the present obligation as at the reporting date, 
taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
that surround the events and circumstances that 
affect the provision.

3.25. employee benefits
3.25.1. Defined Benefit Plan (DBP) - Gratuity
 A defined benefit plan is a post employment 

benefit plan other than a defined contribution 
plan. The liability recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Position in respect of a defined benefit 
plan is the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation at the reporting date. Benefit falling 
due more than 12 months after the reporting date 
are discounted to present value. The defined 
benefits obligation is calculated annually by 
independent actuaries using Projected Unit Credit 
Method (PUC) as recommended by LKAS-19, 
“employee benefits”.

 Actual gains and losses in the period in which 
they occur have been recognise in the other 
Comprehensive income (OCI).The assumptions 
based on which the results of actuarial valuation 
was determined, are included in notes to the 
financial statements.

 Gratuity liability was computed from the first year 
of service for all employees in conformity with 
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards 19- “Employee 
Benefits”.

 However, under the payment of Gratuity Act No. 
12 of 1983, the liability to an employee arises only 
on completion of five years of continual service. 
The Company is liable to pay gratuity in terms of 
the relevant statute. The gratuity liability is not 
externally funded.

3.25.2. Defined contribution Plan

 employees’ Provident fund (ePf) 

 The Company and employees contribute 12% and 
8% respectively on the salary of each employee 
to the Employees Provident Fund managed by 
the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

 employees’ trust fund (etf) 

 The Company contributes 3% of the salary of each 
employee to the Employees’ Trust Fund managed 
by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

3.26. Compensation reserve fund
 The Company maintains an insurance reserve 

fund to compensate for outstanding micro loan 
balances when the relevant micro member or his 
or her spouse is deceased and not in a position to 
service the accommodation. This Compensation 
reserve fund is formed out of Loan Protection 
Premium collected from micro members at the 
time micro Loan facilities are granted to them

3.27. recognition of income and expenses
 The following specific criteria are used for the 

purpose of recognition of revenue.

3.28. interest income and expense
 Policy applicable before and after 1 April 2018
 Effective interest rate
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 Interest income and expense are recognised in 
profit or loss using the effective interest method. 
The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments or 
receipts through the expected life of the financial 
instrument to: 

 the gross carrying amount of the financial 
asset; or

 the amortised cost of the financial liability.

 When calculating the effective interest rate for 
financial instruments other than purchased or 
originated credit-impaired assets, the Company 
estimates future cash flows considering all 
contractual terms of the financial instrument, 
but not ECL. For purchased or originated credit 
impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted 
effective interest rate is calculated using 
estimated future cash flows including ECL.

 The calculation of the effective interest rate 
includes transaction costs and fees and points 
paid or received that are an integral part of the 
effective interest rate. Transaction costs include 
incremental costs that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or 
financial liability.

 However, for financial assets that have become 
credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, 
interest income is calculated by applying the 
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the 
financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-
impaired, then the calculation of interest income 
reverts to the gross basis.

 For financial assets that were credit-impaired on 

initial recognition, interest income is calculated by 
applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate 
to the amortised cost of the asset. The calculation 
of interest income does not revert to a gross basis, 
even if the credit risk of the asset improves.

Amortised cost and gross carrying amount
 The ‘amortised cost’ of a financial asset or 

financial liability is the amount at which the 
financial asset or financial liability is measured on 
initial recognition minus the principal repayments, 
plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using 
the effective interest method of any difference 
between that initial amount and the maturity 
amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any 
expected credit loss allowance (or impairment 
allowance before 1 April 2018). The ‘gross carrying 
amount of a financial asset’ is the amortised 
cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any 
expected credit loss allowance.

Presentation
 Interest income calculated using the effective 

interest method presented in the statement of 
profit or loss and OCI includes–

 interest on financial assets and financial 
liabilities measured at amortised cost;

 interest on debt instruments measured at 
FVOCI;

 Other interest income presented in the 
statement of profit or loss and OCI includes 
interest income on finance leases.

 Interest expense presented in the statement of 
profit or loss and OCI includes:

 financial liabilities measured at amortised 
cost; and
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 Interest income and expense on all trading 
assets and liabilities are considered to 
be incidental to the Company’s trading 
operations and are presented together  
with all other changes in the fair value of 
trading assets and liabilities in net trading 
income.

 Interest income and expense on other 
financial assets and financial liabilities  
at FVTPL are presented in net  
income from other financial instruments  
at FVTPL 

3.29.fees and Commission income
 Net gain / (loss) from trading’ comprise gains less 

losses related to trading assets and liabilities, 
and include all realised and unrealised fair value 
changes and dividends.

(a) Fee income earned from services that are 
provided over a certain period of time

 Fees earned for the provision of services over 
a period of time are accrued over that period. 
These fees include commission income and 
etc.

(b) Fee income from providing transaction 
services

 Fees arising from negotiating or participating 
in the negotiation of a transaction for a 
third party, such as the purchase or sale of 
business is recognised on completion of the 
underlying transaction. Fees or components 
of fees that are linked to a certain 
performance are recognized after fulfilling 
the corresponding criteria

3.30.  income from real estate sales
 In line with SLFRS 15, the revenue from the sale of 

real estate is recognized when the performance 
obligation is satisfied namely the risks and 
rewards of ownership, the control and the title of 
the land blocks are passed to the buyer; upon the 
100% receipt of payments of the consideration the 
buyer in respect of the land block he/she intends 
to purchase with effect from 01.April 2018

3.31. other operating income
 ‘Other Operating Income’ comprise gain or (loss) 

on disposal of property plant & equipment, 
Sundry Income and dividends.

3.32. tax expense
 Income tax expense comprises current and 

deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised 
in the Income Statement, except to the extent it 
relates to items recognised directly in Equity or in 
OCI.

3.32.1. Current Taxation
 ‘Current tax’ comprises the expected tax 

payable or receivable on the taxable income 
or loss for the year and any adjustment to the 
tax payable or receivable in respect of previous 
years. It is measured using tax rates enacted or 
substantively enacted, at the Reporting date.

 Accordingly, provision for taxation is made on 
the basis of the accounting profit for the year, as 
adjusted for taxation purposes, in accordance 
with the provisions of the Inland Revenue Act No. 
24 of 2017 and amendments thereto.

 Notes to Financial Statements include the major 
components of tax expense, the effective tax 
rates and a reconciliation between the profit 
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before tax and tax expense, as required by the Sri 
Lanka Accounting Standard – LKAS 12 on ‘Income 
Taxes’.

3.32.2. Deferred Taxation
 Deferred tax is recognised in respect of 

temporary differences between the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial 
reporting purposes and the amounts used for 
taxation purposes. 

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused 
tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is 
probable that future taxable profits will be 
available against which they can be used. 
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each 
Reporting date and are reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that the related tax 
benefit will be realised.

 Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates 
that are expected to be applied to temporary 
differences when they reverse, using tax 
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the 
Reporting date.

 The measurement of deferred tax reflects the 
tax consequences that would follow the manner 
in which the Company expects, at the Reporting 
date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of 
its assets and liabilities.

3.32.3. Value Added Tax (VAT) on Financial Services
 The value base for the computation of value 

added tax on financial services is calculated by 
adjusting the depreciation computed on rates 
prescribed by the Department of Inland Revenue 
to the accounting profit before Income Tax and 

emoluments payable. Emoluments payable 
include benefits in money and not in money 
including contribution or provision relating to 
terminal benefits.

3.32.4. Nation Building Tax (NBT) on Financial Services
 With effect from January 01, 2014, NBT of 2% was 

introduced on supply of Financial services via an 
amendment to the NBT Act No. 09 of 2009. NBT is 
chargeable on the same base used for calculation 
of VAT on Financial services as explained in notes 
to the Financial Statements.

3.32.5. Crop Insurance Levy (CIL)
 As per the provisions of the Section 14 of 

the Finance  Act No. 12 of 2013, the CIL was 
introduced with effect from April 01, 2013 and 
is payable to the National Insurance Trust Fund. 
Currently, the CIL is payable at 1% of the profit 
after tax.

3.32.6 Economic Service Charge (ESC)
 As per the provisions of the Economic Service 

Charge (ESC) Act No 13 of 2006, ESC was payable 
at 0.5% on Company’s liable turnover and was 
deductible from income tax payable. With effect 
from 01 April 2012 as per the ESC amendment 
Act No 11 of 2012 ESC is payable only on exempt 
turnover of the Company and is deductible from 
income tax payable. ESC is not payable on which 
income tax is payable.

3.32.7. Debt Repayment Levy
 As per the Finance Act No. 35 of 2018, with effect 

from October 1, 2018, DRL of 7% was introduced 
on the value addition attributable to the supply 
of financial services by each financial institution. 
DRL is chargeable on the same base used for 
calculation of VAT on financial services.

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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3.33. deposit insurance scheme
 In terms of the Finance Companies Direction No 

2 of 2010 “Insurance of Deposit Liabilities” issued 
on 27th September 2010 all Registered Finance 
Companies are required to insure their deposit 
liabilities in the Deposit Insurance Scheme 
operated by the Monetary Board in terms of Sri 
Lanka Deposit Insurance Scheme Regulations No 
1 of 2010 issued under Sections 32A to 32E of the 
Monetary Law Act with effect from 1st October 
2010.

 Deposits to be insured include demand, time 
and savings deposit liabilities and exclude the 
following.

 Deposit liabilities to member institutions 

 Deposit liabilities to Government of Sri Lanka

 Deposit liabilities to shareholders, directors, 
key management personnel and other 
related parties as defined in Finance 
Companies Act Direction No 03 of 2008 on 
Corporate Governance of Registered Finance 
Companies

 Deposit liabilities held as collateral against 
any accommodation granted

 Deposit liabilities falling within the meaning 
of dormant deposits in terms of the Finance 
Companies Act, funds of which have been 
transferred to Central Bank of Sri Lanka

 Registered Finance Companies are required 
to pay a premium of 0.15% on eligible deposit 
liabilities as at end of the month to be payable 
within a period of 15 days from the end of the 
respective month.

3.34. Withholding tax on dividends distributed by the 
Company 

 Withholding tax that arises from the distribution 
of dividends by the Company is recognised at the 
time the liability to pay the related dividend is 
recognised. 

3.35. earnings per share (ePs)
 The Company presents basic earnings per 

share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares.  Basic 
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss 
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

 Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit 
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and 
the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential 
ordinary shares.

3.36. Capital commitments and contingencies
 Contingent liabilities are possible obligations 

whose existence will be confirmed only by 
occurrence or non-occurrence uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the 
Company or present obligations where the 
transfer of economic benefit is not probable or 
cannot be reliably measured. Contingent  
liabilities are not accounted in the Statement of 
Financial Position but are disclosed unless they 
are remote.

 ‘Financial guarantees’ are contracts that require 
the Company to make specified payments to 
reimburse the holder for a loss that it incurs 
because a specified debtor fails to make payment 
when it is due in accordance with the terms of a 
debt instrument.
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3.37. statement of Cash flows
 The Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared 

using the “Direct Method” of preparing Cash 
Flows in accordance with the Lanka Accounting 
Standard LKAS- 07 “Cash Flow Statements”. Cash 
and cash equivalents comprise short term, highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible 
to known amounts of cash and are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value. The cash 
and cash equivalent include cash in hand and 
favorable balances with banks.

3.38. events after the reporting date
 Events after the reporting date are those events, 

favorable and unfavorable, that occur between 

the Reporting date and the date when the 
Financial Statements are authorised for issue.

 In this regard, all material and important events 
that occurred after the Reporting Period have been 
considered and appropriate disclosures are made in 
the Financial Statements where necessary.

3.39. new accounting standards issued but not yet 
effective as at reporting date

 The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri 
Lanka has issued the following new Sri Lanka 
Accounting Standards. However these standards 
have not been applied in preparing these financial 
statements.

 accounting standard summary of the requirements Possible impact on  
   financial statements

SLFRS 16 – “Leases” SLFRS 16 eliminates the current dual 
accounting model for lessees which 
distinguishes between On-Balance Sheet 
finance leases and Off-Balance Sheet 
operating leases. Instead there will be 
a single On-Balance Sheet accounting 
model that is similar to current finance 
lease accounting.

SLFRS 16 is effective for annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after January 1, 
2019. 

Company has not yet 
assessed the impact on 
its Financial Statements 
resulting from the application 
of SLFRS 16.

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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for the year ended 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs.

4 Gross inCome  

 Interest Income (Note 4.1)   2,876,746,415  3,132,419,087

 Fee and Commission Income (Note 5)   37,104,694  82,582,062

 Net Other Operating Income (Note 6)   195,776,304  205,631,995

    3,109,627,413 3,420,633,144

4.1 interest inCome  

 Loans and Receivables   2,303,570,494  2,668,289,952

 Lease Rental Receivables & Hire Purchase Receivables   380,108,115  287,993,226

 Financial Investments -AFS   -  2,131,718

 Financial Investments - FVTOCI   2,606,138  -

 Placements with Banks and Other Financial Institutions   66,788,516  83,744,978

 Interest Income Received on Impaired Financial Assets*   123,673,152  90,259,213

 total interest income   2,876,746,415  3,132,419,087

 “*Interest income received from impaired assets include a default interest income of Rs. 11,253,540/-  recognized on the  
 realization og mortgaged bond on a defaulted business loan.”  

  

4.2 interest exPense  

 Due to Banks   24,361,252  16,112,428

 On Deposits Due to Customers   122,111,805  122,078,565

 Debt Instruments and Other Borrowed Funds   854,847,478  979,748,627

    1,001,320,535  1,117,939,620

5 fee and Commision inCome  

 Credit Related Fees and Commissions   16,914,686 14,457,786

 Service Charges   6,029,260  9,437,607

 Joining Fee   7,200,500  19,288,000

 Other charges   6,960,248  39,398,669

 total fee and Commission income   37,104,694  82,582,062
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for the year ended 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs.

6 net other oPeratinG inCome   

 Profits on Disposal of Property & Equipment   3,889,599  4,964,344

 Dividend Income   112,800  94,000

 Refunds from the Government   82,505,591  -

 Profits from Real Estate Sales (Note 7)   47,336,016  148,001,175

 Write off Recoveries   61,072,274  47,067,898

 Others   860,024  5,504,578

 net other operating income   195,776,304  205,631,995

6.1 A refund amount of Rs. 82.5 Mn is receivable from the Department of Development Finance (DDF) following the MOU  
 signed between the Company and DDF on 27 November 2018 in relation to the write off of micro accommodations in  
 drought affected areas under the debt relief program announced by the government. The above refund amount is  
 receivable in six installments over 3 years and the first installment of Rs. 13 Mn was received in March 2019.  

7 Profits from real estate sales   

 Gross Income from Real Estate Sales   170,473,348  457,817,779

 Less: Cost incurred in Acquiring and developing Real Estates   (123,137,332)  (309,816,604)

    47,336,016  148,001,175

8 net imPairment CharGe /(reversal) of loans and other losses  

 Hire Purchase Receivables   (94,652)  (3,813,254)

 Lease Receivables   (1,870,974)  29,474,005 

 total impairment Charge /(reversal) for lease and hire Purchase (note 17.2)  (1,965,626)  25,660,751 

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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for the year ended 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs. 

 Welada Warama   40,261,122  56,752,828

 Micro Loans   378,782,994  85,227,036

 Easy Payment loans    (9,721,966)  852,217

 Mortgage Loans   (14,047,204)  11,588,626

 Personnel Loans   1,019,106  29,808,219

 Staff Loans    20,345,412  4,749,584

 Corporate Term Loans    11,962  (5,321,287)

 Ran Sihina Loans   17,490,452  (72,411)

 Gold Loans   40,665,620  -

 Business Loans   138,561,644  63,993,668

 Consumer Loans   (5,983,997)  16,955,133

 Kanrich Saviya   - 

 total impairment Charge /(reversal) for loans and advances (note 16.4)   607,385,145  264,533,613

 Impairment Charges/(Reversal) for Other Financial Assets and Non Financial Assets  45,880,134  (2,877,512)

    651,299,653  287,316,852

9 Personnel exPenses

 Salaries   458,084,204  494,457,270

 Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan  

  Employer’s Contribution to EPF   56,603,873  60,918,872

  Employer’s Contribution to ETF   14,141,590  15,174,957

 Gratuity Charge for the Year (Note 31.1)   20,774,332  24,778,195

 Other Allowances & Staff related Expenses   42,456,986  49,250,256

    592,060,985  644,579,550

10 other oPeratinG exPenses  

 Directors’ Emoluments   33,060,000  33,476,001

 Professional and Legal Expenses   19,281,525  11,813,574

 Office Administration and Establishment and Occupancy Expenses   286,720,374  278,840,700

 Advertising and Business Promotion Expenses   73,350,401  61,530,122

 Marketing and Distribution Expenses   552,275,575  528,706,492 

 Other Expenses   47,688,722  39,123,372

    1,012,376,597  953,490,261
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11 oPeratinG Profit/(loss) before inCome tax exPense  

 Operating Profit before Income tax expense is stated after charging all the expenses including the following:

for the year ended 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs.

 Professional Fees    19,281,525  11,813,573

 Auditors Remuneration - Statutory Audit   1,232,000  1,120,000

  - Other Non Audit Services   1,655,329  1,055,329

 Director’s Emoluments    33,060,000  33,476,001

 Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment (Note 24)   68,292,570  60,613,798

 Amortization of Intangible Assets (Note 23)   5,319,945  4,974,290

 Advertising & Related Expenses   12,280,954  15,480,957

 Business Promotion Expenses   61,069,447  46,049,165

 Deposit Insurance Premium   1,354,998  1,327,656

 Crop Insurance Levy   666,761  2,450,715

12 inCome tax exPense 

 Taxation has been computed according to the provisions of the Inland Revenue Act No.24 of 2017 and subsequent  
 amendments thereto. Taxation is provided at 28% of adjusted  Taxable Profit of the Company.

for the year ended 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs.

12.1 recognized in Profit or loss 

 Current Income Tax Expense (Note 12.2)   22,761,813   49,568,299 

 Prior Years Under /(Over) Provision   -     6,477,977 

 Deferred Tax Credit (Note 29.1)   (141,065,620)  (15,382,692)

    (118,303,807)  40,663,584 

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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for the year ended 31 march,   2019 
    total
    rs.

12.2 numerical reconciliation of accounting Profits to income tax (expense)/Credit 

 Accounting Profit/(Loss) before Tax    (278,664,333)

 Adjustments 

 Capital Portion of Lease Rentals Receivables    684,175,775

 Exempt Income    (4,002,398)

 Disallowable Expenses    807,379,976

 Allowable Expenses    (783,757,843)

 Taxable Business Profit    425,131,178

 Add: Tax Loss on Leasing Business (Note 12.3)    (343,838,981)

 Total Taxable Income    81,292,197

 Income Tax Rate   28%

 Current Income Tax Expense    22,761,813

   2018

  leasing business other business total

  rs.  rs.   rs. 

 Accounting Profit before Tax  27,283,471  20,071,500  24,854,974

 Adjustments 

 Capital Portion of Lease Rentals Receivables  305,589,487  -  305,589,487

 Exempt Income  -  (5,058,344)  (5,058,344)

 Disallowable Expenses  51,360,899  434,238,917  508,099,816

 Allowable Expenses  (459,218,848)  (272,222,434)  (731,441,282)

 Taxable Business Profit  (74,984,991)  177,029,639  102,044,651

 Add: Tax Loss on Leasing Business (12.3)    74,984,991

 Total Taxable Income    177,029,642

 Income Tax Rate   28%

 Current Income Tax Expense    49,568,300
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for the year ended 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs. 

 Effective Tax Rate  -8% 199%

for the year ended 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs.

12.3 tax losses - leasing business

 Tax Loss Brought Forward   330,820,902  236,562,621

 Adjustments   13,018,079  19,273,290

 Business Loss for the year   -     74,984,991

 Tax Loss utilized during the Year   (343,838,981)  -

 Tax Loss Carried Forward   -  330,820,902

13 earninGs Per share 

13.1 basic earnings/(loss) per share 

 The calculation of Basic Earnings Per Share was based on the profit/(Loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders by  
 dividing the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year as per the LKAS 33 - Earnings  
 per Share. Calculation is as follows:- 

for the year ended 31 march,  2019 2018
    (restated) 

 Profit/(Loss) attributable to Ordinary Shareholders of the Company (Rs.)   (160,360,526)  (15,808,610)

 Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares   77,700,778   77,700,778 

 Basic Earnings/(Loss) per Ordinary share (Rs.)  (2.06) (0.20)

13.2 diluted earnings per share 

 There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding at any time during the year. Therefore, Diluted Earnings Per  
 Share is same as Basic Earnings Per Share shown above. 

as at 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs.

14  Cash and Cash equivalents 

 Cash in Hand   105,012,656   306,485,880 

 Balances with Banks   63,139,469   5,778,163 

 Call Deposits   32,046,306   39,760,103 

    200,198,431   352,024,146 

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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as at 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs.

15  PlaCement With banks & other finanCial institutions

 Repurchase Agreements and Reverse Repurchase Agreements   691,604,806   679,532,369 

 Investment in Fixed Deposits with Banks (Note 15.1)   56,203,962   62,504,948 

 Investment in Fixed Deposits with Finance Companies   4,707,489   4,707,489 

 Provision for Impairments of Investment in Fixed Deposits   (4,707,489)  (4,707,489)

    747,808,768   742,037,317 

15.1  investment in fixed deposits 

 bank type of investment 2019 2018
    rs.   rs. 

 Seylan Bank PLC Fixed Deposit  33,153,760   30,714,247 

 NTB Bank PLC Fixed Deposit  97,505   95,435 

 Sampath Bank PLC Fixed Deposit  -     15,378 

 PABC PLC Fixed Deposit  -     31,679,888 

 NDB Bank PLC Fixed Deposit  22,952,697   -   

    56,203,962   62,504,948 

16. loans and reCeivables     

  stage 1 stage 2 stage 3 total

  Collective Collective Collective individual 

  rs. rs. rs. rs. rs.

 as at  31 march 2019     

 Gross Loans and Recevables (Note 16.1)  3,722,117,440 667,169,313  1,391,828,518 1,155,858,665  6,936,974,093

 Less : Allowances for Impairment   (168,393,146) (140,402,098) (545,202,101) (608,296,772)  (1,462,293,918) 
 Losses (Note 16.4 )

   3,553,724,294 526,767,214 846,626,417 547,561,893  5,474,680,175     

 as at  31 march 2018     

 Gross Loans and Recevables  (Note 16.2)  6,560,932,976  497,352,045 810,208,489  491,628,351     8,360,121,861

 Less : Allowances for Impairment  -  -  -  -  (589,475,356) 
 Losses (As per LKAS 39)

   6,560,932,976   497,352,045   810,208,489   491,628,351    7,770,646,505
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16.1 as at  31 march 2019 

  stage 1 stage 2 stage 3 total

  Collective Collective Collective individual

  rs. rs. rs. rs. rs.

 loans and receivables   

 Personal Loans against Fixed Deposits  44,668,041  -  -  -  44,668,041

 Personal Loans against Promissory Notes  255,687,496  -  -  -  255,687,496

 Corporate Term Loans  925,556  -  -  -  925,715

 Staff Loans  -  -  -  74,863,133  74,863,133

 Welada Warama  and Saviya Loans  55,825,993  4,858,847  51,417,601  75,378,782  187,481,224

 Micro Loans  2,271,483,477  137,060,854  547,207,287  275,861,701  3,231,613,318

 Ran Sihina Loans  34,840,944  7,470,295  5,914,691  529,353  48,755,282

 Mortgage Loans  214,763,162  162,817,039  81,717,830  283,963,743  743,261,773

 Business Loans  71,831,119  30,346,515  21,496,479  445,261,953  568,936,065

 Easy Payment Loans  125,218,440  81,435,762  58,153,363  -  264,807,565

 Consumer Loans  204,454,112  8,063,629  60,539,034  -  273,056,776

 Personal Loans  14,724,215  12,534,038  80,487,213  -  107,745,466

 Gold Loans  427,694,885  222,582,334  484,895,020  -  1,135,172,239

   3,722,117,440  667,169,313  1,391,828,518  1,155,858,665  6,936,974,093

16.2 as at  31 march 2018 

 loans and receivables

 Personal Loans against Fixed Deposits  42,130,174   -     -     -     42,130,174 

 Personal Loans against Promissory Notes  228,991,279   -     -     -     228,991,279 

 Corporate Term Loans  1,450,249   -     -     -     1,450,249 

 Staff Loans  -     -     -     90,117,330   90,117,330 

 Welada Warama and Saviya Loans  58,197,779   13,522,483   85,164,460   11,270,192   168,154,914 

 Micro Loans  4,835,575,567   112,072,787   120,068,329   116,693,173   5,184,409,856 

 Ran Sihina Loans  15,248,477   7,716,861   7,895,287   -     30,860,626 

 Mortgage Loans  514,667,327   114,669,484   148,930,564   31,684,041   809,951,416 

 Business Loans  214,591,028   62,621,745   80,587,774   214,026,076   571,826,623 

 Easy Payment Loans  90,391,339   69,260,923   49,000,531   -     208,652,793 

 Consumer Loans  358,513,423   14,419,518   56,090,326   -     429,023,267 

 Personal Loans  27,854,507   14,924,442   48,729,036   27,837,539   119,345,524 

 Gold Loans  173,321,827   88,143,802   213,742,182   -     475,207,810 

   6,560,932,976   497,352,045   810,208,489   491,628,351   8,360,121,861 

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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16.3 movement in loans and receivables stage-wise as at  31 march 2019 

  stage 1 stage 2 stage 3 total
  Collective Collective Collective individual
  rs. rs. rs. rs. rs. 

 loans and receivables   

 Personal Loans against Fixed Deposits  2,537,867  -     -     -     2,537,867
 Personal Loans against Promissory Notes  26,696,218  -     -     -     26,696,218
 Corporate Term Loans  (524,693)  -     -     -     (524,534)
 Staff Loans  -  -     -     (15,254,197)  (15,254,197)
 Welada Warama and Saviya Loans (2,371,786)  (8,663,636)  (33,746,859)  64,108,590  19,326,310
 Micro Loans (2,564,092,091)  24,988,067   427,138,958   159,168,528  (1,952,796,538)
 Ran Sihina Loans 19,592,467  (246,566)  (1,980,597)  529,353  17,894,656
 Mortgage Loans (299,904,165)  48,147,555   (67,212,734)  252,279,702  (66,689,642)
 Business Loans  (142,759,910)  (32,275,231)  (59,091,295)  231,235,877  (2,890,558)
 Easy Payment Loans  34,827,101  12,174,839  9,152,832  -  56,154,772
 Consumer Loans  (154,059,311)  (6,355,888)  4,448,709   -  (155,966,491)
 Personal Loans  (13,130,292)  (2,390,405)  31,758,177  (27,837,539)  (11,600,058)
 Gold Loans  254,373,058  134,438,533  271,152,838  -  659,964,429
  (2,838,815,537)  169,817,268  581,620,029  664,230,314  (1,423,147,766)

16.4 allowance for impairment losses

 allowance for impairment losses  227,421,304  95,918,925  287,411,178  244,157,566  854,908,973 
 as at 01 april 2018 
 Loans and Receivables   
 Personal Loans against Fixed Deposits  -  -  -  -  -
 Personal Loans against Promissory Notes  -  -  -  -  -
 Corporate Term Loans  11,962  -  -  -  11,962
 Staff Loans  -  -  -  20,345,412  20,345,412
 Welada Warama and Saviya Loans  570,132  (2,491,803)  (21,925,798)  64,108,590  40,261,122
 Micro Loans  (39,462,350)  1,098,265  257,978,551  159,168,527  378,782,993
 Ran Sihina Loans  3,570,592  7,554,770  5,835,738  529,353  17,490,452
 Mortgage Loans  (28,917,283)  23,009,991  (26,226,409)  18,086,497  (14,047,204)
 Business Loans  4,753,378  6,391,831  (151,344)  127,567,779  138,561,644
 Easy Payment Loans  (2,583,719)  (2,654,520)  (4,483,726)  -  (9,721,965)
 Consumer Loans  (8,239,863)  191,665  2,064,201   -  (5,983,997)
 Personal Loans  (1,004,106)  1,710,042  25,980,121  (25,666,952)  1,019,106 
 Gold Loans  12,273,099  9,672,932  18,719,589  -  40,665,620 

 total impairment Charge for the year  (59,028,158)  44,483,173   257,790,923  364,139,206  607,385,145 
 ended 31 march 2019  

 allowance for impairment losses  168,393,146  140,402,098   545,202,101  608,296,772  1,462,293,918 
 as at 31 march 2019
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17. lease rental and hire PurChase reCeivables 

  stage 1 stage 2 stage 3 total
  Collective Collective Collective individual
  rs. rs. rs. rs. rs. 

as at  31 march 2019
 Gross lease rental and hire   835,044,497  522,473,035  370,498,882  175,371,078  1,903,387,493 
 Purchase recevables
 less : allowances for impairment   (31,679,295)  (38,664,062)  (50,469,327)  (83,626,866)  (204,439,549) 
 losses (note 17.2 )

   803,365,202   483,808,973  320,029,555   91,744,212  1,698,947,944

as at  31 march 2018   
 Gross Lease Rental and Hire  617,923,913  421,133,305  400,114,656  120,404,152  1,559,576,025 
 Purchase Recevables
 Less : Allowances for Impairment  -  -  -  -  (77,306,849) 
 Losses  (As per LKAS 39)

   617,923,913   421,133,305  400,114,656  120,404,152  1,482,269,176

17.1 movement in lease rental and hire Purchase receivables stage-wise as at  31 march 2019  

 Lease Rental and Hire Purchase Recevables  217,120,583   101,339,731   (29 ,615,774)  54,966,926   343,811,468 

17.2 allowance for impairment losses

 Allowance for Impairment Losses as at  22,779,327   37,883,470   73,727,732   72,014,647   206,405,175 
 01 April 2018
 Impairment Charge during the Year ended  8,899,968   780,592   (23,258,405)  11,612,219   (1,965,626) 
 31 March 2019
 Allowance for Impairment Losses as at  31,679,295   38,664,062   50,469,327   83,626,866   204,439,549 
 31 March 2019

17.3 as at 31 march 2019  Within one year   1  - 5 years   over 5 years  total

  rs. rs. rs. rs.

 Gross rental receivables  218,425,954   2,440,047,629   18,612,702   2,677,086,285

 - Lease Rentals  312,760   -     -     312,760

 - Hire Purchase Rentals  218,738,714   2,440,047,629   18,612,702  2,677,399,045

 Less: Unearned Income  (31,086,880)  (735,235,613)  (7,689,059)  (774,011,552)

 net rental receivables  187,651,834   1,704,812,016   10,923,643 1,903,387,493

 Less : Allowance for Impairment Losses    (204,439,549)

 total net rental receivables    1,698,947,944

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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17.3 as at 31 march 2018  Within one year   1  - 5 years   over 5 years  total

  rs. rs. rs. rs.

 Gross Rental Receivables  218,425,954   2,440,047,629   18,612,702   2,677,086,285

 Gross Rental Receivables 66,518,197   2,003,595,419   42,599,292   2,112,712,908

 - Lease Rentals -     1,204,481   -     1,204,481

 - Hire Purchase Rentals 66,518,197   2,004,799,900   42,599,292   2,113,917,389

 Less: Unearned Income (5,012,227)  (526,190,697)  (23,138,440)  (554,341,364)

 net rental receivables 61,505,970   1,478,609,203   19,460,852   1,559,576,025

 Less : Allowance for Impairment Losses     (77,306,849)

 Total Net Rental Receivables     1,482,269,176

as at  31 march ,  2019 2018
   rs. rs. 

18  finanCial investments    

 financial investments-fvtoCi   

 Government of Sri Lanka Treasury Bills and Bonds  (Note 18.1)   33,028,744  -

 Unquoted Equities -  (Note 18.2)   4,700  -

 financial investments-afs   

 Government of Sri Lanka Treasury Bills and Bonds  (Note 18.1)   -  31,979,212

 Unquoted Equities -  (Note 18.2)   - 4,700

    33,033,444  31,983,912  

18.1  Government of sri lanka treasury bills and bonds   

 Balance as at 01 April   31,979,212  28,610,312

 Net Movement during the Year   891,807  478,061

 Gain /(Loss) on Marked to Market Valuation   157,725  2,890,839

 Balance as at 31 March   33,028,744  31,979,212

 Product Wise   

 Government of Sri Lanka Treasury Bonds (Note 18.1.1)   17,077,391  17,338,752

 Government of Sri Lanka Treasury Bills (Note 18.1.2)   15,951,353  14,640,460

    33,028,744  31,979,212
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18.1.1 Government of sri lanka treasury bonds
  face year of Cost of fair rate of
  value maturity investment value interest
   rs.   rs.  rs.

 Treasury Bond  1,650,000  2021  1,652,624   1,602,596 10.59%

 Treasury Bond  4,300,000  2021  4,298,978   4,174,078  10.59%

 Treasury Bond  4,069,812  2021  4,175,838   3,950,633  10.59%

 Treasury Bond  7,300,000  2022  5,880,338   7,350,084  10.93%

   17,319,812    16,007,778  17,077,391

18.1.2 Government of sri lanka treasury bills      

 Treasury Bills 5,540,222  2019  5,305,162   5,426,581  9.59%

 Treasury Bills 4,455,783  2019  4,248,660   4,338,368  9.68%

 Treasury Bills  4,879,651  2019  4,652,825   4,751,067  9.68%

 Treasury Bills 1,465,395  2019  1,435,255   1,435,337  9.59%

  16,341,051    15,641,902   15,951,353  

as at 31 march, 2019 2018 

  “no. of  Carrying “No. of  Carrying   
  shares” value Shares”    Value

18.2  unquoted equities  rs.  Rs.

 Credit Information Bureau 47   4,700   47   4,700 

    4,700    4,700 

as at 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs.

19  other finanCial assets 

 Refundable Deposits   26,889,219   28,292,000

 Other Receivables   379,972,230   349,769,292

 Provision for Impairment   (40,026,720)  (2,294,262)

    366,834,729   375,767,030

 

20  real estate stoCk

 Real Estate Stock  684,862,536   760,666,322

 Less : Allowance for Decrease in Net Realisable Value   (18,271,276)  (18,271,276)

    666,591,260   742,395,046

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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for the year ended 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs.
    (restated)

21  investment ProPerties

 Balance at 01 April    74,000,000   70,921,000

 Disposals made during the Year   (20,000,000)  -

 Transfers to Investment Properties during the year (Note 21.1)   110,000,000   -

 Fair value adjustments during the Year (Note 41.4)   -  3,079,000

 Balance at 31 March (Note 21.1)   164,000,000   7 4,000,000

21.1  valuation of investment Properties       

 The professional valuation of Investment properties (Lands and Buildings) have been determined based on valuations  
 performed by, independent Chartered Valuation Surveyors, R.S. Wijesuriya - I.V (Sri Lanka) on 31 March 2019. No change in  
 valuations were noted as at 31.03.2019

location land no of extent in balance as (disposal)/ balance as at 
  extent buildings sq. meters at 01 april transfer to 31 march 
  (Purch)   2018 iP 2019 
     (restated) 
     rs. rs. rs.

Werahara (Note 21.2)  150   -     -     30,000,000   -     30,000,000 

Kalpitiya  400   -     -     24,000,000   -     24,000,000 

Kotte - Apartment  -     1   111   20,000,000   (20,000,000)  -   

Digana  125.4   -     -     -     -     -   

Kotahena Property  22   1   485   -     110,000,000   110,000,000 

      74,000,000   90,000,000   164,000,000 

 Investment property in Digana has been fully provided for impairment amounting to Rs. 12,446,412/-                     

 Kotahena Property has been transferred in the name of the Company following the realization of mortgaged bond of  
 a defaulted business loan accomodation. As the intention of the company is to dispose this property in future, it has been  
 classified as a invetsment property. The property value is based on the deed of transfer (No 4747) dated 21.02.2019           
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21.2 restrictions on realisability of bare land located at Werahara

 The Company holds ownership of the property situated at Jayanthi Place, Werahara, Borelasgamuwa, on which an  
 acquisition order had been received, under the gazette notification, No 1830/51 dated 04 October 2013.

 The board of directors of the Company is confident of compensation based on their past experience. However board of  
 directors of the company is unable to determine at this stage whether, as a result of the acquisition order, any adjustment  
 would be necessary to the amounts reported in the financial statements as at 31 March 2019 in respect of the carrying  
 value of investment property and accordingly decided that cost represents fair value as at 31.03.2019. Accordingly the  
 financial statements as at 31.03.2019 have been restated as highligted in Note 41.4

21.3 valuation techniques used and fair value hierarchy.

 The Market value has been used in determining the fair value. The current condition of the properties and future usability  
 have been considered. Also valuer has made reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties,  
 with appropriate adjustments for size, usage an location. The Company carries investment properties classified as Level 3  
 within the fair value hierarchy.

21.4 income and expense

 Rental Income earned from Investment Property by the company amounted to Nill (2017/18-Rs Nill) and Direct Operating  
 Expenses  incurred in relation to the Investment Property amounted to Rs Nill (2017/18-Rs. Nill).      
   

as at 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs.

22 other non finanCial assets  

 Prepayments   7,336,977  21,009,963

 Prepaid cost -EP Loan   42,909,933  46,123,892

 Prepaid cost -Staff Loan   6,709,247  9,943,042

 Prepaid cost -Consumer Loan   -  36,030

 Prepaid cost -Mortgage Loan   41,860,548  25,262,468

 Tax Receivables    11,723,613  25,428,313

 Other Assets   64,957,929  7,777,164

 Provision for Impairment   (8,147,676)  -

    167,350,571 135,580,872

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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as at 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs.

23  intanGible assets
 Computer software Cost
 Balance as at 01 April    49,742,894  49,742,894 

 Additions and Improvements   3,456,555 -

 Balance as at 31 March    53,199,449  49,742,894

 amortization 

 Balance as at 01 April    27,263,051  22,288,761

 Charge  for the Year   5,319,945  4,974,290

 Balance as at 31 March    32,582,996  27,263,051

 Carrying amount as at 31 march   20,616,453  22,479,843

24. ProPerty, Plant and equiPment 

  balance   balance 
  as at  disposals/  as at 
  01.04.2018 additions transfers 31.03.2019
  rs. rs. rs. rs.

 Cost - freehold assets

 Lands  11,655,000   -     - 11,655,000 

 Office Building  12,345,000   -     -     12,345,000 

 Furniture & Fittings  78,084,106   6,536,098   -     84,620,204 

 Office Equipment  94,061,508   12,963,112   -     107,024,620 

 Motor Vehicles & Accessories  36,929,759   -     - 36,929,759 

 Computer Hardware  73,366,171   3,213,970   -     76,580,141 

 Leasehold Improvements (Fixtures and Fittings)  69,867,509   24,601,876   -     94,469,385 

  376,309,053     47,315,056   -       423,624,109 

 assets on finance leases   

 Motor Vehicles  45,090,561   -     (6,796,050)  38,294,511 

 total value of depreciable assets  421,399,614   47,315,056   (6,796,050)  461,918,620 
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  Balance  Charge  disposals balance
  As at   for the   as at
  01.04.2018  year   31.03.2019
  Rs. rs. rs. rs.

 accumulated depreciation
 freehold assets

 Office Building  1,131,625   617,251   -  1,748,876

 Furniture & Fittings  59,222,210   10,687,359   -  69,909,569

 Office Equipment  42,804,999   17,339,690   -  60,144,689

 Motor Vehicles & Accessories  18,827,541   3,812,500   -  22,640,040

 Computer Hardware  54,040,309   12,125,532   -  66,165,841

 Leasehold Improvements (Fixtures and Fittings)  22,545,459   18,427,879   -  40,973,338

   198,572,143   63,010,211   -  261,582,353

 assets on finance lease    

 Motor Vehicles  16,055,176   5,282,359   (3,185,648)  18,151,887

  214,627,319   68,292,570   (3,185,648)  279,734,240 

as at 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs

24.1 Carrying amounts

 Lands    11,655,000  11,655,000

 Office Building    10,596,124  11,213,375

 Furniture & Fittings    14,710,635  18,861,896

 Office Equipment    46,879,931  51,256,509

 Motor Vehicles & Accessories    14,289,719  18,102,219

 Computer Hardware    10,414,300  19,325,862

 Leasehold Improvements (Fixtures and Fittings)    53,496,047  47,322,050

 assets on finance lease 

 Motor  Vehicles    20,142,624  29,035,384

 total Carrying amount as at 31 march    182,184,380  206,772,295

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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24.2 Based on the assessment of potential impairment carried out internally by the Board of Directors as at 31 March 2019, no  
 provision was required to be made in the Financial statements. 

24.3 Property, Plant & Equipment included fully depreciated assets having a gross amount of Rs. 92,923,607 /- as at  
 31 March 2019 (2017/18 Rs. 78,973,746/-).

24.4 There were no capitalised borrowing costs related to the acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipment during the year  
 (2017/18 - nil ).

24.5 There were no restrictions on the title of the Property, Plant & Equipment as at 31 March 2019.

24.6 The items of Property,Plant and Equipment pledged as securities have been disclosed in Note 36.3 to these  
 financial statements.

24.7 There were no items of Property, Plant & Equipment’s retired from the active use as at 31 March 2019.

25  due to banks & finanCial institutions

as at  31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs.

 Bank Overdraft    190,449,087  408,513,986

 Securitised Borrowings and Other Bank Facilities (25.1 )    781,820,000  680,472,906

 Finance Leases (Note 25.2)    12,250,596  22,861,449

     984,519,683  1,111,848,341
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25  due to banks & finanCial institutions

25.1. securitised borrowings & term loanss

  as at loans interest  repayments as at 

  01.04.2018 obtained recognized Capital interest 31.03.2019 Period security
  rs. rs. rs. rs. rs. rs.  Pledged

Seylan 150,000,000 - 11,920,970   (150,000,000)  (11,920,970)  - 24 Months Lease Rental 

Bank PLC        Receivables of  

         Rs 375 Mn

Seylan  200,000,000   400,000,000   29,167,616   (400,000,000)  (29,167,616)  200,000,000  06 Months Lease  Rental  

Bank PLC        Receivables of 

         Rs. 250 Mn

Commercial 12,160,000   -     1,474,504   (3,840,000)  (1,474,504)  8,320,000  60 Months Kaduwela  

Bank PLC        Branch Property

Sampath 50,000,000   25,000,000   3,766,062   (50,000,000)  (3,766,062)  25,000,000  12 Months Pannala Land 

Bank PLC

First Capital -     725,000,000   -     (550,000,000)  -     175,000,000  12 Months Investments of  

Limited         Reversed Repo  

         of Rs.185 Mn

First Capital   -     300,000,000   2,923,759   (26,500,000)  (2,923,759)  273,500,000  12 Months Micro  

Limited        Receivables of  

         Rs 375 Mn

Pan Asia -     28,000,000   95,601   (28,000,000)  (95,601)  -     Fixed Deposits  

Bank PLC        of Rs. 28 Mn

First Capital 240,312,906   -     22,880,704   (240,312,906)  (22,880,704)  -     Lease  

Limited        Receivables of  

         of Rs. 312.5 Mn

Capital Alliance -     188,000,000   7,761,521   (88,000,000)  (7,761,521)  100,000,000  12 Months Micro  

Partners Limited         Receivables of  

         Rs 210 Mn

  652,472,906   1,666,000,000   79,990,737   (1,536,652,906)  (79,990,737)  781,820,000   

unsecured 
borrowings          

Mutual Holdings 28,000,000   25,000,000    (53,000,000)  -     -    6 Months 

Limited  

  680,472,906   1,691,000,000   79,990,737   (1,589,652,906)  (79,990,737)  781,820,000

notes to the Financial statements Contd.



189ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

25.2. finance leases

  As at    New Leases   Repayments   as at

  01.04.2018   Obtained    31.03.2019

   Rs.   Rs.   Rs.   rs.

 NDB Bank PLC 22,861,449   -  (10,610,853)  12,250,596

   22,861,449   -  (10,610,853)  12,250,596

as at  31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs.

 Gross Liability    13,437,772   26,271,937 

 Less: Finance Charges allocated for Future Periods    (1,187,176)  (3,410,488)

 Net Liability    12,250,596   22,861,449 

 repayable with in one year

 Gross Liability    8,364,497   9,853,974 

 Less: Finance Charges allocated for Future Periods    (2,333,485)  (2,333,485)

 Net Liability    6,031,012   7,520,489 

 repayable after one year before five years

 Gross Liability    5,073,275   16,417,962 

 Less: Finance Charges allocated for Future Periods    1,146,309   (1,077,002)

 Net Liability    6,219,584   15,340,960 

26  dePosits due to Customers

 Fixed Deposits    953,921,442   966,461,170 

 Accrued Interest on Fixed Deposits    32,173,386   37,893,637 

     986,094,828   1,004,354,807 

27  debt instruments issued and other borroWed funds

 Promissory Notes    5,522,932,426   6,661,494,963 

 Commercial Papers    348,143,184   313,301,325 

 Accrued Interest on Promissory Notes    86,999,328   120,491,539 

 Accrued Interest on Commercial Papers    10,328,654   8,455,895 

     5,968,403,592   7,103,743,722 

28  other finanCial liabilities

 Accrued Expenses    80,070,078   89,302,863 

     80,070,078   89,302,863 
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as at 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs.  rs.

29 net deferred tax asset /(liability)

29.1 summary of net deferred assets

 Balance as at 01 April    78,510,657  63,156,481

 recognized in the Profit or loss
 Amounts Originating during the Year    141,065,620  15,382,692

 Recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)

 Amounts Originating /(Reversing) during the Year    (5,192,358)  (28,516)

 Re-measurement of Imapirment provision in adopting SLFRS 09 as at 01.04.2018  110,468,888  -

 balance as at 31 march    324,852,807  78,510,657

29.2 movement in recognized deferred tax assets and liabilities

 for the year ended 31 march,  2019

  balance as at  Charged/ (Credited) in balance as at

  01-apr-18 Profit or loss oCi 31-mar-19

 Property, Plant and Equipment  (98,245,360)  171,059,596   -  72,814,236

 Investment Properties  -  (862,120)  -  (862,120)

 Retirement Benefit Obligation  20,491,524  4,030,344   (5,192,358)  19,329,510

 Tax Losses  92,629,852  (92,629,852)  -  -

 Carried Forward Impairment Provision  63,634,642  59,467,652   -  123,102,293

   78,510,658   141,065,620  (5,192,358)  214,383,919

 Re-measurement of Imapirment provision   110,468,888  - -  110,468,888  
 in adopting SLFRS 09 as at 01.04.2018

   188,979,546  141,065,620  (5,192,358)  324,852,807

 for the year ended 31 march,  2018

  balance as at  Charged/ (Credited) in balance as at

  01-apr-17 Profit or loss oCi 31-mar-18

 Property, Plant and Equipment (45,406,888)  (52,838,472)  -  (98,245,360)

 Retirement Benefit Obligation 14,413,325   6,106,715   (28,516)  20,491,524

 Tax Losses 66,237,576   26,392,276   -  92,629,852

 Carried Forward Impairment Provision 27,912,468   35,722,173   -  63,634,642

  63,156,481   15,382,692   (28,516)  78,510,658

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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29.3 reconciliation of deferred tax asset /(liability)

  2019  2018

  temporary tax effect temporary  tax effect 
  differences  differences
  rs. rs. rs. rs.

 deferred tax liabilities on :  

 Property, Plant and Equipment  (73,445,141)  (20,564,639)  (69,216,274)  (19,380,557)

 Investment Prroperties  (3,079,000)  (862,120)  -     -

 Lease Rental Receivables  -     -  (281,660,011)  (78,864,803)

   (76,524,141)  (21,426,759)  (350,876,285)  (98,245,360)

 deferred tax assets on :
 Retirement Benefit Obligation  69,033,963   19,329,510   73,184,014   20,491,524

 Tax Losses  -     -  330,820,902   92,629,852

 Lease Rental Receivables  333,495,985   93,378,876   -  -

 Carried Forward Impairment Provision  439,651,045   123,102,293   227,266,577   63,634,641
   842,180,993   235,810,678   631,271,493   176,756,017

 Re-measurement of Imapirment provision  394,531,743   110,468,888   -     - 
 in adopting SLFRS 09 as at 01.04.2018

  1,160,188,595   324,852,807   280,395,208   78,510,657

as at 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs.

30 other  liabilities

 Statutory Payables     49,182,859  88,676,455

 Other Payables    517,410,887  561,345,576

     566,593,746  650,022,031

31 emPloyee benefits

 Balance at the Beginning of the Year    73,184,015  51,476,163

 Expense Recognized in the Income Statement (Note 31.1)    20,774,332  24,778,195

 Actuarial (Gain) /Loss Recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (Note 31.2)   (18,544,134)  (101,843)

 Payments made during the Year    (6,380,250)  (2,968,500)

 Balance at the End of the Year    69,033,963  73,184,015

31.1 expense recognised in the income statement         

 Current Service Cost    13,455,925  18,601,048 

 Interest Cost    7,318,407  6,177,147 

     20,774,332  24,778,195 
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as at 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs.

31.2 acturial Gain/(loss)     

 Actuarial Gain/(Losses) due to change in Assumptions    1,886,056   (4,153,177)

 Actuarial Gain/(Losses) due to change in Experience    16,658,078   4,255,020 

 Total Actuarial Gain/(Losses)    18,544,134   101,843 

31.3 acturial assumptions     

 Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date.

 Discount Rate   11% 10%

 Salary scale   10% 10%

 Staff Turnover    27% 30%

 Mortality - GA 1983 mortality Table

 Retirement Age   55 Years 55 Years

31.4 An actuarial valuation of the gratuity liability was carried out as at 31 March 2019 by  Messrs. Smile Global  (Pvt) Limited, a  
 firm of professional actuaries, by using “Projected Unit Credit Method”, the method recommended by the Sri Lanka  
 Accounting Standards - LKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”.
 The liability is not externally funded.

31.5 sensitivity of assumptions used
 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in the key assumptions used with all  
 other variables held constant, valuing gratuity liability, in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019.

2019

   sensitivity effect on sensitivity effect on
     income statement employment benefit
 increase/ (decrease) in increase/ (decrease) in increase/ (reduction) obligation increase/ 
 discount rate salary increment in results for the year (decrease) in the liability

 1%   2,223,529   (2,223,529)
 -1%   (2,387,450)  2,387,450
  1%  (2,204,994)  2,204,994
  -1%  2,089,776   (2,089,776)

notes to the Financial statements Contd.



193ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

2018

   Sensitivity Effect on Sensitivity Effect on
     Income Statement Employment Benefit
 Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/ (Decrease) in Increase/ (Reduction) Obligation Increase/ 
 Discount Rate Salary Increment in results for the year (Decrease) in the Liability

 1%   2,077,027   (2,077,027)
 -1%   (2,220,798)  2,220,798
  1%  (2,470,220)  2,470,220
  -1%  2,351,570   (2,351,570)

as at 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs.

32 ComPensation reserve funds 

 Balance at the Beginning of the Year    31,272,475   537,393

 Transfers to /(from) during the Year    38,566,864   69,807,515

 Waive off of Loans of Deceased Loan holders during the Year    (34,829,247)  (39,072,433)

 Balance at the end of the Year    35,010,092   31,272,475

33 stated CaPital

as at  31 march  2019 2018 

  no of   no of 
  shares rs. shares rs.

33.1 ordinary shares 

 Balance as at 01 April  77,700,778   572,993,044   77,700,778   572,993,044 

 Issued during the Year  -     -     -     -   

 Balance as at 31 March  77,700,778   572,993,044   77,700,778   572,993,044 

33.2 non Cumalative non redeemable

 Balance as at 01 April  5,000,000   100,000,000   5,000,000   100,000,000 

 Issued during the Year  -     -     -     -   

 Balance as at 31 March  5,000,000   100,000,000   5,000,000   100,000,000 

 total  82,700,778   672,993,044   82,700,778   672,993,044 

33.3 rights of shareholders    
 The holders of ordinary shares confer their right to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to  
 one vote per share at the meeting. All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
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as at  31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs.

34 reserves

 Statutory Reserve Fund (Note 34.1)    49,656,983   49,656,983

 General Reserve (Note 34.2)    280,000   280,000

 FVOCI Reserve (Note 34.3)    727,002   569,277

     50,663,985   50,506,260

34.1 statutory reserve fund 
 Statutory Reserve Fund is a capital reserve which contains profits transferred as required by Section 3(b)(ii) of Central  
 Bank Direction No. 1 of 2003.

34.2 General reserve
 General reserve comprises the amounts appropriated by the Board of Directors as a General Reserve.

34.3 fvtoCi reserve
 The FVOCI Reserve comprises the cumulative net change in fair value of financial investments, until the assets are  
 derecognised or impaired.

35 finanCial instruments
35.1 accounting Classification of financial instruments
35.1.1 accounting Classification of financial assets

  financial assets at financial assets at fair 
  amotized Cost value through other total Carrying value 
   Comprehensive income (fvoCi)

as at 31 march, 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
   rs.   Rs.   rs.   rs.   rs.   Rs. 

 assets as per statement of 
 financial Position  

 Cash and Cash Equivalents  200,198,431   352,024,146   -     -     200,198,431   352,024,146 

 Placement with Banks & Other  747,808,768   742,037,317   -     -     747,808,768   742,037,317  
 Financial Institutions

 Loans and Receivables  5,474,680,175   7,770,646,505   -     -     5,474,680,175   7,770,646,505 

 Leases Rental Receivables and  1,698,947,944   1,482,269,176   -     -     1,698,947,944   1,482,269,176 
 Hire Purchase Receivables

 Financial Investments   -     -     33,033,444   31,983,912   33,033,444   31,983,912 

 Other Financial Assets  366,834,729   375,767,030   -     -     366,834,729   375,767,030 

 total  8,488,470,047   10,722,744,174   33,033,444   31,983,912   8,521,503,491   10,754,728,086 

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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35.1.2 accounting Classification of financial liabilities 

  financial liabilities financial assets at fair 
  at amortised Cost value through other total Carrying value 
   Comprehensive income 

as at 31 march, 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
   rs.   Rs.   rs.   Rs.   rs.   Rs. 

 financial liabilities     

 Due to Banks and Other  984,519,683   1,111,848,341   -      984,519,683   1,111,848,341 
 Financial Institutions 

 Due to Customers  986,094,828   1,004,354,807   -      986,094,828   1,004,354,807 

 Debt Instruments Issued  5,968,403,592   7,103,743,722   -      5,968,403,592   7,103,743,722 
 and Other Borrowed Funds 

 Other Financial Liabilities  80,070,078   89,302,863   -      80,070,078   89,302,863 

 total  8,019,088,181   9,309,249,733   -     -     8,019,088,181   9,309,249,733 

35.2 fair value of financial instruments
 The following is a description of how fair values are determined for financial instruments that are recorded at fair value  
 using valuation techniques. These incorporate the participant would make when valuing the instruments. Company’s  
 estimate of assumptions that a market participant would make when valuing the instruments.

35.2.1 determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy 

 The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation  
 techniques.

 level 1 :   quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

 level 2:  other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, 
either directly or indirectly

 level 3:  techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on 
observable market data

  The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value 
hierarchy.
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as at 31 march 2019 level 1 level 2 level 3 total

  rs. rs. rs. rs.

Financial Investments - FVTOCI -     33,028,744   4,700   33,033,444 

   -     33,028,744   4,700   33,033,444 

as at 31 march 2018

Financial Investments - AFS -     31,979,212   4,700   31,983,912 

   -     31,979,212   4,700   31,983,912 

35.2.2 estimated fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than fair value   
 Set out below is the comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts of fair values of the company’s financial instruments that  
 are not carried at fair value in the financial statements. This table does not include the fair values of non- financial assets and  
 non- financial liabilities.

   2019 2018

  Carrying  Carrying 
  amount fair value amount fair value

  rs.  rs.  rs.  rs.

 financial assets
 Cash and Bank Balances  200,198,431   200,198,431   352,024,146   352,024,146

 Placement with Banks &   747,808,768   747,808,768   742,037,317   742,037,317 
 Financial Institutions

 Loans and Advances  5,474,680,175   5,474,680,175   7,770,646,505   7,770,646,505

 Lease and Hire Purchase Receivables  1,698,947,944   1,698,947,944   1,482,269,176   1,482,269,176

 Financial Investments - FVTOCI  33,033,444   33,033,444   -     -

 Financial Investments - AFS  -     -     31,983,912   31,983,912

 Other financial Assets  366,834,729   366,834,729   375,767,030   375,767,030

 total financial assets  8,521,503,491   8,521,503,491   10,754,728,086   10,754,728,086

 financial liabilities  
 Due to Fiancial Institutions  984,519,683   984,519,683   1,111,848,341   1,111,848,341

 Due to Customers  986,094,828   986,094,828   1,004,354,807   1,004,354,807

 Debt Instruments Issued and Other   5,968,403,592   5,968,403,592   7,103,743,722   7,103,743,722 
 Borrowed Funds

 Other Financial Liabilities  80,070,078   80,070,078   89,302,863   89,302,863

 total financial liabilities  8,019,088,181   8,019,088,181   9,309,249,733   9,309,249,733

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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fair value of financial assets and liabilities not Carried at fair value
 The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine the fair values for those financial  
 instruments which are not already recorded at fair value in the Financial Statements.

assets for which fair value approximates Carrying value
 For financial assets and financial liabilities that have a short term maturity (original maturities less than a year), it is assumed  
 that the carrying amounts approximate their fair values. This assumption is also applied to fixed deposits, certificate of  
 deposits and savings deposits without a specific maturity.

 Long term deposits accepted from customers for which periodical interest is paid and loans and advances granted to  
 customers with a variable rate are also considered to be carried at fair value in the books.

fixed rate financial instruments 
 The fair value of fixed rate financial assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost are estimated by comparing the  
 contractual interest rates with current market rates prevailing for similar financial instruments. The estimated fair value of  
 fixed interest bearing deposits is based on discounted cash flows using prevailing market interest rates for deposits of  
 similar maturity as at the reporting date.
 
 The above table summarises the carrying amounts and the Company’s estimate of fair values of those financial assets and  
 liabilities not presented in the Statement of Financial Position at fair value. The fair values in the table above may be different  
 from the actual amounts that will be received / paid on the settlement or maturity of the financial instrument.

36 ContinGent liabilities and Commitments
36.1  Contingencies
 There were no material contingent liabilities outstanding as at the reporting date.

36.2  future monthly Commitments on operating leases
 The company leases number of office buildings under operating leases. The leases typically run for a period of 5 years with  
 an option to renew the lease after that date.

   2019 2018
   rs. rs.

 Less than One Year    107,695,900   85,581,106 

 Between One and Five Years    256,690,246   238,609,142 

 More than Five Years    77,144,760   77,144,760 
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36.3 assets Pledged 

 funding institute nature of assets nature of liability value of assets included under 
    Pledged (rs.)

 Seylan Bank PLC Leases Rental Receivables Securatized 375 Mn Lease Rental  
   Borrowings  Receivables

 Seylan Bank PLC Leases Rental Receivables Revolving Facility 250 Mn Lease Rental  
     Receivables

 Sampath Bank PLC Pannala Land Securatized 38 Mn Real Estate Stock 
   Borrowings

 Commercial Bank PLC Treasury Bills Bank Overdraft 7 Mn Placement with 
     Banks and Financial  
     Institutions

 Commercial Bank PLC Kaduwela Branch Property Mortgage Loan 24 Mn Property, Plant &  
     Equipment

 Capital Alliance Partners Ltd. Micro Receivables Securatized 210 Mn Micro Lease  
   Borrowings  Receivables

 First Capital Limited Micro Lease Receivables Securatized 312.5 Mn Lease Rental  
   Borrowings  Receivables

 First Capital Limited REPO Securatized 185 Mn Placement with  
   Borrowings  Banks and Financial  
     Institutions

36.4 litigations against the Company
 Litigation is a common occurrence in the industry due to the nature of the business undertaken.

 The Company has formal controls and policies in place for managing legal claims. Once professional advice has been  
 obtained and the amount of loss is reasonably estimated, the Company makes adjustments to account for any adverse  
 effects which the claims may have on its financial standing.The Company confirms that there is no case filed against the  
 Company which is not disclosed which would have a material Impact on the financial position of the Company’

36.5 Capital Commitments
 The Company does not have any capital commitment as at 31 March 2019.

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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37 related Party transaCtions
 The Company carries out transactions in the ordinary course of its business with parties who are defined as related parties  
 in the Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 24  “Related Party Disclosures”, the details of which are reported below. The  
 pricing applicable to such transactions is based on the assessment of risk and pricing model of the Company and is  
 comparable with what is applied to transactions between the Company and its unrelated Customers.

37.1  Parent & ultimate Controlling Party
  In the opinion of Directors, the Company’s immediate and ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is Mutual  
 Holdings Limited.

37.2 transactions with related Parties

name of the Company interest nature of transaction  balance as at 
   transaction value 31/03/2019  
    rs. rs.

Mutual Insurance  
Brokers (Pvt) Limited Fellow Subsidiary Rent Income 192,500 -

   Reimbusements of utlity Bills 170,368 -

First Capital Limited Significant Investor Loans Obtained 725,000,000 175,000,000

  Loan Repayments  550,000,000 -

  Investments in Repos  532,330,436 532,330,436

Mutual Holdings Limited Parent Company Loans Obtained 25,000,000 -

  Loans re-payments  53,000,000 -

37 related Party transaCtions (Cont…)
37.2 transactions with key management Personnel (kmPs) and the Close family members (Cfm)
 According to Sri Lanka Accounting Standard - LKAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”, Key management personnel, are those  
 having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity. Accordingly, the Board of  
 Directors (including executive and non-executive Directors) and the General Managers and Deputy General Managers have  
 been classified as Key Management Personnel of the Company during the year under review. However only the members of  
 the board had been classified as key management personel during the previous year.

 CFM of a KMP are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that individual in their  
 dealings with the entity. They may include;
       (a) the individual’s domestic partner and children;

  (b) children of the individual’s domestic partner; and

       (c) dependents of the individual or the individual’s domestic partner

 There were no transactions with CFMs during the year.
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37.2.1 Compensation to key management Personnel
 There were no compensation paid to Key Management Personnel During the yearother than those discussed below,

for the year ended 31 march,  2019 2018
   rs. rs.

 Short Term Employment Benefits   65,110,378   33,476,001 

37.2.2 loans Given to key management Personnel

   limit  outstanding
   rs. balance as at
    31.03.2019

 Loans Granted to KMP   7,822,679   5,454,736 

38  events after the rePortinG date
 Subsequent to the reporting date, no circumstances have arisen which would require adjustment to or disclosure in the  
 financial statements.

39  ComParative fiGures
 To facilitate comparison, relevant balances pertaining to the previous year have been re-classified to conform to current  
 year’s classification and presentation.

40 direCtor’s resPonsibility for the finanCial statements
 Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance  
 with  Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal  
 control  relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,  
 whether  due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates  
 that are reasonable in the circumstances.

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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41 restatements,reClassifiCations and remeasurements
41.1 a reconciliation between the carrying amounts under lkas 39 to the balances reported under slfrs 9 as of 1 april  
 2018 is as follows.

  note lkas 39 measurement lkas 39 measurement
     re- re- 
   Category amount classification measurement amount Category

 Lease Rental and  Hire  a Loan and   1,482,269,176  -  (85,637,925)  1,396,631,251   Amortised Cost 
 Purchase Receivables    Receivables

 Loans and Receivables  a Loan and   7,770,646,505 -   (308,893,818) 7,461,752,687   Amortised Cost  
   Receivables

  Financial Investments    b  AFS  28,615,012 (28,615,012)  -  28,615,012   FVTOCI 

    9,281,530,693  (28,615,012)  (394,531,743)  7,490,367,700 

note a 
 The Lease rental and Hire Purchase Receivables and Loans and Receivables are reported net of amortized cost and  
 allowances for  imapirment losses and re-measurement of the allowance for impairment losses has been carried out in  
 line with SLFRS 09; applying expected credit loss model as at 01 April 2018. As a consequnce, the allowance for  
 impairment  has increased by Rs. 394.5 Mn over and above the previous measurement of allowance for impairment as per  
 LKAS 39. The  adjsutments with regard to re-measurement have been made to retained earnings as at 01.04.2018.
note b 

 The investments in treasury bills and bonds and investments in unquoted shares had been classified under availlable for  
 sales financial assets under LKAS 39, has been reclassified as financial assets at Fair value through other comprehensive  
 income (FVTOCL) following the application of contractual cashflow characteristic test (SPPI Test) and Business Model Test. 

41.2 a reconciliation of the Comprehensive income under lkas 18 and  under slfrs 15 as of 1 april 2018 is as follows

   lkas 18   lkas 15 
   measurement   measurement
  note   amount  re- classification   re- measurement amount 

Profits from Real Estate Sales C 148,001,175  - (138,702,012)  9,299,163 

note C 
 The revenue recognition under SLFRS 15 requires to identify the nature of the contract with customer and performance  
 obligation mentioned in the contract. Accordingly the performance obligation of a sale of real estate contract of the  
 company with a buyer is to sell a land block for a consideration and such a performance obligation is satified at the  
 point the risk and rewards of the tile of the land block is tranferred to the customer upon the 100% payments by the  
 buyer. Accordingly the company has re-measured  profits on sale of land blocks for the year ended 31.03.2018 on the  
 basis that, 100% payments made by the buyers where as profits on sale of real estates had previously been recognized  
 upon 25% payments by buyers. As a consequnce the profits on sale of real estates has declined by Rs. 138 Mn under new  
 basis of revenue recognition in line with SLFRS 15 and the adjustments have been made to retained earnings as at 01.04.2018
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41.3 the impact of transition to slfrs 09 and 15 on retained earnings is as follows

 balance as at 31.03.2018 before adopting slfrs 09 and 15    1,056,978,124

 re-measurement adjustment on adoption of slfrs 09

 Impact on Expected Credit Loss under SLFRS 09     (394,531,743)

 Deffered tax assets on above impact     110,468,888

 re-measurement adjustment on adoption of slfrs 15

 Impact on recognition of profits on real estate sales    (138,702,012)

 Total impact on retained earnings due to adoption of SLFRS 09 and 15    (422,764,867)

 balance as at 01.04.2018 after adopting slfrs 09 and 15    634,213,256

41.4 re-statement of fair value of the investment properties recognized during the year ended 31 march 2018

  note   as reported re- Classification  re- statements   re-stated 
   Previously    amount

 Fair Value Gain from  d  25,579,000  - (22,500,000) 3,079,000 
 Investment Properties

note d 
 The Company has restated the fair value  gain of Rs. 22.5 Mn recognized during the year ended 31.03.2018 with regard to  
 Werahara property following an acqusition order received under a gazette noticification to acquire the land for a  
 government project. However the company is not in a position to acertain the consequences of the above acquition  
 order or determine any adjustments necessary in the books of accounts though the management is confident of receipt  
 of compensation par with the prevailing market value of the property as determined by the government authorities.

42  risk manaGement
42.1  introduction
 Risk is inherent in a financial business and such risks are managed through a process of ongoing identification, 

measurement and monitoring. This process of risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability and 
each individual within the Company is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities.

 The Company is primarily exposed to credit risk, interest rate risk, operational risk and liquidity risk the management of 
which is explained below. 

42.1.1 risk management structure

 The Board of Directors is responsible for establishing the overall risk management framework within the Company. 

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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Integrated Risk Management Committee (IRMC), which is a sub-committee of the board has been established with 
delegated risk management responsibilities. The IRMC plays a vital role in establishing best practices in relation to risk 
policies and practices within the Company.

 The activities of the Company’s risk management system take place at three broad levels of hierarchy, as follows:

-first line 
 Overall financial risks are monitored at the IRMC level, and the decisions made by the IRMC are communicated to the 

Board of Directors. The Board approves the risk policies and directions issued to the management by the IRMC. 

 -second line
 Development and implementation of underlying procedures, processes and controls are carried out at the Management 

Level. Assuring the compliance with laid down policies, procedures and controls and reviewing the outcomes of 
operations, and measuring and analyzing risk related information is also performed at this level.

 -third line
 The individuals accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities are required to comply with 

approved policies, procedures and controls. 

42.1.2 risk measurement and reporting system 

 A risk management process has been developed and is continuously reviewed by the IRMC together with the operational 
management. Further the Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO) also reviews interest rate and liquidity risks.

 “The KFL has set risk tollerance limits based on its risk appetite and risk indicators are continiously monitored by the 
respective departments. Further risk and compliance officer independently monitors compliance related issues and 
deviations are reported to IRMC. 

 The decisions and directives of the IRMC with regard to risk related issues are communicated to the operational 
management for implementation and rectification. Accordingly the relavant risk owner is accountable for mitigate risks.

42.2  Credit risk

 Credit risk is the potential loss incurred in the event that a borrower fails to fulfill agreed obligations. The Company’s 
credit risk arises mainly from various accommodations granted and could be identified as the most significant risk faced 
by the Company. 

 impairment assesment

 The company uses a collective and individual model for the recognition of losses on impaired financial assets for 
accounting purpose.

 individual impairment

 The company makes provision for impairment taking significant loan accomodations individually if objective evidence of 
loss events exists
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 Collective impairment

 The provision for collective impairment is determined based on the expected credit loss model (ECL) as per SLFRS 09 
and whereby Default (PD), Loss Given Default (LGD), Exposure at Default (EAD) and Economic Factor Adjustment (EFA) 
are considered for each borrower to capture Portfolio factors relates to bad signals with regard to recovery pattern of 
borrowers and External factors relates such as possible economic, political or geographical factors that affect recovery 
pattern of borrowers.

 mitigation: 

 Credit is required to be granted according to the approved policies and procedures of the Company.  Special attention 
is given to credit risk management in terms of analyzing customer credit worthiness through lengthly credit evaluation 
process before  credit facilities are offered. Repayment of accommodations granted is closely monitored by those 
responsible for granting various facilities as well as those directly responsible for recovery activities. Indicators have been 
developed to measure risks associated with credit which are reviewed on a continuous basis for the entire organization as 
well as for each product and operational location.

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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42  risk manaGement (Contd...)

42.2.2 Credit Concentration risk
 exposure based on Product Class

 Class of loan 2019 Composition 2018 Composition
  rs.  Rs.

 Lease Retal and Hire Purchase   1,903,387,493  21.53%  1,559,576,025  15.72% 
 Receivables 
 Personal Loans against Fixed Deposits  44,668,041  0.51%  42,130,174  0.42%
 Personal Loans against Promissory Notes  255,687,496  2.89%  228,991,279  2.31%
 Corporate Term Loans  925,715  0.01%  1,450,249  0.01%
 Staff Loans  74,863,133  0.85%  90,117,330  0.91%
 Welada Warama  and Saviya Loans  187,481,224  2.12%  168,154,914  1.70%
 Micro Loans  3,231,613,318  36.56%  5,184,409,856  52.26%
 Ran Sihina Loans  48,755,282  0.55%  30,860,626  0.31%
 Mortgage Loans  743,261,773  8.41%  809,951,416  8.17%
 Business Loans  568,936,065  6.44%  571,826,623  5.76%
 Easy Payment Loans  264,807,565  3.00%  208,652,793  2.10%
 Consumer Loans  273,056,776  3.09%  429,023,267  4.32%
 Personal Loans  107,745,466  1.22%  119,345,524  1.20%
 Gold Loans  1,135,172,239  12.84%  475,207,810  4.79%
 total  8,840,361,586  100.00%  9,919,697,886  100.00%

 exposure based on the sector

 sector   2019 
    rs. 000 %

 Agreculture, Forestry and Fishing    1,169,557  13.23%
 Construction and Infrastruture Development    993,128  11.23%
 Consumption    3,577,038  40.46%
 Education    39,716  0.45%
 Financial Services    7,015  0.08%
 Health care ,social and Support services    47,915  0.54%
 Information technology and Communication    52,576  0.59%
 Manufacturing    1,186,762  13.42%
 Professional, Scientific and Professional Activities    4,199  0.05%
 Tourisum    83,270  0.94%
 Transpotation and Storage    447,821  5.07%
 Wholesale and Retail Trading    1,231,365  13.93%
 total    8,840,362  100.00%

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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42 risk manaGement (Cont...)
42.4 market risk

 Market risk is the risk arising from fluctuations in market varaibles such as interest rates, foreign currencies, equity 
prices and gold prices. This is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to 
changes in the market variables. As the Company’s operations involve granting accommodations, accepting deposits and 
obtaining funding facilities, the movements in interest rates constitute the most important market risk for the Company

 mitigation: 

 Movements in interest rates are closely monitored. Further the Company maintains an adequate Net Interest Margin 
(NIM) so that increases in interest expenses can be absorbed. The assets and liabilities maturity mismatch is also closely 
monitored so that the possible adverse effects arising due to interest rate movements could be minimized. Although the 
mismatch in assets and liabilities in terms of maturity is widely prevalent in the industry, in view of the composition of the 
portfolio of the Company, this mismatch has been mitigated to a significant extent.

42.4.1 interest rate risk

 Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of 
financial instruments. 

 42.4.1.1 interest rate sensitivity

 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables 
held constant, of the company’s Income Statement & Equity, arising from interest bearing loans.

  increase/(decrease) in basis points  sensitivity of sensitivity 
   Profit/(loss) of equity

    2019 2018

  -1%   71,522,895   71,522,895 

  1%   (71,522,895)  (71,522,895)

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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42 risk manaGement (Cont...)

42.5 operational risk

 Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the Company’s 
processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks 
such as those arising  from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of corporate behavior. 
Operational risks arise from all of the Company’s operations. The Company’s objective is to manage operational risk so 
as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage to the Company’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness 
and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative and creativity. The primary responsibility for the development and 
implementation of controls is to address operational risk assigned to  senior management within each business line. This 
responsibility is supported by the development of overall Company standards for the management of operational risk in 
the following areas:

  Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorisation of transactions.

  Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions.

  Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements.

  Documentation of controls and procedures.

  Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and  
 procedures  to address the risks identified.

  Requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial actions.

  Development of contingency plans.

  Training and professional development.

  Risk mitigation, including insurance where it is effective.

 Compliance with Company standards is supported by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken by Internal Audit. 
The results of Internal Audit reviews are discussed with the management of the business line to which they relate, with 
summaries submitted to the Audit Committee and senior management of the Company.

43 CaPital manaGement

  The Company maintains capital in order to cover risks inherent in the business and maintain the statutory capital 
adequacy requirements. The adequacy of the Company’s capital is monitored based on the measures, rules and ratios 
adopted by Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

 The primary objective of Company’s capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with Statutory 
requirements and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximize shareholders’ value.

 The Regulatory Capital requirements for the Finance Companies are set by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka.

 The details of the computation of risk weighted assets, capital and the ratios of the Company are given below:

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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Capital adequacy

 total risk Weighted assets 2019 
 as at 31 march rs.(000)

 Risk Weighted Amount for Credit Risk 9,049,483 

 Risk Weighted Amount for Operational Risk  3,468,376 

 Total Risk Weighted Amount  12,517,859 

total Capital base 
as at 31 march, 2019

 Stated Capital 672,993 

 Statutory Reserve Fund  49,657 

 General Reserve  280 

 Retained Earnings  487,205 

 Core Capital (minimum requirement rs.1.5 bn with effect from 01.01.2019)   1,210,135 

 less : adjustments to Core Capital

 Intangible Assets  (20,616)

 Defferred Tax Assets  (324,853)

 tier i Capital (after adjustments)  864,666 

 Instruments qualified as Tier 2 capital  -

 Revaluation gains  -

  tier 2 Capital (after adjustments)  864,666 

 Capital base  864,666 

 Computation of Capital adequacy ratios

 Core Capital ratio (minimum requirement 6%) 

 Core Capital  x  100 6.91%

 Risk Weighted Assets

 Total Risk Weighted Capital Ratio (Minimum Requirement 10%) 

 Capital base  x  100 6.91%

 Risk Weighted Assets
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44 reGulatory ComPlianCe

 The Company has not complied with the following Directions issued by the Central Bank of Sri Lanka:

  Capital Adequacy requirements Direction No 03 of 2018 issued in 6 June 2018

  Minimum Core Capital Direction No 02 of 2017 issued on 23 February 2017 

  Finance Companies (Liquid Assets) Directions No 4 of 2013

 The Company has also incurred losses for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018 amounting  
Rs. 160,360,526/- and 15,808,610/- respectively. The underlying reason for the deterioration of the Core capital was 
mainly due to the adjustments to equity arising from the implementation of SLFRS 09 and SLFRS 15, which amounted 
to Rs 422,764,867/-. In this regard, the Company has communicated to the CBSL intentions of the directors who are 
considering a capital infusion of Rs. 1 Bn.

 Further the Central Bank of Sri Lanka has imposed the following regulatory caps on deposits and borrowings and the 
company has complied with both of those caps imposed.

 Cap on Deposits Rs. 1 Bn

 Cap on Borrowings Rs. 8 Bn

 Having given the above facts and as the Company has a positive net asset position of Rs. 1,210,861,536/-, the directors 
are confident that the entity can continue as a going concern.

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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financial Performance  Change 2018/2019 2017/2018 2016/2017 2015/2016 2014/2015 2013/2014

Profit/ Loss Before Tax -300%  (221,042,872)  110,677,685   622,375,599   1,259,364,150   696,741,115   40,859,451 

Profit/ Loss After Tax 914%  (160,360,526)  (15,808,610)  311,431,999   648,063,335   361,473,097   14,571,315 

Net Interest Income 0%  2,014,479,446   2,014,479,446   2,404,611,391   3,192,885,446   1,704,354,954   609,128,790 

Other Operating Income -26%  232,880,998   313,793,056   121,140,432   140,008,803   292,678,884   1,915,032 

Total Income  -9%  3,109,627,413   3,420,633,143   3,532,463,427   4,396,400,738   2,872,211,513   1,441,162,747 

Operating Expences 1%  1,678,050,097   1,663,657,900   1,605,617,152   1,565,755,473   1,095,114,899   650,174,629 

Interest Income -8%  2,876,746,415   3,132,419,087   3,411,322,995   4,252,396,976   2,533,083,327   1,296,154,234 

Interest Expences -10%  1,001,320,535   1,117,939,621   1,006,711,604   1,059,511,330   828,728,373   687,025,444 

Staff Cost -8%  592,060,985   644,579,550   670,897,877   600,443,430   412,365,234   260,347,547 

General Admin Expenses 3%  286,720,374   278,840,700   224,631,110   194,073,434   221,724,627   148,486,973 

Fee & commision Income -55%  37,104,694   82,582,061   45,488,897   117,157,349   331,082,833   143,093,481 

Impairment Charges and write off 23%  651,299,653   531,436,941   297,759,072   507,774,826   205,177,824   61,935,016 

       

financial Position       

Total Portfolio -22.47%  7,173,628,119   9,252,915,682   9,238,904,064   9,705,593,380   9,468,637,929   3,808,757,615 

Loans & Advances -29.55%  5,474,680,175   7,770,646,505   7,562,970,762   8,036,898,305   9,387,911,815   3,753,116,000 

Lease & Hire Purchase  14.62%  1,698,947,944   1,482,269,177   1,675,933,302   1,668,695,075   80,726,114   55,641,615 
Receivables  

Total Borrowings -13.89%  7,939,018,103   9,219,946,872   9,069,013,984   9,552,932,013   10,284,516,721   4,665,773,796 

Public Borrowings -14.23%  6,954,498,420   8,108,098,531   8,124,440,001   9,146,069,255   8,878,829,926   4,410,445,977 

Total Assets -16.53%  10,047,098,962   12,036,966,798   11,533,897,377   12,055,665,913   11,533,011,812   5,061,667,068 

Total Liabilities -13.66%  8,836,237,426   10,233,989,374   9,740,575,506   10,506,085,421   10,613,208,354   4,705,514,014 

Share Holders’ funds -32.84%  1,210,861,536   1,802,977,424   1,793,321,877   1,549,580,492   919,803,458   356,153,054 

Stated Capital 0.00%  672,993,044   672,993,044   672,993,044   672,993,044   672,993,044   472,993,044 

Property Plant & Equipment -11.89%  182,184,380   206,772,295   212,398,507   168,554,458   87,155,490   69,551,790 

Five yeaR suMMaRy
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attendances oF BoaRd Meetings

attendance of board meetings - date: 01.04.2018 - 31.03.2019

name of the director attendance at board meetings

 
 
 

Dr. W. M. Hemachandra 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 

K. M. S. B. Rekogama 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 
D. S. I. Weerasinghe 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 
K. K. Ranawaka 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 
Mr. T. L. B. Hurulle 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 
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attendance of audit Committee meetings - date: 01.04.2018 - 31.03.2019

name of the director attendance at audit Committee meetings

 
 
 

Dr. W. M. Hemachandra            
Mr. T. L. B. Hurulle            
K. K. Ranawaka            
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attendance of board integrated risk managment Committee meetings - date: 01.04.2018 - 31.03.2019

name of the director

 
 
 

Dr. W. M. Hemachandra Former Chairman	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 
T.L.B. Hurulle Chairman	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 
Shiran Weerasinghe Member	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 
Eranda Godage Member	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 
Sadeepa Ratnayake Member 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 
Ravi Joseph Member 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 
Thushara Wijewardene Member 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 
Harshadeva Abeyjeewa Member 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 
J.V.H. Karunarathna Member 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 
Ajith Perera Member	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 
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list of shareholders as at date 31 march 2019  

sHaRe HoldeRs analysis

serial name of the shareholders    no of shares   holding %  
no

1 Mutual Holdings Limited    49,081,099  63.17%
2 First Capital Limited    8,270,077  10.64%
3 Alfred Joe ConstantineSenathipathy    4,800,000  6.18%
4 Tamari  DammikaSellahewa    2,000,001  2.57%
5 Jayantha Bodhipala Edirisinghe    1,950,990  2.51%
6 Dhammika Migara Siriwardhana     1,437,501  1.85%
7 Don Shiran Iranga Weerasinghe     1,437,500  1.85%
8 Ms.K.V Indira Rani    1,053,150  1.36%
9 Korale HewageSoorasena    1,000,000  1.29%
10 Neluka  Devani   Jayatunga Perera    879,502  1.13%
11 Central Investments & Finance PLC    833,333  1.07%
12 Yoshida Tetsuro    700,000  0.90%
13 Suren Kumar Liyanage    604,164  0.78%
14 D. M.Meegaswatte    351,071  0.45%
15 Mythree Parackrama Bandara Meegaswatte    281,191  0.36%
16 Liyanka Ranasinghe    250,000  0.32%
17 C. S. K. Meegaswatte    242,687  0.31%
18 Mahawidanage PremadasaWijeweera Ginawardana     235,375  0.30%
19 Jayathilaka Hitihamillage Abeyaratna     200,000  0.26%
20 S. K.Wijerathne     154,629  0.20%

as at 31.03.2019
Catergory  no of no of % of share
   shareholders shares holdings
 1 1,000 100  50,217  0.06%
 1,001 5,000 59  172,006  0.22%
 5,001 10,000 12  107,900  0.14%
 10,001 50,000 22  722,310  0.93%
 50,001 100,000 7  507,012  0.65%
 100,001 500,000 10  2,094,016  2.69%
 500,001 1,000,000 5  4,016,999  5.17%
            > 1,000,000 8  70,030,318  90.13%
   223  77,700,778  100.00%

as at 31.03.2018 
Catergory  no of no of % of share
   shareholders shares holdings
 1 1,000 100 50,217 0.06%
 1,001 5,000 62 181,506 0.23%
 5,001 10,000 12 107,900 0.14%
 10,001 50,000 25 872,310 1.12%
 50,001 100,000 7 507,012 0.65%
 100,001 500,000 10 2,094,016 2.69%
 500,001 1,000,000 5 4,016,999 5.17%
            > 1,000,000 7 69,870,818 89.92%
   228 77,700,778 100.00%

share holders anaylsis
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notice oF annual geneRal Meeting

kanrich finance limited - Pb 694

Notice is hereby giveN that the Annual general Meeting of the shareholders of kanrich finance limited will be held at the 

kanrich finance limited, no. 68, Ward Place,  Colombo 07 on 13th August 2019 at 10.30 A.M. for the following purposes:

aGenda

1. to consider and receive the Annual report of the board and the Audited Financial statements for the years ended 

31st March 2019, together with the report of the Auditors thereon.

2. to re-elect Mr. D.s.i. Weerasinghe, who retires by rotation a the Annual general Meeting, a Director.

3. to elect Dr. W.M. hemachandra as a chairman of the company.

4. to authorize the Directors to determine the remuneration of the Auditors, Messrs. KPMg, chartered Accountants who 

are deemed to have been re-appointed as Auditors in terms of section 158 of the companies Act, No. 07 of 2007.

5. to make a new share issue as follows

 Non-voting shares 10,000,000 shares at rs. 20/- per share to raise rs. 200 Mn

 voting shares 10,000,000 shares at rs. 30/- per share to raise rs. 300 Mn

 right issue one ordinary share for each 2 shares held at rs. 15/- per share to raise rs. 577.5 Mn

6. to consider any other business of which due notice has been given

by order of the board

kanriCh finanCe limited

chart business systems (Private) Limited.

sgd

secretaries
No. 141/3, vauxhall street
colombo 02
05th July 2019

NOTICE
• A shareholder is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf, and a proxy need not to be a shareholder 

of the company. A Form of Proxy is attached for this purpose. the instrument appointing a Proxy must be deposited at chart 
business system (Pvt) Ltd - the secretaries of the company, No. 141/3, vauxhall street, colombo 02 not less than  
forty-eight (48) hours before the time fixed for the meeting.

• shareholders are requested to indicate any changes in their address.

• the Financial statement of the company for the 2018/2019 is attached herewith the notice.



217ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

FoRM oF pRoxy

kanriCh finanCe limited - Pb 694

i/We...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

of...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

being a *shareholder/shareholders of Kanrich Finance Limited hereby appoint.

(i)...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

of...........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

or failing him.

(ii) Dr. W. M. hemachandra, chairman of the board of Kanrich Finance Limited, or failing him any one of the other Directors 

of the company as *my/our proxy to attend and vote as indicated hereunder for *me/us and one *my/our behalf at the 

Annual general Meeting of the company to be held on ...................................................................... and at every poll which may be taken 

in consequence of the aforesaid meeting and at any adjournment thereof.

   for against

 1. to consider and receive that Annual report of the board and the Audited Financial  
 statements for the year ended 31st March 2019, together with the report of the Auditors thereon.

 2. to re-elect Mr. D.s.i. Weerasinghe who retires by rotation at the Annual general Meeting, a Director.

 3. to elect Dr. W.M. hemachandra as a chairman of the company.

 4. to authorize the Directors to determine the remuneration of the Auditors, Messrs. KPMg,  
 chartered Accountants who are deemed to have been re-appointed a Auditors in terms of  
 section 158 of the companies Act, No. 07 of 2007.

 5. to make a new share issue as follows
   Non- voting shares 10,000,000 shares at rs. 20/- per shares to raise rs. 20 Mn
   voting shares 10,000,000 shares at rs. 30/- per shares to raise rs. 30 Mn
   right issue one ordinary share for each 2 shares held at rs. 15/- per  

  share to raise rs. 577.5 Mn
(**) the proxy may vote as he thinks fit on any other resolution brought before the Meeting.

Date:.................................................. ........................................................................
   signature of shareholder
Note:  (a) *Please delete inappropriate words.

   (b) instructions as to completion are noted on the reverse hereof
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instruCtions as to ComPletion

1. to be valid, this Form of Proxy must be deposited at chart business 
system (Pvt) Ltd - the secretaries of the company, No. 141/3, vauxhall 
street, colombo 02 not less than forty-eight (48) hours before the time 
fixed for the meeting.

2. in perfecting the Form of Proxy, please ensure that all details are 
legible.

3. if you wish to appoint a person other than the chairman of the 
company (or failing him, one of the Directors) as your proxy, please 
insert the relevant details at 1 overleaf and initial against this entry.

4. Please indicate with an X in the space provided how your proxy is 
to vote on each resolution. if no indication is given, the proxy in his 
discretion will vote as he thinks fit. Please also delete (**) if you do not 
wish your proxy to vote as he thinks fit on any other resolution brought 
before the Meeting.

5. in the case of a company / corporation, the proxy must be under its 
common seal which should be affixed and attested in the manner 
prescribed by its Articles of Association.

6. Where the Form of Proxy is signed under a Power of Attorney(PoA) 
winch as not been registered with the company, the original PoP 
together with a photocopy of same or a copy certified by a Notary 
Public must be lodged with the company along with the Form of Proxy. 

FoRM oF pRoxy
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Name of the Company:  
 KaNRICh FINaNCE LIMITEd

Legal Form: 
 Incorporated as a Limited Liability Company 

under Chapter 145 of the Company Ordinance 
No. 51 of 1938. Re-registered under the 
Companies Act No. 07 of 2007 and licensed by 
the Monetary Board of Central Bank under the 
Finance Business Act No. 42 of 2011.

Date of Incorporation:  
 27th October 1971

Company Number:
 PB 694

Principle Lines of Business:
 FIxed Deposits, Leasing & Hire Purchase, Real 

Estate, Pawning & Gold Loans, Ran Sihinaya, 
Mortgage Loans, Micro Finance, Personal Loans, 
Business Loans, SME Loans, Education Loans 
and Housing Loans

Registered Office: 
 No. 69, Ward Place, Colombo 07
 Tel: (+94)114381381/ (+94)112685656 
 Fax: (+94)114717784
 E-Mail: info@kanrich.lk 
 Web : www.kanrich.lk

Board of Directors:

 Dr. W.M. Hemachandra (Chairman)

 Mr. S. I. Weerasinghe (CEO / Director)

 Eng. K. M. S. B. Rekogama (Executive Director)

 Mr. K. K. D. Ranawaka (Director)

 Mr. T. L. B. Hurulle (Director)

coRpoRate inFoRMation
Corporate Management 

 Mr. Eranda Godage -GM

 Mr. Sadeepa Rathnayake -GM

 Mr. Pradeep Basnayake -DGM

 Mr. Ravi Indra Kumara Joseph -DGM - IT

 Mrs. W. Shyaminie Fernando -Snr. AGM

 Mr. Thushara Wijewardena -AGM - Credit

 Mr. R. Sujeewa Warnakulasuriya -AGM - Head of Micro Finance

 Mr. Sarath Thilakarathna -AGM - Head of Gold Loans

 Mr. Varuna Walgama -AGM -Head of HR

 Mr. Harshadeva Abayajeewa -Head of Finance

Bankers:

 Commercial Bank PLC 

Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC 

 People’s Bank 

 Sampath Bank PLC 

 Nation Development Bank PLC 

 Seylan Bank PLC 

 Bank of Ceylon

 Hatton National Bank PLC

Auditors:

Messrs KPMG, Sri Lanka. 

 No: 32A, Sir Mohamed Macan Markar Mawatha, Colombo

Secretaries: 

 Messrs Chart Business Systems (Pvt) Ltd. 

 141/3, Vauxhall Street, Colombo 02



contAct uS
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Colombo 07
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